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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due

and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no

assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this annual report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever

arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this annual report.

This annual report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
(the “Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to
the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this annual report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive,

and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this annual report misleading.
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Dear the Shareholders

I hereby present the audited consolidated results of Beijing Beida
Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2023.

The past year has been a year of challenges and changes. The
resumption of economic growth in China following the lifting of
restrictions on the novel coronavirus pneumonia (“COVID-197)
epidemic (the “Epidemic”) has had a positive impact on the
Group’s business performance, in particular the Group’s tourism
development business has benefited from the revival of the
tourism market in China. However, the pace of China’s economic
recovery is challenging and the Group is closely monitoring its
impact on the performance of its key businesses and investment
portfolio holdings.

The Group continues to exercise prudence in exploring potential
and favorable investments with the objective of balancing and
diversifying the Group’s investment portfolio and bringing about
capital appreciation with a view to maximizing the value to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”). During
the year under review, the Group subscribed for a closed-end
segregated portfolio fund with a portfolio of non-performing
assets of banks and financial institutions in Hong Kong for HK$40
million. In January 2024, the Group bid for a 25% equity interest
in a venture capital company which is principally engaged in
investing in innovative and high-growth enterprises in industries
of new materials, energy conservation, environmental protection
and high-end equipment manufacturing at a consideration of
approximately RMB106.7 million.

The Group’s team is well-prepared to tackle challenges and
capitalize on the opportunities for profit growth with the
experience gained in the past.

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Directors”) of the
Company (the “Board”), I would like to take this opportunity to
express my sincere gratitude to the Shareholders and our business
partners for their unfailing support and to our team for their
contribution to the development of the Group.

Ni Jinlei
Chairman and Executive Director

Beijing, the PRC
28 March 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B PR )G W a4 B

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in tourism development
business, investment holding of diversified portfolios, sales of
metallic products, sales and production of LED devices and other

businesses including wine and related products.

The Company, through its subsidiaries and associates, is
engaged in provision of environmental shuttle bus service
and property management services, and operation of tourist
facilities, entertainment performance, tourist service center and
tourist souvenir shops in the tourist area at Nanyue District,
Hunan Province, the PRC; and also participated in several
tourism development projects in Hunan Province, including the
development of tourist sight project located at Tianzi Mountain.
For the year under review, the Group renewed its transport
operation license for operation of transport at the tourist area at

Nanyue District for another 6 years from 2023 to 2029.

As a result of the relaxation of the policies and measures
implemented by the government of the PRC to deter the Epidemic
in the PRC, the number of tourists and pilgrims visiting Hengshan
Mountain scenic area was increased by about 90.4% year-on-year
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company
dated 15 May 2020, 26 June 2020 and 3 September 2021 and the
circular of the Company dated 30 June 2020. On 15 May 2020, the
Company entered into the sale and purchase agreement (the “SP
Agreement”) with an independent third party (the “Purchaser”)
and Chuanqi Tourism Investment Co., Ltd (“Chuanqi Tourism”),
a then non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, for the
disposal of the 60% equity interest in Chuanqi Tourism (the
“Sale Interest”) held by the Company at the consideration
of RMB172,028,880 (the “Disposal”); and the guarantee fee
arrangement in relation to the release of the guarantee agreement
(the “Guarantee Agreement”) executed by the Company and
the banks dated 31 January 2013 which secured the obligations
of Changsha Songya Lake Construction Investment Co., Ltd.
(“Songya Lake Construction”), under a facility agreement. The
release of the Guarantee Agreement shall be arranged within 12
months from the equity transfer date through negotiation with the
banks. The completion of the Disposal took place on 3 September
2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

The Guarantee Agreement was released during the year under
review, but as at 31 December 2023, the remaining balance
of the consideration of approximately RMB142.0 million
(the “Consideration Balance”) remained outstanding. The
Purchaser recently proposed to the Company that it shall pay the

Consideration Balance in the fourth quarter of 2024.

Taking into account that (i) the Purchaser has pledged the Sale
Interest in favour of the Company and the Chuangqi Tourism has
pledged all shares in Songya Lake Construction in favour of the
Company; and (ii) the Purchaser has been paying the interest
accrued on the Consideration Balance overdue in accordance with
the SP Agreement, the Company currently has no intention to
terminate the SP Agreement. However, the Company will closely
monitor the status of payment of the Consideration Balance and
will make further announcement(s) to update the Shareholders
and the investors of the Company of any material development as

and when appropriate.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s investment holding business
mainly included investments in a subsidiary, the associates
and joint ventures which are private equity funds with equity
investments in private enterprises in the PRC and are private
enterprises principally engaged in semiconductor materials and
display devices businesses, the investment in Jade Bird Fire Co.,
Ltd. (“Jade Bird Fire”), a A share listed company in the PRC and
the investments in financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) and at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVIPL”) including listed companies in Hong Kong
and private companies in the PRC and Hong Kong and a close-end

segregated portfolio of an investment fund.

During the second quarter of 2023, the Group disposed of its 40%
equity interest in Beijing Jade Bird Hengsheng Investment Fund
(Limited Partnership) (“HS Fund”) to an independent third party
at the consideration of RMB15,484,000 in cash, having considered
the prospects of the investments held by HS Fund. HS Fund
ceased to be an associate of the Group, and the Group recorded a
loss on disposal of an associate of approximately RMB28.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated
21 November 2022 and 29 March 2023 and the circular of the
Company dated 10 March 2023. On 21 November 2022, the
Company and Mr. Cai Weimin (“Mr. Cai”), who is an independent
third party of the Company, entered into the share transfer
agreement, pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to sell, and Mr. Cai has conditionally agreed to purchase,
44,900,000 shares (the “Sales Shares”) of Jade Bird Fire,
representing then 7.96% of equity interests in Jade Bird Fire at the
consideration of RMB1,101,846,000 (the “Consideration”). The
partial disposal of the Company’s equity interests in Jade Bird Fire
constituted a very substantial disposal of the Company under the
GEM Listing Rules. The approval of the Shareholders in respect
of the share transfer agreement and the transaction contemplated
thereunder was obtained at the special general meeting of the
Company held on 29 March 2023. Upon the completion of the
disposal taken place on 5 May 2023, the Company recognised
an gain of partial disposal of an associate of approximately
RMB365.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 and held
approximately 23.15% equity interest in Jade Bird Fire as at 31
December 2023. Jade Bird Fire continued to be accounted as an
associate of the Company in the consolidated financial statements

of the Company using the equity method.

As at 31 December 2023, Mr. Cai has only settled 20% of the
Consideration (i.e. RMB220,369,200) and RMB&881,476,800 of
the Consideration remained outstanding. The Group recorded
an impairment loss on the receivable due from Mr. Cai of
approximately RMB144.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2023. The Company is in the process of negotiation with Mr.
Cai in relation to the settlement of outstanding Consideration
due from Mr. Cai and will make further announcement(s) to
update the Shareholders and the investors of the Company of any

material development as and when appropriate.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated
28 December 2023, Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech (Cayman)
Development Company Limited (“Beida Cayman Development”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and Huarong
International Special Investment Fund SPC (the “Fund”), a
segregated portfolio company under the laws of the Cayman
Islands entered into the subscription agreement, pursuant to
which Beida Cayman Development agreed to subscribe for the
participating shares in the capital of the Fund attributable to
Fund V SP (the “Segregated Portfolio”), a closed-end segregated
portfolio of the Fund at a total subscription amount of HK$40
million. Taking into account (i) the investment focus of the
Segregated Portfolio being on non-performing assets from the
banks and financial institutions in Hong Kong; (ii) the Board’s
confidence in the quality of the non-performing financial
assets in the Hong Kong market; and (iii) the lack of such type
of financial assets in the portfolios of the Group, the Board
considered that the subscription provided the Group with an
opportunity to balance and diversify its investment portfolios and
capture potential capital appreciation in the future, which would

strengthen the investment holding business of the Group.

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated
9 January 2024, the Company made a successful bid for the 25%
equity interest of Shanghai Shengjin Venture Capital Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai Shengjin”) in the public auction at a consideration
of RMB106,690,000. Shanghai Shengjin is principally engaged
in investment holding, focusing on investment in innovative and
high-growth enterprises in industries of new materials, energy
conservation, environmental protection and high-end equipment
manufacturing, and in provision of investment consultancy and
enterprise management services. The Board considered that
the acquisition represented a good investment opportunity and
was in line with the Group’s vision to invest in target companies
or businesses with promising outlook and prospects. Upon the
completion to be taken place, the aggregate equity interest of
Shanghai Shengjin held by the Group will increase from 45%
to 70%. Shanghai Shengjin will become a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company and its financial results would be

consolidated into the results of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

o BEL ) i B g i

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Sales and production of LED devices

The Company, through its non-wholly owned subsidiary
acquired in April 2022 namely Guangdong Lumen Pioneer
Opto Co., Ltd. (“Guangdong Lumen”), is principally engaged
in the development, manufacture and sale of high-end ceramic
high-power LED devices and modules, focusing on the research
and development and manufacturing of special light sources such
as automotive, stage, curing, flash and plant growth. The products
manufactured include car lamp series, mobile lighting series,

color light series, etc..

Trading of metallic products

During the year, the Group is engaged in sales and purchases of
metallic products in the PRC. The Group continues to explore

more opportunities to expand its source of income.

Other businesses

The Group operated a winery, namely The Winery at la Grange,
at the State of Virginia, the United States, which owned a vineyard
and is principally engaged in the production and sales of wine and

related products.

Outlook

Looking ahead, global growth is expected to continue its sluggish
trend in 2024, and the overall prospects of the industry and the
operating environment of the Group will be full of challenges
in the coming year. The Group will continue to consolidate the
development of its existing business through monitoring the risks
and strengthening internal management, while exploring new
business areas and seeking suitable investment opportunities in a

prudent manner to create better returns for the Shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Tourism development

During the year, fare revenue from tourists and pilgrims
continued to be the main source of income of the Group’s
tourism development business. For the year ended 31 December
2023, the Group’s tourism development business recorded
revenue of approximately RMB187.4 million (2022: RMB86.6
million), representing an increase by 116.3% when compared
with the corresponding period of 2022. Such increase was mainly
attributable to the relaxation of the policies and measures
implemented by the government of the PRC to deter the Epidemic
in the PRC.

Investment holding

The segment total assts of the investment holding business of the
Group increased by 0.3% to approximately RMB3,738.2 million as
at 31 December 2023 (2022: RMB3,725.2 million).

Sales and production of LED devices

The financial results of Guangdong Lumen have been
consolidated with the results of the Company since the completion
of its acquisition in April 2022. During the year ended 31
December 2023, revenue generated from Guangdong Lumen
amounted to approximately RMB49.6 million (2022: RMB32.7

million).

Trading of metallic products

For the year ended 31 December 2023, revenue generated from
the Group’s trading of metallic products business amounted to
approximately RMB320.6 million (2022: RMB147.2 million),
representing an increase by 117.8% vyear-on-year. The increase
was mainly attributable to the increase in orders entered by the
Group with the recovery of the economy and the market after the
Epidemic. The gross margin was 2.2% (2022: 2.3%) during the

year.

Other businesses

Revenue generated from the business of production and sales of
wine and related products amounted to approximately RMB8.7
million (2022: RMB9.6 million), which was insignificant to the

Group’s total revenue.

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR

o PR i B g b

W % 0] g

Jifé 3 B J

GO E R E- Y EE- VN PN YRS
LR REEEN EBEWAKE - 2
SR EET AT H IR AL
A T 70 % FR SE T SR AT U A A N R 18744
JL(ZFF  ARH8,6608 0) » I F
TR RAREN16.8% o sE B R 3 R
R B TR L 2 2 o I A 928 1R T R A Y R
T it e 3K o

P& BB
MREEZ=ZF+F"A=+—H AEAHRE
PERLEB B 7 A E A M03%REH AR

Me37.382M8 0 (F 4+ ANRM37.25218
JG) e

8 & KA ELED#s 1

ER S M SR T F A K
W TR AR BB AR R R AR A AR o
BEFZ - “HF+ A=+ —HILFE
JE B 6 AR U A K B N R 4,960 8 T
TR AR NRWES,2708T) o

H-\

F«‘*)brtm

—

SBEMES

BEEX - F T AT —HIEFEE B
A A S T 1Y 4 O E R 5 S 2 AR B
ANR#ES.206f8 70 (ZF = 4 : AR¥1.472
n) > HAERN117.8% - A B3 in 3= & i
i il R 15 AR KSR S T B 1 AR B R oL
W wT AT TS N BT B o AR IR BRI £2.2%
(ZFE 5 23%)

3 A 3% %5
PR T 5 AR R I S A R E A B WSO A B

AL A AT AT K - A5 ANREE-70
WL (CF A 0 AR¥9608 L) o

10



Management Discussion and Analysis

B PR )G W a4 B

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

The business and financial performance of the Group has been
improved since the relaxation and removal of the Epidemic
restrictions by the government of the PRC in December 2022. For
the year ended 31 December 2023, as a result of the increase in
fare revenue of the environmental shuttle bus service generated
by the Group’s tourism development business and the increase
in volume of the Group’s trading of metallic products business,
total revenue recorded by the Group amounted to approximately
RMB566.4 million (2022: RMB276.2 million), representing an
increase of 105.1% compared with the corresponding period
of 2023, and the gross profit was increased by 224.1% to
approximately RMB124.4 million (2022: RMB38.4 million).

It mainly comprised of: (i) the impairment loss on the receivable
of approximately RMB144.3 million in relation to the partial
disposal of Jade Bird Fire (2022: Nil); and (ii) the impairment loss
on the receivable of approximately RMB28.7 million in relation to
the disposal of Chuanqi Tourism (2022: RMB10.0 million).

Such impairment loss on other receivables were mainly assessed in
accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
in particular, HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments, using general
approach. The amount of impairment loss on other receivables
mentioned above were arrived at by multiplying the amount of
the other receivables by the relevant credit loss rate, which were
determined by reference to the probabilities of default and the
loss given default, taking into account of the time value of money.
There was no change in the method used in the impairment
analysis, as compared with those used in the year ended 31
December 2022.

11 Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited -

$4 75 o] R (%9)

G o B R AR T R R R
TH 1 BRI DA B > A 4 1Y 3BT K B B R B
APk wE_F_=4F+-_A=+—H
IEAFBE > d A AR B B i 7 i i S5 T A A 1Y
IR AR 27 M B b AROES Y HE 2 e A B N B AR 4R
W45 B E S G T R > A Bk AR Y
UG AZ 7 N R Hs.664f8 0 (ZF =

N R ¥, 76208 70) - B F = AR M B
N105.1% > 1fi & F 1 M224.1% % #9 N
12441800 (ZF = =4 A\R¥#3,840870) »

4 G B H A W 3K TE 2 (B G R BT
(i) B 43 B 5 5 TH B A B %) R A R (L
BRI N R 1448800 (ZF 24 )
T (i) B 45 32 e 2 A I ) R A R U (e
BHNRBE2,8708 70 (= F = 4« ARW
1,000 76) ©

HL At B W T 1 9 (L A R T AR 4 A o B
et HE 1) (J0 LR 7 ol B 5 i A MR I SR 09
il T H) B — M7 AT R Al o Bl AR
W T 194 9 R 8 < )Y i H At B WA R IH
BRI fE E R IRR S M5 Sk HER
T 2 MR IR MR R 0 A 1R O T 7B IR B N Y IEE
WA E - B E_F 4+ _"A
= H AR > 2 M sl (E BT 6E R 05 35
M 5EH o

Annual Report 2023



Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Loss/gain on deemed partial disposal of an associate

Loss on deemed partial disposal of an associate of approximately
RMB23.3 million (2022: gain of approximately RMB220.2 million)
was recognized by the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 as a result of issue of new shares by Jade Bird Fire, the
associate of the Group, under its share rewards and option
schemes. In 2022, Jade Bird Fire issued new shares under its
non-public share offering in addition to its share rewards and

option schemes.

Gain on partial disposal of an associate

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recognized
a gain of approximately RMB365.5 million (2022: Nil) upon the
completion of the partial disposal of Jade Bird Fire, an associate of
the Group in May 2023.

Loss on disposal of associates
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recognized
loss on disposal of associates of approximately RMB29.5 million

(2022: Nil) mainly as a result of the disposal of its 40% equity

interest in HS Fund.

Finance costs

Finance costs were approximately RMB53.9 million (2022:
RMB34.8 million), which mainly represented interest on bank and
other loans raised by the Group, the interest on lease liabilities in
relation to various offices and plant leased by the Group and net

foreign exchange gain.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B PR )G W a4 B

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s share of
profits of associates amounted to approximately RMB150.0
million (2022: RMB178.4 million), representing a decrease of
15.9% years-on-year. Such decrease was mainly attributable to the
decrease in the Group’s proportional share of the results of Jade
Bird Fire after the partial disposal of equity interests in Jade Bird
Fire held by the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s share of loss
of joint ventures amounted to approximately RMB3.9 million
(2022: profit of approximately RMB18.8 million). The turnaround
from profit to loss was mainly attributable to the unsatisfactory

performance of the joint ventures of the Group during the year.

Income tax expense was approximately RMB17.9 million (2022:
credit of approximately RMB2.0 million) during the year. It
mainly represented the net provision of corporate income tax
of approximately RMB23.3 million (2022: RMB2.7 million) and
the deferred tax credit of approximately RMB5.4 million (2022:
RMB4.7 million) recognized by the Group in the PRC.

The Group recorded the decrease in profit attributable to owners
of the Company by 41.4% to approximately RMB195.2 million
(2022: RMB333.4 million) for the year ended 31 December
2023, mainly because of the combined effects of the following:
(i) the gain on partial disposal of an associate of approximately
RMB365.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022:
Nil) as a result of the Group’s partial disposal of Jade Bird Fire;
(ii) the gain on deemed disposal of an associate of approximately
RMB220.2 million recorded for the year 31 December 2022, which
was absent in the year ended 31 December 2023; and (iii) the
substantial increase in the impairment loss on trade and other
receivables to approximately RMB210.7 million as compared
with that for the year ended 31 December 2022 of approximately
RMB35.9 million, mainly due to the impairment loss on the
receivable of approximately RMB144.3 million in relation to the

partial disposal of Jade Bird Fire.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Financial position

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s current ratio (being ratio
of current assets and current liabilities) and the gearing ratio
(being measured by total loans to equity attributable to owners of
the Company), which are the key position and financial leverage,
were 1.35 (2022: 0.60) and 23.3% (2022: 25.3%) respectively.
Increase in the current ratio was mainly due to increase in the
current assets as a result of the partial disposal of equity interest in
Jade Bird Fire during the year. There was an improvement of the
gearing ratio as a result of the stable level of total bank and other
loans of the Group. The Group has been actively negotiating with
banks and other borrowers for new loans and renewal of current
existing loans in order to cope with the business operations and

expansion.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s main core businesses are subject to the several key
risks and uncertainties including, and among others, operating

risks and financial risks.

Operational risks

The Group faces several potential operational risks including
relaxation of the local authority’s policy to other service providers
to operate the shuttle bus service and the industrial policy
risks. If there is unfavorable adjustment of the local authority’s
policy and the industrial policies in relation to the tourism and
manufacturing industries in the PRC, there may have an adverse
effect on the Group’s net profit. The Board always monitors
market situation in order to react promptly over any potential
risks. The Board meets and discusses with directors of subsidiaries
frequently to keep track of their situations so that it can adjust
segmental strategies timely. The Group has already set out
strategies including quality control enhancement, stringent cost
control and business diversification to deal with different kinds of

operational risks.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B PR )G W a4 B

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (CONTINUED)

The Group also exposes to a variety of financial risks including
foreign currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and

interest rate risk.

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), US dollars (“USD”),
Canadian dollars (“CAD”), Euro (“EUR”) and Renminbi (“RMB”).
The Group does not formulate a foreign currency hedging policy
at present as turnover, most of the costs and operating expenses
are denominated in RMB and they are automatically hedged,
leaving limited currency risk. The Group closely monitors its
exposure and will take measures to lower foreign currency risk

when necessary.

The Group exposes to equity security price risk as listed equity
securities included in its financial assets at FVTOCI are measured
at fair value. The change in fair value of the listed securities will
lead to the fluctuation of fair value changes of financial assets at
FVTOCI included in the Group’s total comprehensive income.
The Group has not mitigated its price risk arising from the listed

equity securities.

The Group exposes to certain credit risk coming from certain
financial assets held by the Group, which include cash and cash
equivalents, and receivables. The Group’s tourism development
segment mainly generated fare revenue from environmental
shuttle bus service and the credit risk was low. The Group is
engaged in sales and purchases of metallic products and sales and
production of LED devices and recorded trade receivables as at
31 December 2023. An increase in trade receivables will result in
a decrease in the Group’s operating cash flow and an increase in
the Group’s operating risk. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding trade receivables and monitors credit
terms of the customers. Senior management of each subsidiary
reviews overdue balances regularly. The Group maintains good
cooperation with the customers and customer credit is in good
condition. The Group does not develop particular policy to tackle
credit risks from cash and cash equivalents at present as the
major counterparties are either well-established or having high

credit-rating.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (CONTINUED)
Financial risks (Continued)

The Group’s measure over liquidity is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient cash reserves to meet its liquidity requirements in short

and long term.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk arises from its bank
deposits and bank and other loans. The risk varies with the

prevailing market condition but is limited.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND COMPLIANCE
WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to maintaining the highest
environmental standards and strictly follows the applicable
environmental requirements imposed by the PRC government in
its operation. For the year under review, the Group complied with
influential laws relevant to waste gas or greenhouse gas emissions,
water or land discharging, hazardous or non-hazardous wastes,
and use of resources. The Group strives to reduce destruction
to the environment by saving energy and encouraging recycle of
office supplies. Besides, the environmental buses operated by the
Group are equipped with anti-smoking devices and do not use

heavy-duty diesel to reduce pollution.

The Group’s main core businesses are carried out by principal
subsidiaries in the PRC and the United States of America and the
Company was listed on the Stock Exchange in 2000. The Group
strictly complies with the relevant laws and regulations to ensure

sustainable development of its businesses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

o BEL ) i B g i

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group’s customers mainly comprised of tourists and pilgrims,
trading partners from business of sales and purchases of metallic
products and sales and production of LED devices. The Group
is committed to provide good-quality environmental shuttle bus
services to the customers. The Group has a business team to
execute sales contracts with the trading partners and maintains
good relationship with the trading partners. The business
team is mainly responsible for the evaluation of qualification
of trading partners and coordinating the relationship between
trading partners, while the Group’s finance department is mainly

responsible for assessing credit limit and control.

The Group has a close and good relationship with key suppliers
in relation to the operation of the environmental shuttle bus
services and businesses of sales and purchases of metallic products
sales and production of LED devices. The Group strictly regulated
procurement procedures in relation to supplier evaluation and
selection, and acceptance of purchased products. In addition,
there are a relatively a number of suppliers in the market and

relatively stable purchase prices could be maintained.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

Saved as disclosed herein this section, during the year ended 31
December 2023, the Group did not effect any material acquisitions
and disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures which

would be required to be disclosed under the GEM Listing Rules.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s major
operations were financed mainly by the internal financial
resources and by corporate borrowings. As at 31 December
2023, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
RMB156.5 million, which were denominated mainly in RMB, HK$
and USD.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had net assets of
approximately RMB3,776.0 million (2022: RMB3,728.5 million).
The Group had total outstanding borrowings of approximately
RMB880.6 million (2022: RMB943.5 million) which consisted of
secured bank and other loans of approximately RMB856.1 million
(2022: RMB891.7 million) and unsecured bank and other loans
of approximately RMB24.5 million (2022: RMB51.8 million). The
bank and other loans were denominated in RMB and bore interest

rates ranging from nil to 5.6% per annum.

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s outstanding number
of issued non-listed shares and H shares of RMB0.10 each were
700,000,000 shares and 814,464,000 shares respectively.

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2023, which is
measured by total loans and lease liabilities to equity attributable
to owners of the Company, was 23.3% (2022: 25.3%). There was
an improvement in the gearing ratio as a result of the stable level

of total bank and other loans of the Group.

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR

o PR i B g b

MBI E AR

REE_F =4 A= T—HIFE
A% 45 [ E ESE N BB B UR K A A A
FHEFEESE R _F_=4F1T_H=1—
H> ALHAHEABE&SEYH AR
1.565f8 0 » EZE LA R - i o0 ) FEonEr
{‘go

WoFECEFET A= —H o AEENE
BRI NRH87.760F 0 (—F
/\E%msm-ﬁfn o AR KB E
MAEHANRES 806 (T 4+ AR
%943515-75 E*@iﬁﬁ?&#ﬁﬁﬁ TR HoAth
TR NRIESs61ME T (ZF - AR
#8.917{% Jt) &ﬂfﬁﬂﬁafﬁ TR H A B R AN
Eﬁ%‘ms‘»o?ﬁm SR NRH5,1808

o $RAT M HAh B A RUERHE - A AF
%U%?ﬁiﬁﬁ%aﬁ% o

BoECEZETH=+—H > AAFR B
AT I b T Ry B U e £ 1% e i T {1 7 N R
¥0.1000 - 3% W R IR0 1 B 3R A7 o Bl 4
700,000,000 2 814,464,000/%

WoF=F+H=+—H > AEEMNE
E B R R (BB L S AR AR
FVEA NEAGRER R R) 523.3% (&
40 25.8%) o HI A A4 (Y SR AT K I At
B BERRTRE > WG R AK L RAE K

o

HFHJE

18



Management Discussion and Analysis

B PR )G W a4 B

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

As at 31 December 2023, the Group held financial assets at
FVTOCI and FVTPL of totalling approximately RMB285.0 million,
representing 5.7% of the total assets of the Group, which mainly

comprised of:

(1)

(ii)

19

5.67% equity interest in Shanghai Xianyao Display
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Xianyao”) with investment
cost of RMB100.0 million at fair value of approximately
RMB243.9 million, representing 4.9% of the total assets
of the Group as at 31 December 2023. Shanghai Xianyao
is principally engaged in the technical research and
development of display devices, optical components
and accessories and digital devices; and the wholesale
distribution of digital components, optoelectronic products,
display devices, project derives and lightening devices. There
is an increase in fair value of approximately RMB40.8 million

included in other comprehensive income for the year; and

3,200 Class SP5-A shares or 100% of Class SP5-A shares,
which are participating, non-redeemable and non-voting
shares, in the capital of Huarong International Special
Investment Fund SPC attributable to Fund V SP, a
closed-end segregated portfolio of the Fund with investment
cost of approximately RMB29.0 million at fair value of
approximately RMB29.0 million, representing 0.6% of the
total assets of the Group as at 31 December 2023. The Fund
is registered as a segregated portfolio company under the
laws of the Cayman Islands and is permitted to create one or
more segregated portfolios in order to segregate the assets
and liabilities of the Fund held in respect of one segregated
portfolio from the assets and liabilities of the Fund held in
respect of any other segregated portfolio and/or the general
assets and liabilities of the Fund. Fund V SP was established
by the Fund and its investment objectives is to generate
returns by acquiring any non-performing assets from any
bank or financial institution in Hong Kong. There is no

significant change of air value for the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD (Continued)

Investment holding is one of the core businesses of the
Group, and the Group strives to identify promising investment
opportunities. The Group considered the optimistic future
prospect of market of display devices and optoelectronic products,
as well as the quality of the non-performance financial assets in
Hong Kong and expected that the performance of the Group’s
investment holding business will be benefited. During the year
under review, the fair value of the financial assets at FVTOCI
continued to fluctuate as a result of uncertainty of pace of global
economic recovery. The Group will carefully assess investment
opportunities in the market to diversify investment business

portfolio in view of expected higher volatility ahead.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Saved as disclosed herein this section, the Group did not have any

significant investment plans as at 31 December 2023.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had contingent liabilities in the sum of approximately
RMB100.0 million in respect of guarantee for banking facilities

granted to an associate of the Company.

Saved as disclosed above, the Group did not have any other

significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2023.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group is exposed to certain foreign currency risk as most
of its business activities, assets and liabilities are denominated in
USD, CAD, RMB, EUR and HK$. The Group has not formulated
a foreign currency hedging policy as turnover and most of the
production costs and operating expenses are denominated in
RMB and they are automatically matched, leaving limited currency
risk. The Group continues to monitor its foreign exchange
exposure and will take measures to lower the foreign currency risk

when necessary.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s certain fixed assets with
carrying amount of approximately RMB248.7 million (2022:
RMB277.1 million), investment properties with carrying amount
of approximately RMB199.1 million (2022: RMB195.6 million),
bank deposit of approximately RMB1.3 million (2022: RMB1.2
million) and equity interest of an associate were pledged as

securities for the Group’s bank and other loans.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group considers people as the valuable assets. The Directors
are of the view that the Group maintains good working relations
with its employees. The Group had workforce of 638 people
situated mainly in the PRC, Hong Kong and the United States
at the end of reporting year, up 9.2% since the end of 2022.
The Group strictly complied with applicable labour law and
regulations. Competitive remuneration package with medical and
travel insurance are offered to the staff. Adequate retirement
funds and provident funds are contributed on a timely basis. The
Group emphasizes on working safety and sets out proper safety
guidelines and provides adequate training to workers. Staffs are
free to set up trade union according to applicable laws while
the supervisory committee of the Company (the “Supervisory

Committee”) had representative from the workforce.

Director’s emoluments consist of fees, salaries and allowances, and
discretionary bonus determined according to the performance
of individual Director. The remuneration of the Directors
is determined having regard to each of their duties and

responsibilities in the Company.

The Group’s staff costs, including directors’ emoluments,
employees’ salaries and retirement benefits scheme contribution
amounted to approximately RMB84.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: RMB62.7 million), which was in line with the

increase in workforce of the Group.
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Profile of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ni Jinlei, aged 56, was appointed as a non-executive
Director and the chairman of the Company on 30 June 2015 and
re-designated as an executive Director on 31 May 2018. Mr. Ni
graduated from the Peking University with a Bachelor’s degree
in computer software in 1987. Mr. Ni was the computer software
engineer of Shenzhen Taiji Software Engineering Company,
manager of computer department of the securities exchange
center in Hainan, general manager of Guangzhou Nanfang Jade
Bird Information System Co., Ltd., senior manager of Integrated
Software and Device Corporation (USA), software architect of
ABB Energy Information System (USA), chief executive officer of
Beijing Beida-Online Network Co., Ltd., China regional director
(Young Learners’ English) of Global English Corporation,
founder and chief executive officer of Beijing Jinwenlang
Information Technology Co., Ltd.. Mr. Ni is currently a director of
Chuangqi Tourism Investment (Hunan) Co., Ltd., Beida Jade Bird
Universal Investments (HK) Limited, Beida Jade Bird Universal
Sci-Tech (Cayman) Development Company Limited, Beida Jade
Bird Universal (Cayman) Investment Company Limited and Beida
Jade Bird Universal Investment (BVI) Limited which are the
subsidiaries of the Company, and the chairman of Beijing Xizhi

Education Technology Co., Ltd. and a director of Jade Bird Fire.

Ms. Zheng Zhong, aged 47, is an executive Director and the
president of the Company. Ms. Zheng graduated from the
Molecular Biology Department of the School of Life Sciences at
Peking University in July 1997 and subsequently obtained an MBA
degree from the China Centre for Economic Research at Peking
University in July 2007. Ms. Zheng worked for the Biological
Engineering Centre under the Institute of Chemical Metallurgy
(now Institute of Process Engineering) at Chinese Academy of
Sciences, Department of Biology at Shenzhen University and
Shenzhen Kexing Bioproducts Co., Ltd.. She was also an assistant
to the president of SINOGEN (China) Investment Company,
assistant to the head of Genetics Research Institute of the School
of Life Sciences at Tsinghua University, president of Beijing
Beida-Online Network Co., Ltd., vice president of Beida Culture
Group, and assistant to president of Beijing Beida Jade Bird
Limited (“Beida Jade Bird”) and the general manager overseeing
major projects. She is currently the chairman of Ningbo Jade
Biard Venture Capital Investment Co., Ltd. and Ningbo Jade Bird
Zhengyuan Equity Investment Management Co., Ltd. which are
subsidiaries of the Company. She is also a director and deputy
general manager of SBI-BDJB Investment Consultant Ltd. and a
director of Jade Bird Fire.
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Profile of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

ER-EFLARREHEZEN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Wang Xingye, aged 46, was appointed as an executive Director
and the vice president of the Company on 21 May 2021. Mr. Wang
attended master post-graduation level. Mr. Wang has worked in
Beida Jade Bird. He is currently a director of Chuanqgi Tourism
Investment (Hunan) Co., Ltd., Beijing Jade Bird Hengsheng
Investment Management Co., Ltd., Ningbo Jade Bird Zhengyuan
Equity Investment Management Co., Ltd., Ningbo Jade Bird
Venture Capital Investment Co., Ltd., Ningbo Jade Bird Liyuantai
Venture Capital Management Co., Ltd., Beida Jade Bird Universal
Investments (HK) Limited, Beida Jade Bird Universal (Cayman)
Development Company Limited, Beida Jade Bird Universal
(Cayman) Investment Company Limited and Beida Jade Bird
Universal Investment (BVI) Limited, which are subsidiaries of
the Company. He is also currently an executive director and the
general manager of Beijing Jade Bird Dingsheng Investment
Management Co., Ltd., and the chairman of the supervisory
committee of Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited
(a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 747)). Mr.
Wang joined the Company in March 2000 and is the secretary to
the Board, the director of Human Resources of the Company and

the chairman of the labor union of the Company.

Ms. Guan Xueming, aged 52, was appointed as an executive
Director and the vice president of the Company on 21 May
2021. Ms. Guan graduated from North China University of Water
Resources and Electric Power with a Master’s degree. Ms. Guan
is a certified accountant in the PRC, a certified tax agent in the
PRC, a certified internal auditor and a certified accountant with
securities qualification. She has extensive experience in financial
management, and was the engineer of Nanning City Water Supply
Company, the deputy director of Zhonglei Certified Public
Accountants Co., Ltd. and the financial controller of Jinjilie
International Study Service Co., Ltd.. She is currently the director
of Guangdong Luming, which is a subsidiary of the Company, the
director of Jade Bird Semiconductor Technology (Tongling) Co.,
Ltd., and the director of Shanghai Xianyao Display Technology
Co., Ltd..
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Profile of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

FH - BFEARREEZ N

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Liu Ziyi, aged 30, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 20 May 2022. Mr. Liu graduated from the Johns
Hopkins University in 2016 with a double bachelor’s degree
in applied mathematics and statistics and economics. Mr. Liu
has worked in the investment banking department of UBS
Investment Bank, and was responsible for the listing of financial
institutions, debt issuance, mergers and acquisitions consulting
and other services. He is currently a director of Guangdong
Luming, which is a subsidiary of the Company. He is also
the director of Gaite Semiconductor Technology (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd., Gaite Semiconductor Technology (Tongling) Co.,
Ltd., Shanghai Xianyao Display Technology Co., Ltd., Hefei
Xianyao Integrated Circuit Technology Co., Ltd., Jade Bird
Semiconductor Technology (Tongling) Co., Ltd., Beida Jade
Bird Culture and Education Investment Group Co., Ltd., Zhuhai
Beida Education Science Park Co., Ltd., Beijing Jade Bird
Hongdao Education Consulting Co., Ltd., and Beijing Jade Bird
Education Technology Development Co., Ltd..

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tang Xuan, aged 51, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 15 May 2020. Mr. Tang graduated from
Chonggqing University with a Bachelor’s degree in engineering,
and is a certified accountant in the PRC and a member of the
Institute of Public Accountants in Australia. He worked in
Zhongxin Coopers Certified Public Accountants in the PRC
and is currently an audit partner of ShineWing Certified Public
Accountants in the PRC, and has 28 years of professional
experience in investment, finance and auditing. He has been
responsible for the audit assurance, special services, corporate
asset reorganization, restructuring and listing of some large
enterprise groups. He was an external independent director of
Zhongji Investment Co., Ltd. and an external expert committee
member of the loan review department of China Development
Bank. He is currently an independent director of Lizhong Sitong
Light Alloy Group Co., Ltd. (an A share company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 300428)) and an
independent director of Malo Medical Management Co., Ltd..
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Profile of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

ER-EFLARREHEZEN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Mr. Li Chonghua, aged 68, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 30 June 2015. Mr. Li is a member of
the Chinese Communist Party. He is a post-graduate, qualified
as economist, and holds a practicing certificate of securities
practitioner. He was the deputy chief economist, the director
of the integrated plan unit and the director of reformation of
Beijing Chemical Second Plant. He was the board secretary and
the director of securities department of Beijing Chemical Second
Plant Co., Ltd.. He was seconded to listed company regulatory

department of China Securities Regulatory Commission.

Mr. Shen Wei, aged 61, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 31 May 2018, Mr. Shen graduated
from the department of precision instruments of the Tsinghua
University with a Bachelor’s degree in engineering in 1985. Mr.
Shen co-founded “CIWEEK” and served as the first chief editor
in 1998, who has made contribution to the enlightenment
and development of internet in the PRC. He then co-founded
the website, namely “eNet” and Yinhe Liandong Information
Technology Company, and has extensive experience in internet
strategy, products and operations. Mr. Shen has dozens of
patented inventions in the field of two-dimensional code
technology. In 2015, Mr. Shen established Beijing Dama
Technology Co., Ltd. to focus on the application of innovative QR
code technology, especially the basic technology and application
in the field of secure QR code and multi-screen interaction.
Mr. Shen has worked for Beijing Institute of Optoelectronics
Technology, Beijing office of East Asiatic Company, Beijing
Changwei Technology Development Co., Ltd., CIWEEKLY, Yinhe
Liandong Information Technology Company, Beijing Huayu
Xinma Technology Co., Ltd., etc.. He is currently the founder and
chief executive officer of Beijing Dama Technology Co., Ltd..

CHIEF SCIENTIST

Professor Wang Yangyuan, aged 90, was appointed as the
Chief Scientist of the Company in May 2000. Professor Wang is
responsible for overall technological research and development
and monitoring the investment in Semiconductor Manufacturing

International Corporation.
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ER-EFLRREHEZ E

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Fan Yimin, aged 65, is the chairman of the Supervisory
Committee. Mr. Fan graduated from Zhejiang University with a
bachelor’s degree in Chinese language in 1981. Mr. Fan worked
in the liaison office of the people’s government of Zhejiang
Province, Zhejiang Foreign Trade Company and Zhejiang Qujiang
Industrial Company. He is currently a member of the management
committee of Lingyin Temple in Hangzhou, president of
Hangzhou Branch of the School of Chinese Culture and an
executive president of Beida Jade Bird, the chairman and general
manager of Beijing Beida Educational Investment Co., Ltd., the
director of Beijing Beida Jade Bird Software System Co., Ltd., the
chairman and general manager of Beijing Beida Online Network

o., Ltd., the executive partner of Shanghai Zhongju Planning
Consulting Partnership (Limited Partnership).

Mr. Ouyang Zishi, aged 68, was appointed as an independent
supervisor of the Company (the “Supervisor”) on 30 June
2015. Mr. Ouyang worked for Beijing Pastry Factory, the
Association of Culture and Arts in Beijing, the Audiovisual
Press of the Bureau of Culture in Beijing and the Beijing
Television. Mr. Ouyang was the director and producer of
“K¥HE”, a TV series, and the column director and producer
of “BINARE K", a TV program. Mr. Ouyang is currently the
executive director and the legal representative of Beijing Evercare

Shichiku Medical Beauty Clinic Company Limited.

Mr. Pan Yudong, aged 54, was appointed as a Supervisor on 31
May 2018, Mr. Pan is a senior engineer (professor level), and
graduated from department of computer science and technology
of Tsinghua University with a Bachelor’s degree in engineering in
July 1990. He has worked for Taiji Computer Company, Shenzhen
Taiji Software Company, Taiji-DEC Software Center, Beijing
Tiankeyi Technology Co., Ltd., Taiji United Laboratories of
Ministry of Information Industry, Beijing Hengdefang Company,
Anshi Internet Security (China) Co., Ltd., Beijing Qiming
Xingchen Information Security Technology Co., Ltd., Beijing
Yongxin Zhicheng Technology Co., Ltd., Harbin Antiy Technology
Group Co., Ltd., etc. He was the chief strategy officer of 360
Government & Enterprise Security Group. Mr. Pan is currently
the chief strategy officer of Venustech Group Inc. (an A share
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:

002439)) and the director of China Computer Federation.
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Profile of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

ER-EFLARREHEZEN

SUPERVISORS (CONTINUED)

Ms. Cao Zhenzhen, aged 41, was appointed as a Supervisor
on 21 May 2021. Ms. Cao graduated from Hubei University
with a Bachelor’s degree in Chinese language and literature
in 2002 and subsequently obtained a Master’s degree in law
at Peking University in 2005. Ms. Cao joined the Company in
2005. She is currently the investment manager of the Company
and the supervisor of Beijing Jade Bird Hengsheng Investment

Management Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company.

Ms. Zhou Min, aged 47, is a Supervisor. Ms. Zhou graduated
from the Department of Administration Management of Renmin
University of China with a Bachelor’s degree in Laws. She
obtained a Master’s degree in economics from the University
of International Business and Economics in 2005. Ms. Zhou
joined Beida Jade Bird in July 1999 and subsequently joined
the Company in March 2000. She is primarily responsible for
administration and human resources of the Company. She is the

employee representative of the Supervisory Committee.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Chi Hung, aged 48, is the financial controller and
company secretary of the Company. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor
degree in Business Administration in Accounting from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology. Mr. Chan has over 25
years of experience in finance, accounting, company secretarial
and compliance areas and worked for international accounting
firms and listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified

Accountants. Mr. Chan joined the Group in September 2012.

Mr. Hu Lushan, aged 57, attended post-graduation level. Mr.
Hu is a senior accountant, and holds the certificate of senior
accountant, the certificate of senior tax agent and the certificate
of Certified Management Accountant (CMA). He has worked in
Beijing Building Materials Millstone Factory of Beijing Building
Materials Group as the accountant, the chief accountant and
the finance director; Beijing Yiheng Decoration Design Co., Ltd.
as the finance manager; and Beijing Northern Electric Power
Engineering Co., Ltd of the China Electricity Council as the
finance manager. Mr. Hu joined the Company in June 2001 and is

the person in charge of finance department of the Company.
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The Directors hereby present their annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and

the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is engaged in the investment holding during the
year. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note
44 to the consolidated financial statements. Further discussion
and analysis of business review of these activities, including a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group and an indication of likely future development in the
Group’s business, can be found in the Management Discussion
and Analysis set out on pages 5 to 21 of this annual report. Such

discussion forms part of this report of the Directors.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2023 is set

out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 69 to 70.
The state of affairs of the Group and the Company at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 71
to 72 and note 38(a) to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
(2022: Nil) for the year.

On 8 August 2023, the Board proposed the payment of an interim
dividend (the “Interim Dividend”) of RMBO0.067 per ordinary
share (inclusive of applicable tax) for the six months ended 30
June 2023 (six months ended 30 June 2022: Nil) amounting to
approximately RMB101.5 million (inclusive of applicable tax) for
the six months ended 30 June 2023 (six months ended 30 June
2022: Nil). The approval of the shareholders of the Company in
respect of the proposed payment of the Interim Dividend was
obtained at the special general meeting of the Company on 13
October 2023. The Interim Dividend was payable on 29 December
2023.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years is set out on page 211. This summary does not form part of

the audited consolidated financial statements.

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR

Report of the Directors
wEHEFHRE

EHTERREARALAAAEEEE - F
TEET A=t HIEEEZ R R
7] 6 25 4% S5 A WA K o

3 %38 B B 5 5 1ol Rl

A B A RGeS BUE L o HLMHE o ® £

TS WO B IS IR R I 44 o 2R E)

5 [ i 2 — AP R o M LA A 4R

[EESLER YN e NS & SR

%i%T%%% WRAFRFIHEH21H
T e b AT o ME RS A R
*%M} °

% NE & HX PS5

AEMEE -Z=F T HA=1T—HILHF
JE 2 EENE60H BEET0HE 2 45 B M
F oo AREE B AN AR H Z ZEEAR W5 A
BN r M B MERENEEZEEURES
TR i 3R BT 5138 () o

S AN R UK AR R R I (
i)

L

MoFEZHENANE BHEGHSEREE
TR T AR H = H RS A TRA AR
B (T # e D &% 8 A R¥0.06770
(HHARIE) (BE_F_FNH=THIE
NWH ) > BEZF = NA=THIE
AR H A B AR A B N RIEL.015608 00
(TP ABIH) (BE_F_F A =1TH1
ANEH ) o AN AR ZF =4 A
= H B B AL A R K b ok
RIS RIS - R E B R R AR
TZAZ B RS -

A %5 & B HE 22

A A [ AR A R B AR A 2 SE AR DA B
B~ FBE S TR I AR 2 M A 211 E o
AR BN JE RS AL S A M R R 2 — 4 o

28



Report of the Directors
EE Aok e

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 19 to the consolidated

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set

out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK AND OTHER LOANS

Details of the bank and other loans of the Group are set out in

note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the properties held for investment are set out in note 20

to the consolidated financial statements and on page 210.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association of the Company (the “Articles”) or the Company
Law of the PRC which oblige the Company to offer new shares on

a pro rata basis to its existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out
in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements and in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, an amount of approximately RMB605.8
million (2022: RMB605.8 million) standing to the credit of
the Company’s capital reserve account and an amount of
approximately RMB86.7 million (2022: RMB86.7 million)
standing to the credit of the Company’s statutory reserve funds, as
determined under the PRC accounting standards and regulations,
were available for distribution by way of future capitalisation
issue in accordance with the PRC Company Law. The Company
had, as described in note 38(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, retained profits of approximately RMB622.1 million
(2022: RMB128.3 million) as at 31 December 2023. Details of the
distributable reserves are set out in note 39 to the consolidated

financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the revenue
attributable to the Group’s largest customer accounted for
approximately 33.1% (2022: 25.1%) of the Group’s total revenue
and the revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 58.7% (2022: 57.9%) of the total

revenue.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the costs incurred
in respect of the Group’s largest supplier accounted for
approximately 67.2% (2022: 59.1%) of the Group’s total cost of
sales and services and the costs incurred in respect of the Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 74.5% (2022:

66.2%) of the Group’s total cost of sales and services.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and

suppliers.

DONATIONS

The Group had not made any donations during the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: Nil).
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Directors and Supervisors during the year and at the year end
are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ni Jinlei

Ms. Zheng Zhong
Mr. Wang Xingye
Ms. Guan Xueming

Non-executive Director

Mr. Liu Ziyi

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tang Xuan
Mr. Li Chonghua
Mr. Shen Wei

Supervisors

Mr. Fan Yimin

Mr. Ouyang Zishi
Mr. Pan Yudong
Ms. Cao Zhenzhen
Ms. Zhou Min

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles, all Directors and
Supervisors are eligible for re-election.

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Profile of Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 22 to 27.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

Mr. Liu Ziyi was appointed for a term commencing from 20 May
2022 until the conclusion date of annual general meeting to be
held by the Company in 2024. Each of the other Directors and
Supervisors has entered into a service contract with the Company

for a term of three years commencing on 21 May 2021.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or Supervisors has
any existing or proposed service contracts with the Company as at
31 December 2023, excluding contracts expiring or determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without

payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors the written annual confirmation of its
independence pursuant to rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company, based on such confirmation, considers all of the

independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement and contract of significance to which
the Company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or Supervisor of
the Company had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Saved as disclosed under the section “Connected transactions”
below, there is no material contract between the Group and the

controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company

were entered into or existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’,

EXE

SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
CUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT

POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests (including interests in

share

s and short positions) of Directors, Supervisors, and chief

executives of the Company in the shares of the Company (the

“Shares”) and underlying Shares of the Company or any of its

associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the

Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), as recorded in the

register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of

the S

FO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules, were as

follows:

Long

positions in the Shares and underlying Shares

EH - B RE s ITBA BR B &
R B it fr 2 HE 2 B2 38 AT

=+ H=1t—H #HE B
Fe A o 7] f e A7 BON B A 24 =) B AR B
B E 98 LB R RO B (138 27 B B
oA 1) SEXVER) 2 ey (T et 1) Be A B Fse
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TSR R RA) WE

JB U B AH B I Ay 2 % A

Approximate
percentage of
total number

Approximate Approximate

ofissued  percentage of  percentage of
Interest in nonlisted  total number total number
non-listed Shares of issued of issued
Shares Interest in g H Shares Shares
Name Capacity HA L H Shares 3 L ey SR THY CE
4 LU RG#E  RHRZES SURGHIL AUBAHIK QUEAEIK
Supervisor
E%
Ms. Zhou Min Beneficiary of trust 205,414,000 - 29.34% - 18.56%
gt [FFEZEA
Non-executive Director
Farnas
Mr. Liu Ziyi Beneficial owner - 2,811,000 - 0.28% 0.15%
BBk 55 LN
Note: The above Supervisor is taken to be interested in the issued share Mt - Ll B g5 R B Sy Heng Huatfs 5E ([ Heng

33

capital of the Company through her interest as beneficiary, among
other beneficiaries, of Heng Huat trust (“Heng Huat Trust”). By a
declaration of Heng Huat Trust made as a deed on 19 July 2000, the
shares of Heng Huat Investments Limited (*“Heng Huat”) were held
as trustees for the benefits of over 300 employees of Beijing Beida
Jade Bird Software System Co., Ltd., Beijing Beida Jade Bird Limited
and Beijing Beida Yu Huan Microelectronics System Engineering
Co., Ltd. and their respective subsidiaries and associated companies
and the Company. Heng Huat is beneficially interested in the entire
issued share capital of Dynamic Win Assets Limited (“Dynamic
Win”), and is taken to be interested in 205,414,000 Shares which
Dynamic Win is interested.
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Huatfi 7€]) HoZ s A2 5 » ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ/\
21—‘/\75?‘1 JREAS A HE 2 o ARGE I
ZHELAH L HU?@%E/iWﬂZHen

;Iuadna%ﬁﬁﬂ N A
Wl 2 A AT - stk B A BB

N 7] B AU AR T BRI T RS R4 A L
BoAp s 4 B 2 Wb g 2 71 B Vg 4 A LA BOA
Al A3004% R B 2 Fl % » £ A Heng Huat
Investments Limited ([ Heng Huat |) Z i
{1t o Heng Huat ] 4 # A BOW5 B 2 A7 FR 2 )
([0 1) 40 E B AT oA i - D A 4 Y
%%%ﬁ%ﬁm% 414,000/ B £ o B4

 Annual Report 2023



DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (CONTINUED)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, Supervisors and
chief executives of the Company had registered an interest or
short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company
or any of its associated corporations that was required to be
recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to rule
5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules as at 31 December 2023.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in the Company granted to
any Director and Supervisor or their respective spouse or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors and Supervisors to acquire such rights in any other body

corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS

IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2023, the following interests and short positions
of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded in the

register of interests required to be maintained by the Company

pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares

2 BB R B At N R JB By B R B M
fr 2 HE i e 8

LA

B B A BRI Ay 2 5 A

Interest in

Approximate  Approximate

MoEZ =44+ HA=+—H  BEHENK
) B G0 26 33 65 KR T8 AR /> I ZE AT B 2 M 2 B
O A GO BE T SIAS A T B B AT A 2 ME 25

Approximate

percentage of percentage of percentage of

total number  total number

total number

nonlisted  Interestin of issued non- of issued of issued
Name of shareholder Note ~ Capacity Shares H Shares listed Shares H Shares Shares
G AW g g
TR L rHR RAEY%  HRAY RBAY
e 3 4 7 Wit ah B by 2 & s BATAK  BATWAR  BAESK
Peking University (a)  Interest of controlled corporation 85,000,000 = 12.14% = 5.61%
-V ZHREEE G
Beida Asset Management Co., Ltd. (a)  Interest of controlled corporation 85,000,000 - 12.14% - 5.61%
IREEEEARAH Siaiy. L 4]
Beijing Beida Jade Bird (a)  Interest of controlled corporation 85,000,000 = 12.14% = 5.61%
Software System Co., Ltd.
ERAKERENASGERAT TG
Beida Microelectronics Investment (a)  Interest of controlled corporation 85,000,000 - 12.14% - 5.61%
Limited
ERMETREARAF ZEEEEL
Gifted Pillar Limited (a)  Interest of controlled corporation 85,000,000 - 12.14% - 5.61%
ZHEmEL
Rainbow Mountain Holdings Limited (a)  Interest of controlled corporation 85,000,000 - 12.14% - 5,61%
FRERARAF ZEEEEL
Beijing Rainbow Mountain Sci-Tech (a)  Beneficial owner 85,000,000 = 12.14% = 5.61%
Development Co., Ltd.
RF M RARAA &5 2 DN
Cai Yiwen (b)  Interest of controlled corporation 115,000,000 - 16.43% - 7.59%
En% ZEEMEL
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(CONTINUED)

Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares (Continued)

Ji oy B A B Mt Ay 2 4 A ()

Approximate Approximate ~Approximate

percentage of percentage of percentage of
total number

Interest in total number  total number

non-listed Interest in of issued non- of issued of issued
Name of shareholder Note  Capacity Shares H Shares listed Shares H Shares Shares
CH AT b C#f o
AR rER  RBAY HRtEY  RhAY
B4 18 Wit b it < B i iR BoEsk  BAEAK  MAEIL
Cancun Holdings Limited (b)  Interest of controlled corporation 115,000,000 - 16.43% - 7.59%
KEHRARAA TEEWES
Rainbow Wave Investment Limited (b)  Interest of controlled corporation 115,000,000 - 16.43% - 7.59%
FRREERAA ZEEA L
Nanhai Huancheng Technology Co., Ltd. ~ (b)  Interest of controlled corporation 115,000,000 - 16.43% = 7.59%
LI ARA THEEEES
Shenzhen Yingtai Industrial (b)  Beneficial owner 115,000,000 - 16.43% - 7.59%
Investment Co., Ltd.
R R R EEREARAR L DN
Grand Fast (HK.) Limited Beneficial owner 110,000,000 - 15.71% - 7.26%
fRE (F) ARAF 8L DN
Heng Huat Investments Limited (c)  Interest of controlled corporation 205,414,000 = 29.34% = 13.56%
TrEEER
Dynamic Win Assets Limited (c)  Beneficial owner 205,414,000 - 29.34% - 13.56%
YBEEHRAR BHAA
Mongolia Energy Corporation Limited (d)  Interest of controlled corporation 84,586,000 = 12.08% = 5.58%
FHRBARAA ZEEm L
New View Venture Limited (d)  Beneficial owner 84,586,000 - 12.08% - 5.58%
-2 Z:DN
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER = R R B At N i I B hH B e
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS tr Z BE #2 B iR A (%)

IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

(CONTINUED)

Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares (Continued) JBE 4y B AH B I 4 2 4 A (48

Approximate Approximate ~Approximate

percentage of percentage of percentage of

Interest in total number total number total number
non-listed Interest in of issued non- of issued of issued
Name of shareholder Note  Capacity Shares H Shares  listed Shares H Shares Shares

G Ll g#f gt
£ ‘R RGA%  HREE  ROAY

B 34 1R Wit S Tt 2 W i <HEs  WAEAK  BATAR  HATAK
Asian Technology Investment Beneficial owner 50,000,000 - 7.14% - 3.30%
Company Limited

W B AR A HaHA A

Huang Taomei (e)  Interest of controlled corporation - 126,214,000 = 15.50% 8.33%

HHk THEEER

Merida Group Limited (e)  Interest of controlled corporation - 126,214,000 - 15.50% 8.33%
E B

Nippon Incubation Co. Ltd. (e)  Interest of controlled corporation - 126,214,000 = 15.50% 8.33%
THEEER

Brilliant Smile Limited (e)  Interest of controlled corporation - 126,214,000 - 15.50% 8.33%
SHEEER

Asia Development Capital (HK) Limited ~ (e) ~ Beneficial owner - 126,214,000 - 15.50% 8.33%
EREAN
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(CONTINUED)

Long

positions in the Shares and underlying Shares (Continued)

Notes:

(d)

AR T HRT R A RAF -

Peking University is taken to be interested in 5.61% of the total
issued share capital of the Company through 85 million non-listed
Shares (representing approximately 5.61% of the Company’s total
issued share capital) in which Beijing Rainbow Mountain Sci-
Tech Development Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Rainbow Mountain”) is
interested. Peking University owns 100% equity interest in Beida
Asset Management Co., Ltd. which in turn owns 48% equity interest
in Beijing Beida Jade Bird Software System Co., Ltd. which in turn
owns 100% equity interest in Beida Microelectronics Investment
Limited which in turn owns 46% equity interest in Gifted Pillar
Limited which in turn owns 100% equity interest in Rainbow
Mountain Holdings Limited which in turn owns 100% equity interest

in Beijing Rainbow Mountain.

These non-listed Shares are held by Shenzhen Yingtai Industrial
Investment Co., Ltd., which in turn wholly owned by Nanhai
Huancheng Technology Co., Ltd., which in turn wholly owned by
Rainbow Wave Investment Limited, which in turn wholly owned by

Cancun Holdings Limited, which in turn wholly owned by Cai Yiwen.

The non-listed Shares are held by Dynamic Win, which is beneficially
wholly-owned by Heng Huat. Please refer to the note to the section
“Directors, Supervisors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
positions in shares and underlying shares” above for further details

of Heng Huat.

The non-listed Shares are held by New View Venture Limited, which
is wholly-owned by Mongolia Energy Corporation Limited.

These H Shares are held by Asia Development Capital (HK) Limited,
which is wholly owned by Brilliant Smile Limited which is in turn
wholly owned by Nippon Incubation Co., Ltd, which is in turn wholly
owned by Merida Group Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by

Huang Taomei.
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(a)

()

(d)

jbﬁkﬁ*%ﬁ%ﬁﬁy%‘i@jh?%ﬁmﬁﬂr&%%ﬁFE
2y a) (THE 5 R 0 1) A5 ob AT BE 42 198,500
B IR BT R ( 152'5’\15?‘ (T A 48 B
#15.61%) HEH A28 7 3T e A< 4 845,61 %
MEZE o bR ERHEAT Jb K& 5 R A PR )
100% B HE - ML R G iR a A IR AR HEA
b mt bk B A R S04 PR 748 % IR HE
ML bR 75 Sk 2 %A PR "l A bk
TR TR E A PR F100% M0 - i 4k K 6%
&% & A FRA A ¥ A Gifted Pillar Limited
46% WEHE > 1M Gifted Pillar Limited ¥ A % 1§
P2 AT BN R 100 % 1 A > i R 04 42 i A7 PR
N FHEAT b 5OR 1100 % B HE -

A IR b Ry by RN T A E AR E A IR
AR RN 3R A BOE AT PR W
H P i ) R RN R A EHEAT - T P i
ZPRHEARA A BB EARAASE
BAT > MR RSB A R Ry I R HE AT R
O EAERAT o TR B A AT PR B e 2%
oL EHA

S5 I BT RAR h BOBRAT - M EU% i Heng
Huat® G H 5 # A o B Heng HuatlY £
VN WS M L TES - BRI m AT
N B IR B R BRI 5y 2 2 B IR | —
A B 5 o

%% JE B B i New View Venture
Limited##4 > M New View Venture Limited
MR RA A 'R -

#% % HK H Asia Development Capital (HK)
Limitedff A - TfiAsia Development Capital
(HK) LimitedH# Brilliant Smile Limited
¥ HE A > MBrilliant Smile LimitedH
Ld® HHA -
MNippon Incubation Co., Ltd# Merida
Group Limited2 &# A > lMiMerida Group
Limited H &k ily 2 B HEA -

Nippon Incubation Co.,
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(CONTINUED)

Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, no person, other than the Directors and
Supervisors, whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’,
Supervisors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions in
shares and underlying shares” above, had registered interests or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO as at 31 December 2023.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
For the year ended 31 December 2023, the related party

transactions as disclosed in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements do not constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules, which are required to comply with any of the
reporting, announcement or independent Shareholders’ approval

requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors and Supervisors
and their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) had interests in a business which competes or may compete
with the businesses of the Group, or may have any conflicts of

interest with the Group pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group strictly complies with applicable labour law and
regulations both in the PRC and Hong Kong. Competitive
remuneration package with medical and travel insurance offered
to the staff. Adequate retirement fund and provident fund are

contributed timely.

The emolument policy of the Directors is structured by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to their functions and

contributions to the Group.

Details of retirement benefit schemes of the Group are set out in

note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the GEM Listing Rules.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant event after reporting period of the Group are

set out in note 45 the consolidated financial statements.
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DIVIDEND POLICY
Under the policy on payment of dividends adopted by the

Company, the Company may declare and distribute dividends to
the Shareholders to allow Shareholders to share the Company’s
profits and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for
future growth. The payment of any dividend shall be determined
or recommended, as appropriate, by the Board at its absolute
discretion after taking into account the Group’s financial results,
prospects, the level of the debts and equity ratio, liquidity and
capital requirement and other factors that the Board considers
relevant, and subject to the Articles, the requirements of the
GEM Listing Rules and all relevant applicable laws, rules and
regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate governance report of the Company is set out on pages

45 to 60 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

A separate environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) report
of the Company will be available at the website of the Company
under “Announcement” section and the website of the Stock
Exchange by the end of April 2024.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2023 and
up to the date of this report, there was or is, any permitted
indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any of the
Directors or an associate company. The Company has arranged
appropriate insurance cover for Directors’, Supervisors’ and
senior management’s liabilities in respect of legal actions against
its Directors, Supervisors and senior management arising out of

corporate activities.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023 have been audited by BDO Limited who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment at

the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Ni Jinlei

Chairman and Executive Director

Beijing, the PRC
28 March 2024
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

B ek

To the Shareholders:

We have monitored the operation and management of the
Group as well as the act of the Directors and senior management
faithfully throughout the year ended 31 December 2023. We have
discharged our supervisory duties under the general principle
of honesty and integrity and have strictly complied with the
requirements of the “Company Law of the PRC”, the GEM Listing
Rules and the Articles. We are accountable to the Shareholders
and have safeguarded the interests of the Shareholders, the Group
and its staff.

The Supervisors during the year and up to the date of this report

are as follows:

Mr. Fan Yimin

Mr. Ouyang Zishi
Mr. Pan Yudong
Ms. Zhou Min

Ms. Cao Zhenzhen

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles, all Supervisors

are eligible for re-election.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, we have held four
meetings of the eighth session. The following table set out the

attendance of each member in these meetings:

B L BOR

BE_F_=#F+"A=Z=+—HILFEE &K
EHEGCLHFEAEM 2 EEREM - D
LR U 2 KRB AEF e
i SRR AT B T > Sl BAR ST [ B A A
] > GEM L RLAI e mARAN R 2 BLE - A
g m R AT I CREERR - AL
LA B 2 HELR -

FERREEARARE A ZBERENT

LRk
NG R ap s
A+
EHRP Lt

MRS > P B 4T & EAR E
BEAE -

JVJE B 2 B AT T PR ik o N R 45
F 4 9 2 O

Attendance

Name 24 Eighth Session
BN JE

Mr. Fan Yimin o—RSeE 4/4
Mr. Ouyang Zishi Bk 5 1 A1 B4R 4/4
Mr. Pan Yudong TR A 4/4
Ms. Zhou Min Jalf e & 4/4
Ms. Cao Zhenzhen TR L+ 4/4
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

We convened the four meetings to review the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022, the three months ended 31 March 2023, the six months
ended 30 June 2023 and the nine months ended 30 September
2023, respectively.

Subsequent to the year end, we convened the eighth meeting of
the eighth session to review the annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

As a result of the work done above, we are in a position to express

our independent opinion in respect of the following matters:

1.  The first, second and third quarterly results and annual
results of the Group for 2023 have reflected the financial
and operating positions of the Group on a true and fair

basis.

2. The senior management of the Group has not abused their
authority to prejudice the interests of the Shareholders, the
Group and its staff, nor contravened the laws and regulations

and the Articles in discharging its duties.

3. The Group was not threatened with any major litigation
nor was there any matter that we had intervened with or

threatened against the Board.

4. The connected transactions of the Group were fair and
reasonable. No act prejudicing the interests of the Group has

been identified.

We would like to express our appreciation for the strenuous
supports given by the Shareholders, the Directors and all staff to

our work during the year.

BY ORDER OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Fan Yimin

Chairman

Beijing, the PRC
28 March 2024
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Corporate Governance Report
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FRAMEWORK
The Company developed a set of documents (the “CG

Documents”) with reference to the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix Cl of the GEM Listing
Rules then in force during the year to govern its corporate
practice.

The documents are as follows:

1. CC Code;

2. Securities Dealing Code (the “Securities Code”);

3. Duties of the Board of Directors;

4.  Segregation of Duties between the Chairman and the

President;
5. Board Diversity Policy;

6. Disciplinary Rules of the Company;

7. Term of Reference on the Audit Committee;
8. Term of Reference on the Remuneration Committee; and
9. Term of Reference on the Nomination Committee.

The Board is of the view that the Company has complied with all
the code provisions of the CG Code as set out in Appendix C1 of
the GEM Listing Rules then in force during the year ended 31
December 2023.
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Corporate Governance Report

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Securities Code on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. All Directors as well as
employees who are likely to be in possession of inside information
are governed by the Securities Code. Having made specific
enquiries, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the Securities Code all over the year ended 31 December 2023.
The Company is not aware of any employee who does not comply

with the Securities Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders. Detail
responsibilities of the Board are laid down on the Articles. Major

duties include:

1.  convening Shareholders’ meeting and reporting work of the

Board to Shareholders;

2. execution of resolution passed in Shareholders’ meeting;
3. deciding business plan and investment proposal;
4. formulation plans for change in registered capital and

issuance of bond;

5. formulation of major merger and acquisition plan and

disposal plan;

6.  formulation of job segregation and dissolution plan for the

Company if necessary;

7.  employment and dismissal of general manager; and

8. formulation proposal for amendment to the Articles.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions such as developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies, practices on corporate governance; reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management and the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements; developing, reviewing and monitoring
the CG Documents; reviewing the Company’s compliance with the
CG Code; etc.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Responsibilities (Continued)

All Directors are free to access to corporate information for the
purpose of discharging their duties and responsibilities. They
may seek independent professional advice if necessary at the
Company’s cost. All Directors have unrestricted access to the

company secretary and senior management of the Company.

The Board delegated the management team with the
responsibilities for the day-to-day management, administration

and operation of the Group.

Composition

As at 31 December 2023, the composition of the eighth session of

the Board is as follows:

EHG (H)

Tk 35 (4

Jv A 2 2 T B A B A SE R > 85 RE A
JEAT FB L S BAT o HEHAE A T B A] S 0R
B EERR > BABALFA - A E
AT AN R 1 2 A T 22 N R
HEFANE -

8 S 5 R L A S
7B R -

DA =R il

RoEFEZEHFT A=+ H BN R
gZREHAGMT

Date of first

Date of latest

Name Position Gender Age appointment re-election
HK 3

k44 -4/ el 4 i BEREHH i 5% H )

Ni Jinlei Executive Director, Chairman M% 56 30/6/2015 21/5/2021

i 4 % WirESE - I

Zheng Zhong Executive Director, President Fi 47 21/6/2012 21/5/2021

W WirES - AR

Wang Xingye Executive Director ME 46 21/5/2021 N/AA#

TR YrES

Guan Xueming Executive Director Fi 52 21/5/2021 N/ARNEH

L] HEH

Liu Ziyi Non-executive Director MH 30 20/5/2022 N/AAR#

LRE FUfTES

Tang Xuan Independent non-executive Director M 51 15/5/2020 21/5/2021

% WL U E R

Li Chonghua Independent non-executive Director M5 68 30/6/2015 21/5/2021

BRI EDEE

Shen Wei Independent non-executive Director M% 61 31/5/2018 21/5/2021

WAk WL AT E

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other

material/relevant relationship with each other.

Profiles of the Directors are detailed on pages 22 to 25 of this

annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Liu Ziyi was appointed for a term commencing from 20 May
2022 until the conclusion date of annual general meeting to be
held by the Company in 2024. All other Directors were appointed
for a term of three years starting from 21 May 2021. All Directors

are eligible for re-election.

In compliance with rules 5.05(1) and (2), and 5.05A of the GEM
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three independent
non-executive Directors, at least one of whom has appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise, representing at least one-third of the
Board. Each independent non-executive Director has confirmed
to the Company in respect of his independence pursuant to rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules by way of an annual confirmation
for the year ended 31 December 2023. The Company continues
to consider all independent non-executive Directors to be

independent.

Pursuant to the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division
of responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive
should be clearly established and set out in writing. To ensure a
balance of power and authority, the roles of the chairman and the
president of the Company are segregated and performed by Mr.
Ni Jinlei and Ms. Zheng Zhong respectively.

The Board convened 5 meetings during the year. Apart from
approval of 2023 quarterly and 2022 annual results, the Company
convened meetings and passed resolutions mainly to consider
and approve the proposal for the ordinary businesses and
transactions of the Company. The Company notifies the Directors
with sufficient time in advance and provides them with detailed
agenda and sufficient information before each Board meeting
and sub-committee meeting. The Company gives at least 15 days
advance notice before each regular Board meeting. Individual
attendance records of each Director at the respective Board and
sub-committee meetings are set out in the table on page 52 of this

annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance for all
Directors, Supervisors and certain management. No claims were
raised during the year against potential legal action arising from
their jobs.

Pursuant to code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. For the year ended 31 December 2023, all Directors have
participated in appropriate continuous professional development
activities by attending training courses on the topic related to ESG
governance and reporting and trading arrangements for corporate

actions.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board established 3 committees to carry out certain duties.
They are the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of the
Company.

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the requirements as
set out in the GEM Listing Rules. The Audit Committee is
accountable to the Board. Its primary duties include monitoring
the financial reporting system and risk management and internal
control systems of the Group, reviewing financial information,
and advising the Board on engagement and independence of
independent auditors.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Tang Xuan, Mr. Li Chonghua
and Mr. Shen Wei. Mr. Tang Xuan is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the financial
reporting matters including the annual results for the year ended
31 December 2023 with the management and the independent
auditor.

During the year, the Audit Committee had convened 5 meetings to
review the three 2023 quarterly results and 2022 annual results of
the Group and issues in respect of annual audits of the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements as
set out in the GEM Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee
is accountable to the Board. It is mainly responsible for advising
the Board on remuneration policy of the Board itself and senior
management, advising the Board on remuneration of non-
executive Directors, structuring the remuneration package of
all executive Directors and senior management, and review and

approval of performance bonus.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Shen Wei and
Mr. Li Chonghua and one executive Director, namely Mr. Ni Jinlei.
Mr. Shen Wai is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. A
meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held during the year
to review the remuneration package of the Board, the Supervisors

and the senior management of the Company.

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements as
set out in the GEM Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee is
accountable to the Board. Its primary duties include reviewing the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) and making recommendations to the Board after
such review; identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and making recommendations to the Board on
the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships; assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors; and
making recommendations to the Board on appointment or re-
appointment of the Directors and succession planning for the

Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

The Nomination Committee has adopted a nomination policy
which sets out the selection criteria and nomination procedures
of a Director. In selecting and recommending candidates for
directorships, the Nomination Committee would consider the
candidate’s character and integrity, qualifications, professional
competence, knowledge, experience, independence, other
relevant criteria necessary to complement the business
development needs of the Group, and the elements of the policy
concerning the diversification of member of the Board. The
nomination procedures of a Director include nomination of
suitable candidates by any member of the Nomination Committee
or the Board; evaluation of the candidate by the Board based on
all selection criteria as set out in the nomination policy; assessing
the candidate’s independence under the GEM Listing Rules in
case of nomination of an independent non-executive Director;
making recommendation for the Board’s consideration and
approval; and convening a general meeting by the Board to obtain

approval from the Shareholders.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises two executive
Director, namely Mr. Ni Jinlei and Ms. Zheng Zhong and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Tang Xuan,
Mr. Li Chonghua and Mr. Shen Wei. Mr. Ni Jinlei is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee. One meeting of the Nomination
Committee was held during the year to review the structure and

composition of the Board.
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Ak 26 B R Ol
DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORD AT R AL
MEETINGS
Details of attendance of the Directors at the Board and sub- NRE _F_=ZFT A= —HIEFEE
committee meetings, as well as general meetings during the year HRNFESGLNMEZE G B E
ended 31 December 2023 are as follows: 2N Bl
Attendance
H 3
General
Meetings/
Audit Remuneration = Nomination Class
Name 4 Board Committee Committee Committee Meetings
i k&
HHE HBRZEEE FHMZHEE  RAZEE JHNRKE
Eighth Eighth Seventh Fourth
Session Session Session Session
B\ JE YN B cAUPE
Executive Directors HAlrEH
Mr. Ni Jinlei e e 5/5  N/ARHE 1/1 1/1 3/3
Ms. Zheng Zhong BEL+ 4/4  N/ARNER  N/ARER 1/1 3/3
Mr. Wang Xingye FHERE 4/4  N/ASNER  N/AREA  N/ARER 3/3
Ms. Guan Xueming HENZ L 4/4  N/AANER  N/ARER  N/AREH 3/3
Non-executive Director FHITEE
M. Liu Ziyi Bl REE 5/5  N/ANEM  N/ARER  N/AREH 1/1
Independent B FHITEF
non-execultive Directors
Mr. Tang Xuan JE A 5/5 5/5  N/ARER 1/1 3/3
Mr. Li Chonghua RN 5/5 5/5 1/1 1/1 3/3
Mr. Shen Wei VAL e 5/ 1/1 lyd 3/3

There were 2 special general meetings held during the year ended BE-Z - =HF+"HA=+—HILFEES
31 December 2023. TR R K o
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisory Committee was set up according to the Articles
and is accountable to the Shareholders. It is mainly responsible
for monitoring the operation and management of the Company as
well as the act of Directors and senior management to prevent any
abuse of power and infringement of interests on Shareholders, the

Company and employees.

The Supervisory Committee currently comprises five members.
The chairman is Mr. Fan Yimin. The other four members are
Mr. Ouyang Zishi, Mr. Pan Yudong, Ms. Zhou Min and Ms. Cao
Zhenzhen. Ms. Zhou Min and Ms. Cao Zhenzhen are the employee

representative.

All Supervisors were appointed for a term of three years starting
from 21 May 2021. All Supervisors are eligible for re-election.
Profiles of the Supervisors are detailed on pages 26 to 27 of this

annual report.

Attendance of meetings

The Supervisory Committee convened 4 meetings during the year.

The following table sets out the attendance of each members in

these meetings:

o

EHE g MERM AL A BORA R -
BRI EARBEEARNFZEEREHRT
EURER RSREBANBZATR > LBk
T B A ARIBOR ~ AN R R R B MR -

BEHEGgHMMIANBAN > ERAE—R
Serk > HERI A B BRI T A e T
Wk~ FM A E R L+ - Mgkt
LFEHFE L L HEBRE-

PR AT B2 T T = —
St REGHAMEE . A EESA R
AT

55 o R I O AR R 26 H BER2TH o

{

iR
W S N A T B Y R B o

TR E A T ZEGRZEI

Name A Attendance
i 2

Eighth Session

ENJE

Mr. Fan Yimin u—ReE 4/4
Mr. Ouyang Zishi W15 11 SR AL
Mr. Pan Yudong W F R 4/4
Ms. Zhou Min Jc + 4/4
Ms. Cao Zhenzhen EES SR 4/4

The meetings were convened to review the financial statements of

the Group.

A B A i B 2 B A S 2 B R R -
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
accounts of the Company. As at 31 December 2023, the Directors
were not aware of any material uncertainties or events which may
have a significant impact on the Company’s ability to operate as a

going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group are

set out in the independent auditor’s report.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2023, senior management of
the Company comprises 2 individuals. The senior management’s
remuneration payment of the Company during the year ended 31

December 2023 falls within the following bands:

i S gk

HAE K B
EHMREFHARRRARARE - R
FOZFFA=ZF—H o BEFRAA #
AT o] FE KA B B D R B AT R A
R a8 s 2 B8 7 U R B -

AN ) S ST A 15 26 3 A S T B S R
Jiv B SUAT ) A B SO 8 S A BT A A

= A% B i
NEREFE_=F+ A=+ —HILEE
ARFEBE A2 AL - REEE
CEET A= HIREE  AQFE R
B G 2 AT KA R DA T

Number of

Individuals

N

RMB500,000 to RMB1,000,000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Group’s auditors’ remuneration for the year ended 31

AR #500,0000C 2 A K #1,000,0007C 2

¥ 3 4% B Rl
BME_Z =+ A=+—HILFEE > &

December 2023 comprised of: B2 A% B 2 P < B0 4
RMB’000
AR Tt

Remuneration paid/payable to BDO @ 4F B % BUR S B HE A AR 2 ]

and its member firm, the Company’s 8 37 % 2 fifi 3715 7 5% K H il B 28 7 2 B 4

independent auditor in respect of

annual audit services 2,140
Remuneration paid to BDO in respect HUER o S B B R A% OIS A

of non-audit services in relation to the A B EE T4

partial disposal of Jade Bird Fire 423
Overprovision of auditors’ remuneration 715 8 5% [ H 5 B 24 ] 22 6 % 758 4 A% S i

to BDO and its member firm (143)
Remuneration paid/payable to other g7/ & Bt J& 2 5 & %5 2 4~

accounting firms in the PRC in JREAST v 130 L Ath B T S5 S BT 2 T 4

relation to audit services for the

subsidiaries of the Company 24

2,444

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR
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DIVERSITY
The Board has adopted a policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”)

concerning the diversification of members of the Board. In setting
the composition of the Board, the Company will consider the
diversification of members of the Board from various aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, race, professional experience, skills and knowledge.
All appointments to the Board will be based on meritocracy and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The selection of
candidates for the Board will be based on a range of diversified
categories, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, race, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
The Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board under diversified perspectives and
monitored the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy to
ensure its effectiveness. The Nomination Committee considered
the current structure, size and composition of the Board could
meet the business development needs of the Group and the Group

achieved the Board Diversity Policy.

As at 31 December 2023, the Board’s composition under

diversified perspectives was summarized as follows:

Z ik
EHFORMBERERGRAEZ TILZE
ROHEFFWEZIULEER])  RBRLER
TR B A G W > AL B G A A L5
M Z e s B AL E F & > EIFEARE
Al AEE S UL RBERR - KW - HEK
B~ BORE RNk o G MARIEN AMEAS Z
JE R ZE A B A AR > T 5 8 288 ey i B 7 7
B > WADHEEEREGZ TG
i o HHEGRIENFRE — R51 2 i e
I 388 > LA (E A RSP - AR 8% ~ Sk )
EEE - RE - HEE - Bl Rk
T KPR AR IR I N A e Rl
HEWARZEHMEL REZHBEORZ T
8 LA S ZERE - R AL A%
BEFFNEZ TLBORETE D > DL
MREAHMME - RAZRGCHEEERG 2B
A SR ~ BUBE R AL AT A 5 A SR B 2 S 8%
R DL ROBETE B | W B 2 ou b EUR -

MRoEZ=ZF+TA=+—H > AR R
#2000 3E g R B AL R A R

Educational background Bachelor &+
B
Designation
Wb INED
Gender
) Male Bt
Nationality .
I Chinese HE
Age group
4 B L 21550
1 J
0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Master  : Master Degree (= R = X V2
Bachelor : Bachelor Degree 24 BLB
ED : Executive Director ED : #iTH#H
NED : Non-Executive Director NED : HF#fTH S
INED : Independent Non-executive Director INED : B iTE
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DIVERSITY (CONTINUED)

The Company also recognizes and embraces the benefits of having
gender diversity across of the Group. As at 31 December 2023, the

gender ratio in the workforce of the Group was summarized as

e SRR e

% ik (#)

A RISl A S 9 25 A
oM TESSEF AT Ak
1 BT LB

follows:
Male Female
B 4k
Board HEE 75.0% 25.0%
Senior management e AR A P T 100.0% 0.0%
Other employees Hitb B T 65.4% 34.6%
Overall workforce e T 65.7% 34.3%

The Company will maintain a focus on gender diversity when
recruiting staff at mid to senior level so as to develop a pipeline of
potential successors to the Board. The Group will continue to take

steps to achieve gender diversity at all levels of its workforce.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
The Articles lay down the rights of the Shareholders. They

include:

o right to entitle dividend or other forms of profit distribution;

. right to attend shareholders’ meeting by person or by proxy;

o right to supervise and manage the business activities of the

Company and to put forward proposals and raise inquiries;
. right to transfer shareholding in the Company;

o upon payment of a reasonable cost, right to inspect and

copy:
= register of shareholders;

- certain personal information of Directors, Supervisors,
general manager and/or deputy general managers and

senior management members;
- certain information on repurchase of Shares; and

- minutes of shareholders’ meeting
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Apart from the above, the Shareholders are also entitled to the

following special rights:

The Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing to the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong at 17th Floor, V Heun Building, 138
Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

Right to convene meeting

The Shareholders are given rights to convene special general
meeting or class meeting other than the Directors. According to
the Articles, any two or more Shareholders having voting rights of
10% or more in the general meeting to be proposed can give the
Board written requests for convening a special general meeting or
class meeting. The requests should state clearly the resolution(s)
to be considered. If the Board does not convene the meeting
within 30 days after receipt of such requests, those Shareholders
who give the requests are entitled to convene the proposed
general meeting themselves 4 months after the Board received

their requests at the Company’s expense.

Right to sue

According to the Articles, the Shareholders are entitled rights
to take legal action against the Company, the Directors, the
Supervisors, general manager, deputy general managers and
senior management members. A Shareholder can also take legal
action against another Shareholder. Action can be conducted

through court or arbitration authority.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to maintain an effective
risk management and internal control system for the Group,
which covers four main areas namely financial management,
operation, compliance and reporting, and risk management. The
risk management and internal control systems of the Company are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and

not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board manages the Group capital on the basis of net debt-to-
equity ratio in order to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern and to maximize shareholders’ return. Each subsidiary
is responsible for overseeing its own daily net cash position while
the Board monitors the Company’s own. Should there be a capital
need, each subsidiary is responsible for its own arrangement

subject to the supervision of the Board.

Each subsidiary has set up its own control procedures to monitor
its operation including but not limited to working safety, product
quality, asset safeguard, cost management and environmental
protection. Finance department of the Company sets out general
guidelines on fund control for all subsidiaries to follow. There
were no material accidents, quality defects nor environmental

destruction incidents occurred during the year.

The Board assigns the compliance officer of the Company to
monitor the overall compliance and reporting issue of the
Group. With the assistance of company secretary and financial
controller of the Company, listing supervision division and finance
departments, the compliance officer of the Company carries out
its duty to ensure that the Group complies with applicable laws,

rules and regulations as well as reports correctly and timely.

Finance department of each subsidiary maintains proper
accounting records and prepares subsidiary-level financial
statements in accordance with suitable accounting standards. The
financial controller of the Company reviews the correctness and

reasonableness of the financial statements periodically.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

During the year, the Company published announcements and
notices within the time frame allowed in the GEM Listing Rules.
The Board also sets out guidelines on dissemination of inside
information to ensure timely disclosure. Each material transaction
especially connected transaction proposed by either the subsidiary
or the Company itself must first be assessed by the compliance
officer of the Company to ensure compliance with applicable
laws and GEM Listing Rules before further action. The Company
seeks advice from lawyers, financial advisors as well as the Stock
Exchange if necessary. The Board also sets out code of conduct to

govern securities dealings by Directors and relevant employees.

The Directors often update themselves about changes in
applicable laws, rules and regulations. The company secretary of
the Company also update any such change to the Board and the

listing supervision division of the Company.

The risk management function focuses on market unpredictability

and aims at minimising potential adverse effect.

The Company does not have an internal audit department and is
currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up an
internal audit department within the Group in light of the size,
nature and complexity of the Group’s business. It was decided that
the Board would be directly responsible for internal control of the

Group and for reviewing its effectiveness.

The Board has engaged an external risk management and
internal control review adviser (the “Adviser”) to conduct the
annual review of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems for the year ended 31 December 2023.
Such review is conducted annually and cycles reviewed are under
rotation basis. The scope of review was previously determined and
approved by the Board. The Adviser has reported findings and
areas for improvement to the Audit Committee and management.
The Board is of the view that there are no material internal
control defeats noted. All recommendations from the Adviser
are properly followed up by the Group to ensure that they are
implemented within a reasonable period of time. The Board
therefore considered that the risk management and internal

control systems are effective and adequate.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board is committed to maintaining an on-going dialogue with
the Shareholders and Company has established several channels to

communicate with the Shareholders as follows:

(i) annual and special general meetings convened by the
Company provide a platform for the Shareholders to

exchange views with the Board;

(ii) corporate communication documents including, but not
limited to, annual reports, quarterly reports, interim reports,
circulars and notices of meetings are issued in printed form
and are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and

the Company;

(iii) other documents, such as periodic announcements, monthly
returns on movements in the Company’s securities for each
month and next day disclosure returns, etc. are issued by
the Company and published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Companyj;

(iv) corporate information is made available on the website of the

Company; and

(v) the Hong Kong share registrar of the Company serves the
Shareholders in respect of share registration and related

matters.

During the year, the secretary to the Board and the company
secretary of the Company monitored the implementation of
the above shareholders’ communication channels to ensure
their effectiveness. The Company considered that the above
shareholders’ communication channels are implemented

adequately and effective.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no changes in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

EBTHEP11158
KR H>251E

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BEIJING BEIDA JADE BIRD
UNIVERSAL SCI-TECH COMPANY LIMITED

(AEEAER 7 5 R R e 4y A B2 w])

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Beijing
Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
69 to 209, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy

information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements”
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for

Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our

section of our report. We are independent of the

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:

Refer to notes 24, 25 and 27 to the consolidated financial
statements and accounting policies as set out in notes 4(c), 4(d)

and 4(m) to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group has investments in associates, joint ventures
and certain unlisted equity securities of RMB2,613,581,000,
RMB101,073,000 and RMB273,278,000 respectively, as at 31
December 2023.

Certain of the associates, joint ventures and unlisted equity
securities held by the Group are engaged in the investments
of unlisted equity securities in the People’s Republic of China.
The determination of the fair values of the unlisted equity
securities requires significant management judgement in selecting
appropriate multiples from market comparables and in respect of

unobservable inputs such as discount for lack of marketability.

The Group appointed independent professional valuers to assist
in assessing the fair values of those unlisted equity securities

investments.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement on investment in unlisted equity securities

(Continued)

We focused on this area due to the high degree of judgment
required in determining the respective fair values of Level 3
financial instruments which do not have direct open market
quoted values, with respect to the adoption of applicable valuation
methodology and the application of appropriate assumptions in

the valuation.

Our responses

Our procedures included:

- Evaluating the competence, independence and integrity of

the external valuers;

- Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodology

used by the external valuers;

- Considering the appropriateness of the multiples selected
from the market comparables and the discount for lack of
marketability with the assistance of our internal valuation

specialists;

= Checking the accuracy and the relevant of the input data

used; and

= Assessing the adequacy of the fair value disclosures in

relation to the unlisted equity securities.

Receivables arising from partial disposal of an associate

Refer to notes 6(c), 24 and 29 to the consolidated financial
statements and accounting policies as set out in notes 4(w) to the

consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group disposed
certain equity interests in an associate at a consideration
of RMB1,101,846,000. Part of the disposal consideration of
approximately RMB881,477,000 is not yet settled as at 31
December 2023 and recognised as other receivables under the
consolidated statement of financial position. Expected credit
loss on these receivables of approximately RMB144,322,000 is

recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)
Receivables arising from partial disposal of an associate

(Continued)

Assessing the expected credit loss on these receivables is
a subjective area and it requires application of significant
judgement and use of estimates. At each reporting date, the
Group assesses whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk for exposures since initial recognition by comparing
the risk of default occurring over the expected life between the
reporting date and the date of initial recognition. The Group
considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort for this purpose.
This includes quantitative and qualitative information and also,
forward-looking analysis. Judgement and estimates are applied
in assessing the counterparty that may default and identifying
evidence of impairment which include but not limited to the
assessment on creditworthiness of debtor and their repayment

history.

We focused on this area due to the high degree of judgment
and estimation required in assessing the expected credit loss

performed by the management.

Our responses

Our procedures included:

- Obtaining an understanding on how impairment is estimated

by management;

- Assessing the measurement of expected credit loss of the
receivables by obtaining the understanding of approach

being adopted by the Group;

- Reviewing the reasonableness of the use of ageing profile,
historical settlement pattern and historical default rates,
forecast economic conditions and other forward-looking

information in the expected credit loss model; and

= Checking the accuracy and the relevant of the input data

used.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
Company’s annual report, but does not include the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing

to report in this regard.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the

directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report
is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of
our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for

the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

67

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Au Yiu Kwan

Practising Certificate Number P05018

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
Ao 7 TR A B FUAth 4 vl WYL i

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

2023 2022
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 E AR T oo AR T

Revenue B A 8 566,375 276,174
Cost of sales and services B R MR 5 AR (441,995) (237,798)
Gross profit EM 124,380 38,376
Other gains and income FoAb g %5 B It A 9 13,838 14,528
Impairment loss on trade and other & 5y R At E W R IE 2

receivables ORIEN F | (210,678) (35,945)
Distribution costs 53 8 A (4,428) (2,443)
Administrative expenses TR 3 (84,935) (67,448)
Other expenses HoAth B 52 (45,978) (12,020)
(Loss) /gain on deemed partial A BB 43 B — W] W 7 2

disposal of an associate w5 1R) Wi g (23,268) 220,235
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary R — [T R R 2 ) ) R 40(b) (593) =
Gain on partial disposal of an associate #7r & — M BF& AR I 24 365,535 -
Loss on disposal of associates LB W s T Y s 4R 24 (29,495) =
Profit from operations 278 5 A 104,378 155,283
Finance costs il R A 11 (53,857) (34,808)
Share of profit of associates JRE A T 425 A ] 3t ) 149,991 178,360
Share of (loss)/profit of joint ventures JEAL & B A2 (B 4R) %A (3,877) 18,822
Profit before income tax b3 Bt 45 B6 Hil ¥z A 196,635 317,657
Income tax (expense)/credit 5 (B SZ) /4% 12 (17,935) 2,012
Profit for the year A 4 B Hi 13 178,700 319,669
Other comprehensive income after tax: - fth B B A% 24 1 W A
Items that will not be reclassified to NEEPHERRZIHA -

profit or loss:
Fair value changes of financial DL A A HoAth 2 T i 45

assets at fair value through other (I RAZ B 5 A HC At 4 T

comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) Wetil) 2 B & 2

NV E S E) 16,640 37,534

Share of other comprehensive income  J& fifi B 2 28 & Ho A 2 1 Wi 4

of associates (29,034) 33,764
Share of other comprehensive income {4 & 2 4 3 H Aih 2 1 1 25

of joint ventures 2,771 (577)

(9,623) 70,721

Items that may be reclassified to AJEP R < HA

profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating {53 4h 2E 55 2 [ 58,75 5L

foreign operations (2,103) 2,146

(2,103) 2,146
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
fit 7 TR Al o 3L fib 2 i WAL A 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

2023 2022
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B AR T o0 NS T
Other comprehensive income for the 7% 4% J& J i 4= i W #5 »
year, net of tax & B i (11,726) 72,867
Total comprehensive income for the 45 JE A i WY i A8
year 166,974 392,536
Profit for the year attributable to: JRE AV A 45 BE ¥ A
Owners of the Company Z/NEIE 2N 195,207 333,383
Non-controlling interests IE e I 25 (16,507) (18,714)
178,700 319,669
Total comprehensive income for the P A A 4 JBE 4 ThT WK i A AR
year attributable to:
Owners of the Company ENY/NGE 2SN 188,152 406,456
Non-controlling interests I $5E S HE 25 (21,178) (13,920)
166,974 392,536
RMB RMB
N NN
Earnings per share 5 Ji £
Basic and diluted (cents per share) A T (55 4) 17 12.9 22.0

LR F RRFREBAARAT - % AR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

f B B 5 IR DL 3

At 31 December 2023 j* % =4+ _"H=+—H

2023 2022
R COEE S
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR TF5E YN BT
Non-current assets I I B B
Property, plant and equipment Y3 - W 5s B i A 19 346,736 393,072
Investment properties w"EyE 20 199,121 195,592
Goodwill S 21 4,965 39,812
Other intangible assets Ho At T B 22 81,941 14,242
Biological assets EVEE 23 - 1,136
Investments in associates R E AR 2 /E 24 2,613,581 3,333,037
Investments in joint ventures NEErEZRE 25 101,073 182,171
Investments in film productions s EIEZRE 26 = -
Financial assets at FVTOCI DN = A N X g ) 27
W fi < 5 256,039 239,150
Financial assets at fair value through LA {EHFF A H 4 27
profit or loss (“FVTPL”) (TRAAPEFI AE 25 1)
Z W E 28,998 -
Deposit for purchase of property, W E Y2~ WF B
plant and equipment Y 4% 42 1,987 9,359
Deposits for potential investments R E L& 30,000 =
Deferred tax assets % SIE Bl TEUE 36 24,179 9,239
3,688,620 4,416,810
Current assets it B B
Inventories & 28 15,938 20,749
Trade and other receivables By T A HE i 29 1,122,742 354,386
Pledged bank deposits E R R AT 77 3K 31 1,344 1,244
Cash and cash equivalents He eSS EY 31 156,494 227,690
1,296,518 604,069
Total assets HH 4,985,138 5,020,879
Current liabilities b RER
Trade and other payables ¥ 5y B oAb E A 5KIH 32 252,174 234,671
Bank and other loans SRAT B HoAth £ 34 689,142 763,578
Lease liabilities THE A& 35 1,705 3,294
Current tax liabilities it ) Bl IH A E 19,200 4,706
962,221 1,006,249
Net current assets/ (liabilities) WEE R (R F 334,297 (402,180)
Total assets less current liabilities HBE D B B 4,022,917 4,014,630
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

f B B 5 5K Dt

At 31 December 2023 j* % =4+ _-H=+—H

2023 2022
R = -
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
R 5 AR T e ANR¥®ET T
Non-current liabilities e B A i
Bank and other loans SRAT T HoAh B R 34 191,450 179,950
Lease liabilities HE&E 35 3,279 73,428
Deferred tax liabilities TE AL B TE A R 36 52,219 32,788
246,948 286,166
NET ASSETS & 3,775,969 3,728,464
Equity HE 2
Share capital A% 37 151,446 151,446
Reserves G 39 3,475,791 3,406,122
Equity attributable to owners of the EN/NEEIE? YN g
Company 3,627,237 3,557,568
Non-controlling interests IE P25 BEHE 25 148,732 170,896
TOTAL EQUITY HERE £ 3,775,969 3,728,464

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2024 and are AR AR S H N B E S e T

signed on its behalf by: AN A LR 8
NI JINLEI WANG XINGYE
il &% ERE
Director Director
HE HE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

22 N 3L sxs
rOTRER By R
For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

Attributable to owners of the Company
FLAHEH AL

Foreign ~ Financial

cuency  assetat Non-
Share Capital  Reserve translation  FVTOCI Other  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve funds Teserve reserve reserve profits Total ~ interests equity
WAY(E
AR
LT
23t
Wk WERE  BEEE  BEBE  RERE  ARBE  BREA ait RERER  AER
RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ABHT ARETR ARWTX ARETR ARWTR ARETR ARWTT AR&TR ARMTR ARETRL

At1 January 2022 RZFZZE-f—H 151,446 605,810 107,494 (61,005)  (189,706) 5048 2505915 3174947 17359 3,348,543

Total comprehensive income 4% 4 H il 4t 444

for the year - - - 8,129 04,944 - 553588 406456 (139200 592,536
Acquisition of a subsidiary i [ YN

(note 40(a)) (Rr3E40(2)) = = - = - - - -1 1120
Appropriation of safety FREEELEN

production fund - - - - - (224) 24 - - -

Share of transfer of losson ~~ HHLEABSERIEHE

disposal of financial assets —~ DIATER ALML2TE

at FVTOCin investmentin {4 2 HHBEZ

joint ventures FHEY - - - - 62931 - (62,931) - - -
Repurchase right arrangement 11— it /3 7 i )

upon acquisition of a BEES S

subsidiary (note 40(a)) (340 (a)) - - - - - (B8) - (B8) - (B8)
Transfer upon derecognition  FJUHBERE LA T A
of financial assets Hh2ElEz
atFVTOCI M EERER - - - - (4sm = 4877 = = =
Changes in equity for the year A4 14 58 - - - 8129 122998 (24089) 97353 %8262 (2700) 3792
At31 December 2032 RoRZZE

tZA=1-1 L6 605810 107494 (34%)  (I6708)  (18516) 278LA68  B3TH68 17089 3728464
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

A Bl 3 4
AW
For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

Attributable to owners of the Company

YL N 1

Foreign ~ Financial

currency asset at Non-
Share Capital Reserve  translation ~ EVTOCI Other  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve funds reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
WA
it A S
Al
Hh
B EARE  BEEE  BARE O KERE  ERRE  WEEA ait FEREE  MER
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
AREFL ARBFx ARMEE AREFr ARWFx ARWEX ARBFx AR¥Fx ARWFT ARWEX

At1 January 2028 REFZ=F-f—H 151,446 605,810 107,494 (53,426)  (16,708)  (18,516) 2,781,468 3,557,568 170,896 3,728,464

Total comprehensive income 4% 4 4t 444

for the year - - - 2,408 (9,463)
Acquisition of additional [~ A R A

interests in a subsidiary ERMEMERS

without change in control — (HfFE40(c))

195207 188152 (QLI) 166,974

(note 40(c)) - - - . i - (986)  (18,000)
Appropriation of safety EREERERN

production fund - - - - - (480) 480 - - -
Interim dividend (note 18) A& (Hr2418) - - - . - o (101469 (101,469) - (101469)

Transfer of gain on disposal of HREENATEA
financial assets at FVTOCI A M AT s 2
e - - - - - A - - -
Transfer upon deemed REdE /B E—H
disposal/partial disposal of /4 Al P

an associate - - - 47 (465) - 48 - - -
Transfer upon disposal of ~  EBE AR R R

associates - - - - 29,902 - (29,902) - - -
Transfer upon disposal of a  th E— Al A el s

subsidiary = - - - 73,447 - (75,447) - - -
Transfer upon loss on disposal f4 /%8 2 %4 &1 ff

of financial assets at WAFE AR

FVTOCL in investment RE B R L EE

in joint ventures il e 5 5 = = 35,246 = (35,246) = = =
Changes in equity for the year A4 FF1E£ 58 - - - 282 L0700 (17494)  (273) 69669 (22164) 47,505
At 31 December 2023 e

tZA=+-H 15146 605,810 107494 (50,601) 90,862 (36,010) 2758736 3,627,287 148782 8,775,969
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GoBeshER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

2023 2022
R =M —Ex -
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B &E N T AR¥T T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REmhzilehs
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax o ot i s ) 196,635 317,657
Adjustments for: Bk
Impairment loss on trade and other B oy R HoAt iR E 2
receivables A s 18 210,678 35,945
Write down/ (Reversal of write down) of OB (H R 0D 17 &
net realisable value of inventories [ 43 B VR (E 636 (153)
Impairment loss on film production B AR B - 3,500
Impairment loss on goodwill TR 3l s 1 21 34,847 -
Depreciation and amortisation I8 T BB 39,235 27,443
(Gain) /Loss on disposal and written off ERN NG Y A
of property, plant and equipment (Wedd) /i 48 B A (7,679) 1,664
Gain from changes in fair value less cost to A2 4 % 7 201 B 5 B ok £ &
sell of biological assets JRAS 2 Wi i - (248)
Loss/ (Gain) on deemed partial disposal of — # {E#87 t H — [ ¥ & /2 7
an associate M, (i) 23,268 (220,235)
Gain on partial disposal of an associate A3 th A — B A w Rl 24 (365,535) =
Loss on disposal of associates 1B B D Y s 4R 24 29,495 =
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary B — B 2 WA i R 40(b) 593 =
Gain on lease termination R4 (7,191) -
Interest expense FIE B S 55,021 38,590
Interest income R A (6,456) (1,541)
Net foreign exchange gain A1 e B 0 1S 4 15 11 (1,164) (3,782)
Loss on repurchase right arrangement Ji [e HE 22 B Al 1R 40(a) - 1,065
Share of profit of associates JRE A B 25 2 ) i ) (149,991) (178,360)
Share of loss/ (profit) of joint ventures A & B k1 (A1) 3,877 (18,822)
Operating profit before working capital R T < 5 I T A U
changes 56,269 2,723
Decrease in inventories FRED 4,175 4,775
(Increase) /Decrease in trade receivables W 5 R Bk (B hm) b (57,608) 4,704
(Increase) /Decrease in prepayments, TEAT IR ~ i 4 J oAb Wi
deposits and other receivables HOE () b (96,600) 33,365
(Decrease) /Increase in trade and other B 5y R H A R B OE
payables (W) /s (81,422) 15,114
(Decrease) /Increase in contract liabilities & &) A& (B2) /8 (363) 702
Cash (used in)/generated from operations #8475 &) (FTH) /AL B 4 (125,549) 61,383
Income taxes paid B s s (8,883) (7,460)
Net cash (used in)/generated from B () BN
operating activities Bl & (134,432) 53,923
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HOoBeRaR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

2023 2022
R =M e
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E N T ANR¥ET 0
CASH FLOWS FORM INVESTING REFEH B EHE
ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of a subsidiary o Sl — [H] Bt g 2 ) 40(a) — (83,186)
Cash outflows of acquisition of non- W B — BB A Al R RE RS 19 40(c)
controlling interest of a subsidiary B4 (18,000) -
Deposits for purchase of property, HEE W3 - MR Bk
plant and equipment %45 - 13,554
Deposits for potential investments BRGNS (30,000) =
Increase in pledged bank deposits CL R4 SR AT A7 e (100) (242)
Decrease/ (Increase) in balances A 4 N |) 2 KRR
with associates Wb,/ () 23,717 (2,096)
(Increase) /Decrease in balances JEAT &8 Gtk
with a joint venture (3 /B (625) 625
Purchases of property, plant and equipment i B 43 - 5 & ik (29,623) (35,471)
Additions to investment properties REREWE (8,238) (661)
Purchases of intangible assets i H Y B (29,574) F
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEYE - BE R
and equipment VGRS 9,016 27,818
Purchase consideration of financial assets W LA TR R A HoA
at FVTOCI Wi 2 B A 2 RAE (4,780) (8,199)
Purchase consideration of financial assets W B AATEFI AR S 2
at FVTPL GEZE (28,998) =
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets 4 DL E A H A 2 T
at FVTOCI Wi 4 2 B S E 2 BT A 29,900 5,013
Proceeds from partial disposal of an BBy H A — [ A E Y
associate JREE ¢ 220,369 -
Proceeds from disposal of investment HE R AR R EZ
in associates REE e 15,784 N
Dividend received from an associate il =g/ R ) 24 40,494 51,394
Increase in investment in associates RN T 2 G = (100,000)
Dividend received from a joint venture H— M58 A XK 25 54,029 =
Proceed received from capital B — ] A 7 A 28 TR AR il 25
reduction of a joint venture W B (Y BT 45 2OE 23,030 -
Interest received 2 AL 6,456 1,541
Net cash generated from/(used in) HHEW ?11% A (i)
investing activities Bl &3 272,857 (129,910)
CASH FLOWS FORM FINANCING MERH B ERE
ACTIVITIES
Bank and other loans raised ST IR AT S A B R 869,946 833,503
Repayments of bank and other loans B R AT B H A B K (927,565) (591,850)
Advance to shareholders Ii] % 5 A2k (25) (31)
(Decrease) /Increase in amounts JREAS) B 2 N £ IR
due to related parties () /1 (9,500) 9,945
Interest paid 2t F & (56,978) (47,663)
Interim dividend paid e AT H RS (70,520) -
Repayments of lease liabilities HEHEAR (16,338) (1,267)
Net cash (used in)/generated from Rl ?A (F}f H) Bz
financing activities B & (210,980) 202,637
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH ~ Bl&RBRE%HY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CCLAVE Vi (72,555) 126,650
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SRS TE SR ) 2 5 1,359 1,107
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EMZRERREEHED
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 227,690 99,933
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZBRERBEFEHD 31
AT END OF YEAR 156,494 227,690

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak B BV 5 e o M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

77

GENERAL INFORMATION
Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited

(the “Company”) was incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) as a sino-foreign joint stock limited
liability company. The Company’s H shares are listed on
the GEM (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of its
registered office is 3rd Floor, Beida Jade Bird Building,
Yanyuan District Area 3, No. 5 Haidian Road, Haidian
District, Beijing 100080, the PRC. The addresses of its
principal place of business in the PRC and Hong Kong are
3rd Floor, Beida Jade Bird Building, No. 207 Chengfu Road,
Haidian District, Beijing 100871, the PRC and 17th Floor, V
Heun Building, 138 Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong

Kong, respectively.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’ subsidiaries are set
out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements. The
Company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred as the

“Group”.

— % & B

b db K 5B ER RO A R A A
(TARA T D) Th 2 AN R ILANE ([
B 1) RS 2 A B A PR
TR T) o AN AIH I 7 s W 65 58 5 BT
HIRAAE ([B32 ) GEM ([GEM ) k
i o Ay A 2 g 3 g 0 b bk 2 R ) b
T I U VA U B E E  — mdb R
SEZE (H47100080) » HAEH K E&F
W 2 2B S 2 T 5 B L R T I
VE 5B  B5 20798 A0 K 5 S i s iE (ER 4R
100871) J 7 s b B 8 J5 K3 13858
K E 174 -

A F EEREH B BCE R - AR T
1 B 2> ] 2 T S R AR B BB Rk
FMERE44 o AN w] b H I 2 7 #E R 2
[ALEM] -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak B B 5 e o Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a)

Adoption of HKFRSs - first effective on 1 January 2023

In the current year, the Group has applied for the
first time the following new/revised HKFRSs and
amendments issued by HKICPA which is relevant to
and effective for the Group’s financial statements for
annual period beginning on 1 January 2023:

HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice

Statement 2

Disclosure of accounting

policies

Amendments to HKAS 8

Accounting policies,
changes in accounting

estimates and

errors: Definition of
accounting estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income taxes: Deferred

tax related to assets and
liabilities arising from a
single transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income taxes:

International tax reform

— Pillar Two model rules

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 — Disclosure of accounting policies aim to
make accounting policy disclosures more informative
by replacing the requirement to disclose ‘significant
accounting policies’ with ‘material accounting policy
information’. The amendments also provide guidance
under what circumstance, the accounting policy
information is likely to be considered material and
therefore requiring disclosure. These amendments
have no effect on the measurement or presentation
of any items in the consolidated financial statements
of the Group but affect the disclosure of accounting
policies of the Group. Except for above, the adoption
of the remaining amended HKFRSs or amendments
did not have any significant impact on the Group’s
accounting policies.

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR

2. PRANE WA W e ([ 7 v
B e e J 1)

(a)

R 40 O R
SIS HERER

A AEBMCERERNT
5 th & W & st A ' A 2 B
R/ RAE T s B A Y I
B A HJjEALEP —F
T =4 A — BB R A
BB H R A I I B R 4 B
AR

T B RS REBEEL
HE QI EE 1797

FIGFIER &5 EURHER
EAL &S
s B R
YE I B R
ok
(CHES

FISGFIER GFIEOR - g5
8L E il 5 B) K g
GEN o e EHE S

E 7%

FW TR AR HEE—
BRI THLMEE R
kN AfEZ A

I 4 B JE

Fis Gt AR B R
F125EHE BE—TH
GRS 1 HI) A

b B v S 58 1 5% B A v U S ik
9 P S R AR 2 SR B RT A —
B AT BOR A B AE DA T R & wh
RER AT EEEFBOR ] 24K
BREOR > MERTBOR B EA R
Al o 5% S 1B RT A IR S & R B
EORHI AT RE LR 2 K BRI
T LB RGO T R 5] - 3%
S HES R Gl RS S
A B R 2 AT AT IH B I 4 AE o
ER G BEALM G R BUR
M B 7% o B b b > bR AR R
KEAE BT A s SV 5 i o Y S A AT
A AR AR T 1Y B BT EOR G R

B/
)iZ 9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak B BV 5 e o M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

9. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b)

79

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention
is to apply these changes on the date they become
effective.
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of financial statements:
Classification of liabilities as
current or non-current (“2020
amendments”) !
Amendments to Presentation of financial
HKAS 1 statements: Non-current
liabilities with covenants
(“2022 amendments”) !

Amendments to
HKFRS 16

Leases: Lease liability in a sale

and leaseback !

Statement of cash flows
and HKFRS 7, Financial

Instruments: Disclosures:

Amendments to
HKAS 7

Supplier finance
arrangements

Amendments to The effects of changes in

HKAS 21 foreign exchange rates: Lack
of exchangeability ?
Notes:
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2024

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2025

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited

2. PRANE WA T W e ([ 7 8
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(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak B B 5 e o Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as

Current or Non-current

The amendments clarify the requirements on
classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The
2020 Amendments provide clarification that if an
entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject
to compliance with future covenants, the entity has
a right to defer settlement of the liability even if it
does not comply with those covenants at the end
of the reporting period. Classification of a liability
is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will
exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability. The
2020 Amendments also clarify the situations that are

considered as a settlement of a liability.

Amendments to HKAS 1, Non-current Liabilities with

Covenants

The amendments clarify how to treat liabilities that
are subject to covenants to be complied with, at a
date subsequent to the reporting period. The 2022
Amendments improve the information an entity
provides when its right to defer settlement of a liability
for at least twelve months is subject to compliance
with covenants. The 2022 Amendments clarify that
only covenants with which an entity must comply on
or before the reporting date will affect a liability’s

classification as current or non-current.

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR

OF A o B B i o ) (1 8 S
Bk e D) (A1)

(b)

S A% A8 41 M v R AR 2 2 W RT AR
68 T A 9 S 5 e o T (A

7 itk B il I 5 1 98 09 A5 7T K [ A
A 15 25 75 v ) 2 FF i B

W2 S B T A B A A B A TR
B IE BB E o R T4
B TT A [ B > i B S B VS M B
B 2 HE I 52 BRI A B % 20 i 2ty 32
o ECBE A RE A oA R A T
AR > B R A5 5 3% 55 Al
ik AW BEAZERAT

HREM BTG EAENTREZ
R o TR T RAFAET] A TR M
KRR 5 B R S -

7 M a2 A B 15 09106 7T A [
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EEACHEN LR IEY #2100
W5 1 B A 52 BROA A5 & B AL 3256
WA —F - FEEITANRE
HEECBREEAEEVI2ZHEA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak B BV 5 e o M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

9. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b)

81

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 16, Leases Liability in a Sale and

Leaseback

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements
that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability
arising in a sale and leaseback transaction, to ensure
the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of
the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it
retains. The amendments are intended to improve
the requirements for sale and leaseback transactions
in HKFRS 16. They do not change the accounting for
leases unrelated to sale and leaseback transactions.

Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows and HKFRS
7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures: Supplier finance

(H'I'(III‘(\)Y’)I/(’)I/A

The amendments introduce disclosure requirements to
enhance transparency of supplier finance arrangements
and their effects on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows and

exposure to liquidity risk.

Amendments to HKAS 21, The effects of changes in foreign

exchange rates: Lack of exchangeability

The amendments specify when a currency is
exchangeable into another currency and when it
is not, and how an entity determines a spot rate
when a currency lacks exchangeability. Under
the amendments, entities are required to provide
additional disclosures to help users evaluate how
a currency’s lack of exchangeability affects, or is
expected to affect, its financial performance, financial

position and cash flows.

The directors of the Company have performed an
assessment on the above new standards, amendments
and interpretations and have concluded on a
preliminary basis that these new standards and
amendments would not have a significant impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements in

subsequent years.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited

OF A 9 B B o S ([ 8 S
Bk e A D) (3)

(b)

S A8 A A Mk WG R A R 2 B R
68 T A 9 S s e ok e U (A

7 185 B 5 FR A TE R B 165% 09 15 /T
K[ 1% fH [r] 2 T B A 1

A i 0 5 i RIS 16 9E AV 1B R T
A FT B A R B 22 5 A A
M AP AT T — R A
B LR E T —RAAE
il 2 B BT (R B 1) M A IR 4 A T
B &M ZFBTASER =
o B i R SR 1658 A B
PR AH [0 52 B (9 B e L f7 28 g 2
SELAE 42 A 1) 52 5 4 B ) L
i B o

7 1k a2 Rl B T HE RIS RT AR [ B
2t 7R B TR A R
THE o 2l T A PEEE - E R

ZEBRT ARG AR TR E > DR
e A B T 2 D ) O W M
HEBRAR BeRELAHE
< A B B B o

7 B 5

% S B RT AR — T R ] B T
SO — MR AT Ry AN T G
fe > DA B — Ml W 2 W S
PE IR o B A G o B E BLEAE o R
BZEBEATA - HE LRI
SME BB > DLR B AT AG B
WS T A5 ] B B T
ey 2 2B HL B 5 R B BB IR DL

A W COE b A T HE A
R A R ik FRAEAT AT A4S > 4028
15t A o w8 A A% S N ET YR B K
16 5T A A5 18 A 4F BE A & A 4 1
WMir G M mRELERLE -

 Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak B B 5 e o Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “HKFRS”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Material
accounting policy information adopted by the Group

are disclosed in note 4.

Basis of measurement and going concern assumption

The financial statements have been prepared under
historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments and biological assets, which are measured
at fair values as explained in the accounting policies set

out in note 4.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the directors considered the operations of the Group
as a going concern notwithstanding that the Group’s
bank and other loans amounted to RMB689,142,000
while the cash and cash equivalents maintained
only RMB156,494,000 as at 31 December 2023. The
consolidated financial statements were prepared based
on the assumption that the Group would be able
to operate as a going concern based on a cash flow
projection covering in the next eighteen months from
31 December 2023, after taking the following into

considerations:
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern assumption

(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

The Group has been in negotiations with banks
and other borrowers for the renewal of certain
current existing loans, which will be matured
soon after the reporting date. Management
expected that, based on the current negotiation
status, the loans of RMB424,000,000 could be
renewed upon expiry on the basis of the Group’s
past records in the compliance of the terms of
the loans and the availability of sufficient assets
as collaterals. Apart from this, subsequent to year
end date, the Group obtained various letter of
intent from certain financial institutions which
confirm to renew outstanding loan balances of
RMB424,000,000 to the Group for another year
upon maturity in year 2024. In addition, to reduce
the pressure on the Group’s liquidity, the Group
could realise certain long-term investments to

serve as working capital of the Group;

For the remaining borrowings of the
RMB265,142,000 recorded in the current
liabilities, the management considered that there
is a reasonable expectation for renewal upon
expiry given the substantial headroom of the fair

value of the collaterals over the loan amount;

(iii) When necessary, the Group would further explore

(iv)

the availability of alternative sources of finance
and subsequent to year end date, the Group
obtained new long-term bank loans agreement of
facilities line of RMB198,000,000; and

The management expects the operations of the
Group will gradually improve so as to generate

additional operating cash inflows.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(b)

Basis of measurement and going concern assumption

(Continued)

Having regard to the cash flow projection of the Group,
which are prepared assuming that these measures
can be successfully implemented, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group would
have sufficient cash resources to finance the operations
and to meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due and therefore it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements of the Group on a

going concern basis.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires the
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgements or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements

are disclosed in note 5.

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The material accounting policy information applied in the

preparation of these consolidated financial statements are

set out below.

(a)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are
entities over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. The Group has power over an
entity when the Group has existing rights that give it
the current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e.

activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.
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4.

85

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting
rights held by other parties. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to

exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are

de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.

Gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of
the net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining
goodwill and any related accumulated foreign currency

translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests (“NCIs”) represent the equity
in subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. NCIs are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated
statement of changes in equity within equity. NClIs are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation
of profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling shareholders and

owners of the Company.
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4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

AR T HRT R A RAF -

Consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to non-controlling shareholders even

if this results in the NCIs having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and NCIs are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by
which the NCIs are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in

equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses, unless classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held

for sale).

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination.
The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at the acquisition-date fair
value of the assets given, equity instruments issued,
liabilities incurred and any contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. Identifiable assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at

their acquisition-date fair values.
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4.

87

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded
as goodwill. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the sum of the consideration transferred is recognised
in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain

purchase which is attributed to the Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss. The fair value is added to the sum of the

consideration transferred to calculate the goodwill.

The NClIs in the subsidiary are initially measured at the
non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate share of
the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets

and liabilities at the acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs”) or groups of CGUs that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the Group at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill
is compared to its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as

an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(c) Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policies of
an entity but is not control or joint control over those
policies. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible,
including potential voting rights held by other entities,
are considered when assessing whether the Group has
significant influence. In accessing whether a potential
voting right contributes to significant influence, the
holder’s intention and financial ability to exercise or

convert that right is not considered.

Investments in associates are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and are initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets
and liabilities of the associates in an acquisition are
measured at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The excess of the cost of investments over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the associates’ identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the
investments and is tested for impairment together
with the investments at the end of each reporting
period when there is objective evidence that the
investments are impaired. Any excess of the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in

consolidated profit or loss.
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4.

89

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The Group’s share of associates’ post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in consolidated profit or loss,
and its share of the post-acquisition movements in
reserves is recognised in the consolidated reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investments.
When the Group’s share of losses in associates equals
or exceeds its interest in the associates, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associates. If the associate subsequently reports profits,
the Group resumes recognising its share of those
profits only after its share of the profits equals the

share of losses not recognised.

Gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that
results in a loss of significant influence represents
the difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that associate and (ii) the
Group’s entire carrying amount of that associate
(including goodwill) and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve. If an investment
in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture, the Group continues to apply the equity

method and does not remeasure the retained interest.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to consolidated profit
or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest
it that gain or loss would be reclassified to consolidated
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or

liabilities.

4.

& 5 BOR (4])

A 4R (6] B A T % ) 2 B AR R
a6 A A A TR AR N RS, o T EL R A
WA S 4% 2 {5 528 B B A A5k ok 45
MRS o R IR R 2 B BLE
AR TR B4R o 8 R o i A 42 [ A
gt 2 2% ) M 4R R 4 S R A HL Rt
Wt 8 W 2 AR (L 358 A o] G A fi
HEA R SR > AR B AN g o
— R R BRIEAEE DA
Wi 2w R A AR S A OH
fie g 2 ) AR S Wi A B A
A 025 7 JFC B A 9 ) <6 A JHC R A
R T B 2 M AR K AR Tl LB A
Z %5 Y | o

P s AR B R L&
KREEBZAELRGOHEREZL
SPAE AT o £R BE R 5 W A W 2
& 2 N TE B (i) AR 4 T B A %
o 88 o ) A TS B T M (5 7 )
B AT AT A B 2 51 A0 6 50 46 5 A A
M2 R o MR N E 2 4]
ERBRRECERE > AEH
8 10 TR )M 2 1% S EB R R AR

B M2 o

A S D FLR W A 2 R R
A A o T RE AR AR
B 55 i O At 4 T W 45 A R
14 BEL Py A7 HE HEE 2w LB A R Y
Wi 4t B 1R RR 0> E R B R AR A
Bz o 1A B A A SR E
Wi IR G EH M ELE G R
P

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited - Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak B B 5 e o Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Associates (Continued)

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are stated at cost less
impairment losses, unless classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held

for sale).

(d) Joint arrangements

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two
or more parties have joint control. Joint control is
the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control. Relevant activities are
activities that significantly affect the returns of the
arrangement. When assessing joint control, the Group
considers its potential voting rights as well as potential
voting rights held by other parties. A potential voting
right is considered only if the holder has the practical
ability to exercise that right.

A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a
joint venture. A joint operation is a joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the assets, and obligations
for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A joint
venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the arrangement. The Group has
assessed the type of each of its joint arrangements and

determined them to all be joint ventures.
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4.

91

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

Joint arrangements (Continued)

Investments in joint ventures are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and are initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets
and liabilities of the joint ventures in acquisitions are
measured at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The excess of the cost of investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the joint ventures’
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill.
The goodwill is included in the carrying amount of
the investments and is tested for impairment together
with the investments at the end of each reporting
period when there is objective evidence that the
investments are impaired. Any excess of the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in

consolidated profit or loss.

The Group’s share of the joint ventures’
post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss, and its share of the
post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised
in the consolidated reserves. The cumulative
post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investments. When the Group’s
share of losses in the joint ventures equals or exceeds
its interests in the joint ventures, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the joint ventures. If the
joint ventures subsequently report profits, the Group
resumes recognising its share of those profits only after
its share of the profits equals the share of losses not

recognised.
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4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Joint arrangements (Continued)

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interests in the joint ventures. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of joint ventures have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency

with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in joint ventures are stated at cost less
impairment losses, unless classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held

for sale).

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings held
to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An
investment property is measured initially at its cost

including all direct costs attributable to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property
is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. The depreciation is calculated using
the straight line method to allocate the cost to the
residual value over its estimated useful life of 8 — 50

years.

Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency,
and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (RMB’000) except when otherwise

indicated.
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4.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(22)

(222)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial

statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this

translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates when the fair

values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in

profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation

currency as follows:

= Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement

of financial position;
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(f) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(i1z) Translation on consolidation (Continued)

- Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the exchange rates on the

transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign currency

translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of monetary items that
form part of the net investment in foreign
entities and of borrowings are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the foreign currency translation reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified to consolidated profit

or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated

at the closing rate.

(g) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings
and leasehold land (classified as finance leases),
held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

subsequent impairment losses, if any.
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4.

95

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(g

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which

they are incurred.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation of
property, plant and equipment other than freehold
land and construction in progress is calculated at rates
sufficient to write off their cost less their estimated
residual values over the estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The principal useful lives are as

follows:

Leasehold land
Buildings

40 to 70 years
20 years
Machinery and equipment 3 to 10 years
Leasehold improvements,
furniture and office equipment 2 to 5 years

Motor vehicles 5 to 10 years

The estimated residual values, useful lives and
depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if

appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction, and is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Depreciation begins when the relevant assets are

available for use.

Gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,

and is recognised in profit or loss.
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4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(h)

Service concession arrangements
Consideration given by the grantor

An intangible asset (operating concession) is
recognised to the extent that the Group receives a
right to charge users of the public service, which is
not an unconditional right to receive cash because
the amounts are contingent on the extent that the
public uses the service. The intangible asset (operating
concession) is accounted for in accordance with the
policy set out for “Intangible assets other than the

goodwill” in note 4(j).

If the Group is paid by an intangible asset, in
which case, the consideration is accounted for the
consideration receivable shall be recognised initially at

the fair value of the consideration receivable.

Operating services

Revenue relating to operating services are accounted
for in accordance with the policy for “Revenue

recognition” note 4(q).

Contractual obligations to restore the infrastructure to a

specified level of serviceability

When the Group has contractual obligations which it
must fulfil as a condition of its licence for operating
concession, that is (a) to maintain the infrastructure to
a specified level of serviceability and/or (b) to restore
the infrastructure to a specified condition before they
are handed over to the grantor at the end of the service
concession arrangement, these contractual obligations
to maintain or restore infrastructure are recognised
and measured in accordance with the policy set out for

“Provisions and contingent liabilities” in note 4(x).
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4.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(1)

Leasing
The Group as lessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but accounting
policy choices exist for an entity to choose not to
capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases and/or
(ii) leases for which the underlying asset is of low-value.
The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases
for which at the commencement date have a lease term
less than 12 months. The lease payments associated
with those leases have been expensed on straight-line

basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

This is recognised at cost and comprises: (i) the
amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liabilities (see below for the accounting policy to
account for lease liabilities); (ii) any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, less any
lease incentives received; (iii) any initial direct costs
incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate of costs to
be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are
incurred to produce inventories. The Group measures
the right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under
the cost model, the Group measures the right-to-use
assets at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any

remeasurement of lease liabilities.
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4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The Group also has leased a number of properties
under tenancy agreements which the Group exercises it
judgement and determines that it is a separate class of
asset apart from the leasehold land and buildings which
is held for own use. As a result, the right-of-use asset
arising from the properties under tenancy agreements
are carried at depreciated cost. Rights-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of

its estimated useful life and the lease term.

Lease liabilities

The lease liabilities is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date
of commencement of the lease. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses the

Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease are considered
to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable: (ii) variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement date; (iii)
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of
a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise that option and (v) payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the

lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.
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4.

99

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(1)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (ii) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change in
the lease term, a change in the in substance fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to purchase the

underlying asset.

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over

the lease term.

The Group as lessor

The Group has leased out its investment properties to
a number of tenants. Rental income from operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised as an expense on the

straight-line basis over the lease term.
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4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

Intangible assets other than goodwill
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are
initially recognised at their fair value at the acquisition
date (which is regarded as their costs). Subsequent
to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in
a business combination with finite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as

intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets which represent transport operation
license, rights and patents, copyrights, computer
softwares, customer list and investments in film
productions are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over

their estimated useful lives.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit

or loss in the period when the asset is derecognised.
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4.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(k)

@)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average basis. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of all production overhead
expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting
charges. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
when the Group entity becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

@

(m)

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

(Continued)

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a

collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is

recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace. All recognised financial
assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at
either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the

classification of the financial assets.
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4.

103

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(m)

(n)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVTPL unless the equity investment is not held for
trading purposes and on initial recognition of the
investment the Group makes an election to designate
the investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are made
on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only
be made if the investment meets the definition of
equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is disposed
of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred
to retained profits. It is not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as at FVTPL or

FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as interest.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract

asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using effective

interest method less allowance for credit losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks. Cash and cash

equivalents are assessed for ECL.
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4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(p)

AR T HRT R A RAF -

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are

classified according to the substance of the contractual

arrangements entered into and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument under

HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that

evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group

after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting

policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and

equity instruments are set out below.

(1)

(22)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using

the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12

months after the reporting period.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as
a financial liability at the time the guarantee is
issued. The liability is initially measured at fair

value and subsequently at the higher of:

- the amount determined in accordance with
the ECL model under HKFRS 9; and

- the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of
income recognised in accordance with the

principles of HKFRS 15.
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4.

105

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

(p)

(22)

(212)

(iv)

Financial guarantee contracts (Continued)

The fair value of financial guarantees is
determined based on the present value of the
difference in cash flows between the contractual
payments required under the debt instrument
and the payments that would be required without
the guarantee, or the estimated amount that
would be payable to a third party for assuming the
obligations. Where guarantees in relation to loans
or other payables of associates are provided for no
compensation, the fair values are accounted for as
contributions and recognised as part of the cost of

the investment.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be

immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(q)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added
tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any

trade discounts.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is

required before the payment is due.

Revenue from the sale of metallic products, wine and
related products is recognised when the Group sells the

products to the customer.

Revenue from the travel and leisure service is
recognised when the services are rendered to the

customer.

Revenue from sales and production of LED devices is
recognised when the goods are delivered to and have

been accepted by the customers.
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4.

107

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(q)

(r)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Construction services revenue under service concession
arrangement recognised from the construction of
vehicle maintenance and logistic base, park and
transportation transfer station under the terms of
service concession arrangement is estimated on a
cost-plus basis with reference to a prevailing market
rate of gross margin at the date of the agreement
applicable to similar construction services rendered in

a similar location.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using

effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’

rights to receive payment are established.

Employee benefits
(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to

the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity

leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(it) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit
or loss represents contributions payable by the

Group to the funds.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(r)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(itt) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of the dates when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits, and when the
Group recognises restructuring costs and involves

the payment of termination benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from

the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the
amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is
the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable
to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying

asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or

loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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4.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(t)

(u)

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be

received.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they

become receivable.

The government grants relating to the purchase of land
lease prepayments, intangible assets, property, plant
and equipment and investment properties for the cost
of an asset are deducted from the carrying amount of
the asset and consequently are effectively recognised in
profit or loss over the useful life of the assets by way of

reduced depreciation and amortisation expenses.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised
in profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end

of the reporting period.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax
losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects

neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of

the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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4.

111

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying

amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and

liabilities on a net basis.

The carrying amounts of other non-financial assets
are reviewed at each reporting date for indications
of impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is
written down as an expense through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income to its estimated recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating-unit
(“CGU”) to which the asset belongs. Recoverable
amount is the higher of value in use and the fair value

less costs of disposal of the individual asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated
future cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset/

CGU whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against
the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the
other assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases in the
recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they reverse

the impairment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(w)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
trade receivables. The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition of the respective financial

instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions
at the reporting date, including time value of money

where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance
for that financial instrument at an amount equal to

12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected
to result from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.
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4.

113

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(w)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking
information considered includes the future prospects
of the industries in which the Group’s debtors operate,
obtained from economic expert reports, financial
analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and
other similar organisations, as well as consideration
of various external sources of actual and forecast
economic information that relate to the Group’s core

operations.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available)

or internal credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular financial

instrument;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;
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4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(w)

AR T HRT R A RAF -

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in

the operating results of the debtor;

- significant increases in credit risk on other

financial instruments of the same debtor; and

- an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet

its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable

information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to

have low credit risk if:

(i)  The financial instrument has a low risk of default;

(i) The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;

and

(iii) Adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to

fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
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4.

115

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(w)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to have low
credit risk when the asset has external credit rating
of “investment grade” in accordance with the globally
understood definition or if an external rating is
not available, the asset has an internal rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the counterparty
has a strong financial position and there is no past due

amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the

amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are

generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by

the counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a

more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(w)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired

includes observable data about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

counterparty; or

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event; or

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for

economic or contractual reasons relating to the

counterparty’s financial difficulty, having granted

to the counterparty a concession(s) that the

lender(s) would not otherwise consider; or

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation; or

- The disappearance of an active market for that

financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Whrite-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, including when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised

in profit or loss.
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4.

117

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(w)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information as
described above. As for the exposure at default, for
financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross
carrying amount at the reporting date; for financial
guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount
drawn down as at the reporting date, together with any
additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the
future by default date determined based on historical
trend, the Group’s understanding of the specific future
financing needs of the debtors, and other relevant

forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the expected ECL as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at

the original effective interest rate.

For a financial guarantee contract, as the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms of
the instrument that is guaranteed, the expected loss
allowance is the expected payments to reimburse the
holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts
that the Group expects to receive from the holder, the

debtor or any other party.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(w)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL in the previous reporting period, but determines
at the current reporting date that the conditions for
lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group measures
the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets for

which simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account, except for
investments in debt instruments that are measured at
FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve, and does not reduce
the carrying amount of the financial asset in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected to settle the

obligation.
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4.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(x)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is

remote.

Related parties

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s

family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the

Company;

(ii) has significant influence over the Company;

or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel

of the Group or the Company’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply:

(i) the entity and the Company are members
of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is

related to the others);

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which

the other entity is a member);
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(y)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply: (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

both entities are joint ventures of the same

third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the

third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of the

Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled

by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a) (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or

of a parent of the entity); or

(viii) the entity of any member of a group of

which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Company or to the

Company’s parent,
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4.

121

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(y)

(z)

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic

partner;

(ii) children of that person’s spouse or domestic

partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse

or domestic partner.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial statements reported to the executive
directors, who are the chief operating decision makers
of the Group, for their decisions about resources
allocation to the Group’s business components and for

their review of the performance of those components.

The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results are the same as those used
in its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs,
except that corporate income and expenses which are
not directly attributable of any operating segment, are
not included in arriving at the operating result of the

reporting segment.

Segment assets include all non-current assets and
current assets but deferred tax assets. In addition,
corporate assets including property, plant and
equipment and cash and bank balance held by
headquarter which are not directly attributable to the
business activities of any operating segment are not

allocated to a segment.
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4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(aa) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s position at
the end of the reporting period or those that indicate
the going concern assumption is not appropriate are
adjusting events and are reflected in the consolidated
financial statements. Events after the reporting period
that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes

to the consolidated financial statements when material.

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the

directors have made the following judgements that have the

most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the

consolidated financial statements (apart from those involving

estimations, which are dealt with below).

(a)

(b)

Joint control assessment

The Group holds approximately 50% of the voting
rights of its joint arrangements. The directors have
determined that the Group has joint control over the
arrangements as under the contractual agreements, it
appears that unanimous consent is required from all

parties to the agreements for all relevant activities.

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 4(w), ECL are measured as an
allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets,
or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset
moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does
not define what constitutes a significant increase in
credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an
asset has significantly increased the Group takes into
account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and

supportable forward looking information.
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123

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key

sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting

period, that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives,
estimated residual values and related depreciation
charges for the Group’s property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
The Group will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives and residual values are different to those
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have

been abandoned.

The carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment as at 31 December 2023 was
RMB346,736,000 (2022: RMB393,072,000).

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, income tax
expense of RMB17,935,000 (2022: income tax credit of
RMB2,012,000) was charged to profit or loss based on

the estimated assessable profit.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of financial assets measured at amortised cost

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS
9 across all categories of financial assets requires
judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount
and timing of future cash flows when determining
impairment losses and the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by
a number of factors, changes in which can result in

different levels of allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk for
exposures since initial recognition by comparing the
risk of default occurring over the expected life between
the reporting date and the date of initial recognition.
The Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort for this purpose. This includes
quantitative and qualitative information and also,

forward-looking analysis.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount
of financial assets measured at amortised cost is
RMB1,191,933,000 (2022: RMB565,491,000).

Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based
on the ageing and estimated net realisable value of
inventories. The assessment of the allowance amount
involves judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome in future is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value
of inventories and allowance charge/write-back in
the period in which such estimate has been changed.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, allowance
for slow-moving inventories of RMB636,000 (2022:
reversal of write down of RMB153,000) was recognised

to profit or loss.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(e)

)

Fair values of financial assets at FVTOCI

The Group appointed independent professional
valuers to assess the fair values of certain financial
assets at FVTOCI. In determining the fair values, the
valuers have utilised methods of valuations which
involve certain estimates. The directors have exercised
their judgements and are satisfied that the methods
of valuations are reflective of the current market

conditions.

The carrying amount of the financial assets at FVTOCI
as at 31 December 2023 was RMB256,039,000(2022:
RMB239,150,000).

m 1/{/))//(’}) assessment of 900c¢ 1('[ anc /)I (I)I”‘[‘)I’ assets
I ( t of goodwill and intangible asset

Determining whether goodwill and intangible assets
with definite life are impaired requires an estimation of
the recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill and intangible assets with definite
life and other non-financial assets have been allocated
which is estimated based on the higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal. The value in
use calculation requires the directors to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where appropriate, the recoverable amount
of the fair value less costs of disposal is estimated by
the independent valuation using market comparable
approach with reference to comparable companies

undertaken in the same industry.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(g) Valuation of biological assets

The Group’s biological assets are valued at fair value
less costs to sell. In determining the fair value less costs
to sell of the biological assets, the directors and the
management has applied the income approach which
requires a number of key assumptions and estimates
to be made such as discount rate, harvest profile, costs
incurred, cultivation area, and expected yield of the
biological assets. Any change in the estimates may
affect the fair value of biological assets significantly.
The directors and the vineyard expert have exercised
their judgement and are satisfied that the valuation is

reflective of their fair value.

The carrying amount of biological assets as at 31
December 2023 was nil (2022: RMB1,136,000).

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk
and interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on

the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency
risk as most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), United States dollars (“USD”), RMB,
Canadian dollars (“CAD”) and Euro (“EUR”). The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors
its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should

the need arise.
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6.

127

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2023, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened 4% (2022: 4%) against HK$ with all other
variables held constant, consolidated profit after tax
for the year would have been RMBI,878,000 (2022:
RMBI1,391,000) higher/lower, arising mainly as a result
of the foreign exchange gain/loss on cash and cash

equivalents denominated in HK$.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly
through its investment in listed equity securities.
Management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risk and
return profiles. The Group’s equity price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity securities quoted on the Hong

Kong Stock Exchange.

Sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the

reporting period.

If equity prices had been 10% (2022: 10%) higher/

lower:

o Other comprehensive income for the year ended
31 December 2023 would increase/decrease by
RMB1,176,000 (2022: RMB3,510,000) as a result
of the changes in fair value of financial assets at
FVTOCIL

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not
meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating
activities (primarily trade receivables), from its
investing activities, including receivables from partial
disposal of an associate and disposal of a subsidiary
and from its financing activities, including deposits
with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange
transactions and other financial instruments. The
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and
cash equivalents is limited because the counterparties
are banks and financial institutions with high
credit-rating assigned by international credit-rating
agencies, for which the Group considers to have low

credit risk.

Except for the financial guarantee given by the Group
as set out in note 41, the Group does not provide any
other guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk in
respect of these financial guarantees at the end of the

reporting period is disclosed in note 41.

Customer credit risk is managed by each business
unit subject to the Group’s established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit
risk management. Individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over
a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due within
90 days from the date of billing. Debtors with balances
that are more than 3-6 months past due are requested
to settle all outstanding balances before any further
credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain

collateral from customers.
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6.

129

(c)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. S B ()
(CONTINUED)
Credit risk (Continued) (c) fuEEBE(5)
Trade receivables (Continued) FEWG B 5 R 3k (#8)
The Group measures loss allowances for trade N Uk E ATREEINP GEER Y 7Fi
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which 1 < R B TR U 5 AR AR s 1R
is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s B > A R < T ) 6 A A e
historical credit loss experience does not indicate S o R A AR 5 DLAE RO AE B 1R
significantly different loss patterns for different KB N7 A B S [R] 2 5 0 A i B
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past ORI 2 L WA AR B
due status is not further distinguished between the e AN 7] 25 5 RE R A — 20 [ ) LA
Group’s different customer bases. IR DL S A e 1R A A o
The following table provided information about the R HE AL R R H e
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade Wi B 5 3 ) TR A BT 4R T K
receivables as at reporting date: X W5 B JE B R
Gross
) S Expected carrying Loss
As at 31 December 2023 +=ZA=+—H loss rate amount allowance
iR:) i ES K ThI 48 0 Nes 15 8% i
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARW TR ARW¥WTT
Current (not past due) B (ks 1) 0% 143,370 —
0-90 days 0-90 H 5% 14,333 717
157,703 717
Gross
AR T AR Expected carrying Loss
As at 31 December 2022 +—-H=+—H loss rate amount allowance
HMEE R M TH A8 Jies 1 48 e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥®TT AR®TT
Current (not past due) RO (o a1 0% 58,324 -
0-90 days 0-90 H 2% 41,726 830
1 -2 years 1-24F 10% 20 2
2 -3 years 2-34F 20% 25 5
100,095 837
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. W5 R B B (%)

(CONTINUED)

(c) Credit risk (Continued) (c) 15 EE B (4)
Trade receivables (Continued) WE G B 5 BE 3k (#8)
Expected loss rates were based on actual loss T R TR R R B E
experience over the past few years. These rates were B A Bt - % F L REAE
adjusted to reflect differences between economic o B > AR B T O i 4R B [
conditions during the period over which the historic B 88 IR DL B E AR LAY 2 5L
data has been collected, current conditions and the DA Je A A2 ) S I i sk TR T 30 4 )
Group’s view of economic conditions over the expected A K IR DL O o

lives of the receivables.

Movement for allowance for doubtful debts of trade MEWCE 5 Bk 2 R IRl 2 s 8
receivables is follows: mF :
2023 2022
—® =4 =l =
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T o0 N

At 1 January —H—H 837 =
Impairment losses (reversal) / ARAERE (W) SFERZ
recognised for the year VORIEN 2R (120) 65
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi I — ] A JBS A )
(note 40(a)) (B 5E40(a)) — 772
717 837

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR 130



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak B BV 5 e o M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

6.

131

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)
Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
include other receivables, pledged bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents. In respect of pledged
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents, since
there is no significant increase in credit risk, any loss
allowance recognised during the year is therefore
limited to 12-months ECLs. The directors consider the
probability of default is low on these balances since
the counterparties are financial institutions with high

credit rating or with good reputation.

In respect of other receivables of RMB142,029,000
(2022: RMB142,029,000) representing the outstanding
consideration for disposal of a subsidiary, the balance is
measured under a lifetime ECLs assessment of which a
loss allowance of approximately RMB72,619,000 (2022:
RMB46,504,000) is recognised as at 31 December 2023.

In addition, in respect of other receivables of
approximately RMB881,477,000 (2022: Nil) represents
the outstanding consideration for partial disposal
of 7.96% equity interest in Jade Bird Fire, a 23.15%
equity owned associate incorporated in the PRC (note
24). The balance is measured under lifetime ECLs
assessment of which a loss allowance of approximately
RMB144,322,000 (2022: Nil) is recognised as at 31

December 2023.

Moreover,
approximately RMB76,046,000 (2022: RMB46,623,000)

which had been defaulted for years, hence these

in respect of other receivables of

financial assets are credit impaired of which loss
allowance of approximately RMB76,046,000 (2022:
RMB46,623,000) was made as of 31 December 2023.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. IV LB A B (4)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) (c) 15 EE B (4)
Other financial assets measured at amortised cost (Continued) H fth 14 1 85 56 7K 71 B2 2 M B =
(#5)
Other than the receivables balances as mentioned, the W BT 2l 11 JE Wi B 4 R AN Hotb
remaining balances of other receivables are considered JRE SR TEL Y B T A5 B R 4 B
to have low credit risk as the counterparties have a low HEER  HE A T2 EL
risk of default and does not have any past due amounts. JE B A o HL f7 28 AT o] 760 38 S o
Impairment on these balances has been measured at an BN AERR 2 WE B A v 12
amount equal to 12-month ECLs and loss allowance of WHEREEEREZ S#s &
approximately RMB4,752,000 (2022: RMB10,201,000) ER_F_=4+"A=1+—
was made as of 31 December 2023. H>CfEREBRBEHOANRE
4,752,0007C (—F " "4 1 AR¥
10,201,0007C) °
Movement for allowance for doubtful debts of other Lt JE Wi 3K TER R 8 A 2 5 )
receivables is follows: Tt
2023 2022
e =Y =~
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T 5t AR¥T T
At 1 January w—H—H 103,328 71,092
Impairment losses recognised A T R 1) V(L e 4R A
for the year, net 210,798 35,880
Written off as uncollectible LSS £ A T R] g IE H (16,387) (3,644)
297,739 103,328
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6.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. IV LB A B (4)
(CONTINUED)
(d) Liquidity risk (d) U By 4 B
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current A 5 ) 2 BUR T 8 W1 B 45 B R
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that HMZ R E &K - WeiRAER
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its JE ) B 4 e AR S HL e
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. REWME EE®HK -
The maturity analysis based on the contractual MR A5 W R AT AE M BB 40
undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s non-derivative I LB B U B A B 43 A
financial liabilities is as follows: T ¢
On demand Between Between
or within 1 and 2and More than Carrying
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
TR ok
—ENEE  —EWE WELE EBLE st P T
RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETE AR¥TT AR¥TT ARBTT AR¥TT ARMT
At 31 December 2023 R =H2A
=t—H
Trade and other payables % 5 J¢ b FEff 58 951,156 - - - 251,156 251,156
Bank and other loans (note) A7 S H A 85K (Hf3E) 805,113 119,116 259,240 2,551 1,186,020 880,592
Lease liabilities HEARK 1,957 2,023 1,435 - 5,415 4,984
Financial guarantee REFS R 100,000 - - - 100,000 -
At 31 December 2022 I S |
=t—H
Trade and other payables % 5 J& H b FE i} 508 233,290 = = - 9339290 233,290
Bank and other loans (note) 17 XA (HEE) 791,765 20,791 85,688 99,236 997,480 943,528
Lease liabilities HEAE 8,50 7,648 20,024 77633 113,810 76,722
Financial guarantee FE R 300,000 - - - 300,000 -
Note: WY 5E

Bank and other loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or within 1 year” time band in the
above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the
aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of these bank and
other loans amounted to nil and RMB5,217,000 respectively.
Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the
directors did not believe that it is probable that the banks and
other financial institution would exercise their discretionary

rights to demand immediate repayment.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. W5 R B B (%)
(CONTINUED)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) B & &k (47)
The directors believed that such bank and other S A B SR AT B H A B R
loans will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled AR A5 8 K Tih ki A 1) T 22 3K H
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. At that W - mRE > A& M KRB
time, the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows BAammmT
were as below:
Total
Repayable Between 1 Between 2 Undiscounted
within 1 year  and 2 years and 5 years cash flow
ARz
AR N IR S MRS BlEiEAH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWTE  AR¥TTE AR¥TET AR¥TE
2023 LB - = - _
2022 B S o 5,217 - - 5,217
(e) Interest rate risk (e) FIZ A B

The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from
its bank deposits and bank and other loans. These
deposits and borrowings bear interest at variable rates

varied with the then prevailing market condition.

At 31 December 2023, if interest rates at that date
had been 10 basis points lower/higher with all other
variables held constant, consolidated profit after tax
for the year would have been RMBI189,000 (2022:
RMB227,000) lower/higher, arising mainly as a result

of lower/higher interest income from bank deposits.

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR

A 45 [ F R 32 2 A R e B TR S8R
AT A7 3K B SR AT B oA 83K - 5% 5%
A 3K e AR AR AR P R BLAT T DL
1M A€ 1Y 3 By S5 AR A o

WoEZZAFEFZH=+—H >
5 B 2 2T R/ L FH10M0 %
2T A H A R A RN B
AR N 2 &5 A B BLAR Wi AR IR
L1 A R #189,0007C (&
TR AR H227,00008) o E
B R SR AT A R 2 AR IR A B
TR
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

6.

135

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. B b A B ()

(CONTINUED)

(f) Categories of financial instruments at 31 December ) RTZH=Z=+T—HM&HTHH

il
2023 2022
—E = TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ¥ T8 ANR¥ET o
Financial assets: I
Financial assets measured at T B AR T 2 S
amortised cost 1,191,933 565,491
Financial assets measured at FVTOCI: DL SPE 51 A HAth 4 T8 U 4
Equity instruments ZIEE A TH 256,039 239,150
Financial assets measured at FVTPL PIATEF ARG 2 M3 E E 28,998 -
Financial liabilities: A
Financial liabilities at amortised cost DL 6 AR S HE 2 BAES A 1 1,136,732 1,253,540
(g) Fair values (g) A F 1A
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets T 5 B 5 IR UL 3R Sk 2 A AR
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated P B I B B U T B
statement of financial position approximate their AR B A AR A
respective fair values.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. ACPEGEHE

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an IOE BTS2 B R TR B T 2

asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction A Fp 28 5 v 8 T A R £

between market participants at the measurement date. The AT Z B o AN A TEGHE R

following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair PEAG (A ik mi A > $ A T EZE 4

value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs By Z A0 5 BUE BN EFTHAE

to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active FoEEMARYE :  AKLEREEH
markets for identical assets or liabilities that W45 M R K
the Group can access at the measurement BERE RS2
date. WAE (CRAETEE) -

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included 5 R A BLE 55— i s 2 )
within level 1 that are observable for the BLS BEE WA
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. 6 B 4% s W) 4% 1 8

SAT WA B

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability 5= B A BLE % ok B E 2

B 2 W N B -

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and AR 2 BUR T i S 5% A Bl 8 SO ¢

transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date of the ZEREEUOEE N H o B AR AR R R

event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer. AW A gz Hoh — A & 4R o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 7. AP R ()

(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 (@ RTZH=Z=+T—HAFHEHFHZ
December: B &5 -
Fair value measurement using: Total
AV RN Z G At
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2023
Wk B B B e et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFE  ARWTx  AR®TE  ARWTxR

At 31 December 2023 - o S ey Sl
Recurring fair value AP TR
measurements:
Financial assets B
Financial assets at FVTOCI ~ DLAT{EFFA Al 2
(note 27) ks 2 BB ¥ (it RE27)
- Listed equity securities - EHiRAES 11,759 - - 11,759
- Unlisted equity securities - JF LTl A5 % - - 244,280 244,280
11,759 - 244,280 256,039
Financial assets at FVTPL  DAVATHFFARE 2
(note 27) B R (W EE27)
- Unlisted equity securities - JF LTl A5 % - - 28,998 28,998
Biological assets g
Vines (note 23) B (i 23) - > - -
Total At 11,759 - 278,278 285,037
Fair value measurement using: Total
AFEF R Z B AEt
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2022
Bt H—E Ci EHEY —F--
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TE  AR¥®TET AR¥TZ AR¥TEI

At 31 December 2022 R-BZZHF+ZA=+—H

Recurring fair value R M PR
measurements:
Financial assets WB & E
Financial assets at FVTOCI  DA/ZSF-{H 5 A HoAth 2 1
(note 27) Wi i 2 B S S E (M EE27)
- Listed equity securities - b AR S 35,096 - - 35,096
- Unlisted equity securities - 3 L i A% % - - 204,054 204,054
35,096 - 204,054 239,150
Biological assets g
Vines (note 23) HE R (k23) - - 1,136 1,136
Total At 35,096 = 205,190 940,286

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR 136
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 7. AP R (F)

(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based (b) MEB=EIEATFHTGEZERE
on level 3: R
Financial assets at Financial assets at
FVTOCI unlisted FVTPL unlisted Biological 2023
Description equity securities equity securities assets Total
WA 3 A
Hb 2wl WA A
BB i Y St
B Eli AR 3 Ll A LR T it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARH 7 AREF NRWF 7 NRWF 7
(note 27) (note 27) (note 23)
(k2n) (W 3k2n) (M 7k23)
At 1 January 2023 REBZZHE-H—H 204,054 S 1,136 205,190
Total gains or losses recognised REREDZRESR
in profit or loss ER e - - _ _
Recognition R 387 28,998 = 29,385
Derecognition IR (929) - - (929)
In other comprehensive income A Een 40,768 - - 40,768
Decrease due to harvest R - - -
Fair value changes AFERH - = (988) (988)
Exchange differences EiLER = = (148) (148)
At 31 December 2023 REBZEEFZAZT-H 244,980 28,998 - 273,278

“Include gains or losses for assets 1 @AF R EMFLFE 2
held at end of reporting period L FAIeE 7 = = = -

Financial assets at

FVTOCI unlisted Biological 2022
Description equity securities assets Total
DVAFHFA
Hit 2 mis
ZHBEEE it S 2
fiEt A R A EWERE Mt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#F T ARHEF T AR#EF T
(note 27) (note 23)
(zE27) (Fit3E23)
At 1 January 2022 WoE - HE—F—H 266,565 961 267,526
Total gains or losses recognised in T A8 A HE R 2 M 4
profit or loss ERAEY - 248 248
Derecognition LR (117,724) - (117,724)
In other comprehensive income RN E 55,213 - 55,213
Decrease due to harvest TR ST 11T i 2 - (115) (115)
Exchange differences T - 42 42
At 31 December 2022 WZEZZHEFZH=1—H 204,054 1,136 205,190
® Include gains or losses for assets held ) @5 MR A 2
at end of reporting period VA e e & - 248 248
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based

on level 3: (Continued)

The total gains or losses recognised in other
comprehensive income are presented in other
comprehensive income in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss
are presented in other expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value

measurements at 31 December 2023:

The Group’s financial controller is responsible for
the fair value measurements of assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes, including
level 3 fair value measurements. The financial
controller reports directly to the Board of Directors for
these fair value measurements. Discussions of valuation
processes and results are held between the financial
controller and the Board of Directors at least once a

year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will
normally engage external valuation experts with the
recognised professional qualifications and recent

experience to perform the valuations.

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR

7. &PEEHE (B)

(b)

(©)

BB 5 = 3 A P AR 2 B E
¥R (4)

At 2 TR i i A A R 2 K i B
e IR A B R & A R 2 K HoAth &
T W 4 3% T 2 Al 4 T Wi 2R A 2
5

T 18 2 R 2 i R 1R A AR
R 1H 4 M At 2 T i 4 3R B 4
Iy FCAtL B 52

AHEHH _—F _=4H+_H
< — H B8k AR P & AP
R 7 i PR N WIREIE TN
Bk s

A 4R B 2 o s A B B BB
WHEATHUE Z A FEAE R B
BN EEE - M AR
B % %5 o~V E T B i e
W MBRERERGRDEE
B (R PP I &5 AT — IR

AR = A CERH R E > AL
2 R A R T AR
L 30 0 A6 B ) A1 T A (B R AT
flifH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 7. AFEEE (8)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group (c) KEFEMPKR -ZFZ_=41T2AH
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value Z=t—HEMAMNERT AP
measurements at 31 December 2023: (Continued) i 5 & B 8% =2 A6 18 5 5 S A

IRz BeeE - (4)
Level 3 fair value measurements Fair value
PELISITE e
Effect on

fair value for

Description Valuation technique Unobservable Inputs Range increase of inputs 2023 2022
B I \ 0
fi it it AT A Y 5% (L S FA 7 S T S

RMB000  RMB'000
ARHFE ARWTT

Biological assets Discounted cash flows  Risk-adjusted discount rate  9.2% (2022: 8.0%) Decrease - 1,136
thEE MRE R R ERE B % 92% (ZFZ2F 1 80%) WD
Growth rate 1% (2022: 1%) Increase
BR® 1%(ZFZ26 0 1%) 8
Gross margin 62% (2022: 58%) Increase
ER% 62% (ZF =26 2 58%) S
Private equity investment ~ Market comparable Discount for lack of 21.73%-40% Increase 244,280 204,054
classified at financial approach marketability (2029: 24.67%-40%)
assets as FVTOCI
MRBUAFEFARMS THLEE Bz 21.73%-40% s
iz it KL MRE (% Sutt
BAf % 24.67% - 40%)
Financial multiples of public 1.83 - 8.3 Increase
companies (2022:0.82-6.11)
ARATM LR 183-33 B
(ZFE-
0.82-6.11)
Private equity investment  Net asset value Net asset value RMBY,062 per unit ~ Increase 28,998 =
classified as financial assets ~ approach (2022: Nil)
at FVTPL
MERUATEFAREZ EEFHEE K BEMARK9 06T MM
M KRR BB SR (CEZ2f: )

139 Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited - Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak B B 5 e o Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

8. REVENUE 8. WA
Disaggregation of revenue W A B A
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by AR N T B S aUIR S B 2 B E S
major products or service line for the year is as follows: A A B
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥T oo NS T
Revenue from contracts with customers 7 U B RO YR SR 159K
within the scope of HKFRS 15 HWENZEFGHRA
Disaggregated by major products T B il B BS AR
or service lines #7> 2 W
— Income from infrastructure facilities, — BERERL M A > A EL G R
other than financial income from R 22 BRI BE BT A
service concession arrangements
— shuttle bus service - FREBHRE 15,473 -
— construction income - BEIRA 27,541 -
— Rendering of travel and leisure services — BRI il A B A [ R s 144,364 86,609
— Sales of wine and related products — 5 210 S AR B E 8,740 9,635
— Sales and production of LED devices — B KA ELED# 49,619 32,711
— Sales of metallic products — SHE SR 320,638 147,219
566,375 276,174

I AR T 5 22 WSO e 2 e i 1) 72 2 i
N\ B I TR R RR A > AS S B AT WA R
2 [ 7 2 — Ty ] B RS B i B AR o

The Group derives all revenue from the transfer of goods
and services at a point in time except for the revenue from
leisure services and construction income from infrastructure

facilities which are recognised at over the time.

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR 140
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9.

141

OTHER GAINS AND INCOME

9. s R WA

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T e ANR¥ET T
Bank interest income SRAT A Bl A 6,456 1,541
Government grants (note) B A (B 5 6,201 1,882
Gain/ (Loss) on disposal and written off of ¥ % ~ 5 M st ffi 2 &
property, plant and equipment g, (B4R B s 7,679 (1,664)
Share of income from film productions oAk BAE IS A - 28
Refund of value-added tax B E DR [ 993 1,496
Financial guarantee income o5 1 DR U 527 9,565
Penalty income A 1,834 1,834
Others HoAth (9,852) (154)
13,838 14,528
Note: Government grants in 2023 mainly represented the subsidy BYRE - AR T AR Y O ARG TSR b BB

to the Group by the PRC government as to compensate the

reallocation of certain property, plant and equipment and

subsidy to the Group by local government in the US for

satisfying certain conditions for employee retention during
COVID-19 epidemic. For 2022 mainly represented the subsidy

to the Group by the PRC government as to compensate the

loss suffered by the Group since the Hengshan Mountain

scenic area was temporarily closed in certain dates in 2022

and 2021 due to the policies and measures implemented by
the government of the PRC to deter the spread of COVID-19

epidemic in the PRC.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited

AR EN A T WE &
R T 16 A B O L 0 A R o DA KSR
186 B i IBURE 5 T A2 201956 1R 9% 5 97 %
55 109 F] 96 B L T A A AR A T 1) A 4
BRI ARG o T TR
HEBUFRTAREBRZ W4 > L
74 A ) b A A LR [ A R
R R AR BT RBE
DAL & v B BORT 2 P 5201956 1R 9 7
9 2 195 A B A T AT 0 BURE Bt
ATELd:0) 7Ei=W
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on its
strategic business units that are managed separately by the
chief operating decision-maker. Each strategic unit requires

different technology, development and marketing strategies.

During the year, the Group had four reportable segments,
which were managed separately based on their business
nature:
Tourism development - development of travel and
leisure business
Investment holding - holding of fund, debt and
equity investment, including
management fee income
Trading of metallic - sales and purchases of metallic
products products
Sales and production -
of LED devices

development, manufacture
and sale of high-end ceramic
high-power LED devices and
modules

All other segments = business activities and
operating segments not
separately reported, including
production and sales of wine

and related products

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as those described in note 4(z) to the consolidated
financial statements. Segment profits or losses do not
include interest income, unallocated other gains and
income, finance costs and unallocated corporate expenses.
Segment assets do not include unallocated corporate assets.
Segment non- current assets do not include financial assets

at FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL and deferred tax assets.

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as
if the sales or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at current

market prices.

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR

g1 il &R

7S AR o A R SR\ ST B Y
SRS SEB5 B T R AT AL D o A S
ST AL AR Bl - B R KT 0K
W o

TRAEA > AR BA R AT R 20 8 o Sl
AR 15 S5 1Y 65 1R g S B

i 36 9% J& — BRI KK
KB

BB - FrAEE - A1
Kt E > &
15 MBI A

HEEBEN — HELRRWBESE
FE it

B8 B ELED WFE ~ A Kb
A 5 i P B K T
HRLED#F A4

Pl HA R — EBEH KR
3 ViR 3lf I 98 7t
o BIEAE &
9 ) 70 B A
B E it

BB 2 G Rt BUR B R 45 S
5 22 B 54 (2) BT8R B 19— B - 4 B0 368
) S A A0 45 A S ~ A 4 i oA
e 5 A ~ RVE AR B R 43 P A 2E B
oo IRE R ARG R A EEE o
53 0 FE UL B R AN LS DA AT E R A
fib 2T Uk 55 2 BABS B A - LA TEFFA
25 2 IS R B TE o

A [ A SR i T ] o e 0 A )
B =77 8 1 B0 - BN RBIAT T AE -

142



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak B BV 5 e o M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 10. HEPE R (4)

R85 ox il A R s R BB

Information about operating segment profit or loss:

143

Trading of Sales and
Tourism Investment metallic  production of All other
development holding product LED devices segments Total
HEREE
T 3 88 e hEnh  HEEER LED#&H B LA i &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFL  AR®Fx  AR¥Fx  AREFx  AR¥Fr  AR%Tx
2023 B et
Revenue from external customers KEMEF ZIA 187,378 = 320,638 49,619 8,740 566,375
Segment profit/ (loss) Mg/ (ER) 7,719 310,730 4,738 (53,626) (1,258) 268,303
Interest income FERA 6,456
Finance costs W R A (53,857)
Unallocated corporate expenses ANRAERL (24,267)
Profit before income tax W B 8 i A 196,635
Other segment information: T HER -
Tmpairment loss on trade and other % 5 RE MRz
receivables WHEER (66,476) (144,322) = 120 - (210,678)
Depreciation and amortisation e R B (18,675) 4) - (9,249 (1,249) (29,227)
Share of (loss)/profit of associates B & Al (B4R /Al (3,354) 13,345 5 . - 149,991
Share of loss of joint ventures EhABLEER - (3,877) - - - (3,877)
2029 “EICE
Revenue from external customers 3¢ AR ZF 2 A 86,609 = 147,219 52,711 9,635 976,174
Segment (loss),/profit A (R /A 1,376 405,068 2,871 (14931) (14,643) 879,736
Interest income FEIA 1,541
Finance costs BB HA (34,808)
Unallocated other gains and income /LA & R 9,150
Unallocated corporate expenses ABRLERL (30,942)
Profit before tax BBl A 317,657
Other segment information: HbnHEH :
Impairment loss on trade and other % 5 R Mtz A2
receivables HIEER (15,89) = - (65) (19,98) (35,94)
Depreciation and amortisation T R B (18,760) (5) - (7472) (1,206) (27,443)
Share of (loss)/profit of associates  FE[BHE A () /Al (1) 178,361 = = = 178,360
Share of profit of joint ventures e - = 18,822 = = = 18,822

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about operating segment assets:

10. 4 @B & ORE (#)
BB EEZER

Trading of Sales and
Tourism Investment metallic  production of All other
development holding products LED devices segments Total
Bl Rk
T 3 58 e hEnhk HEEER LED#H  FRA A &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFL  AR®Fx  AR¥Fx  AREFx  AR%®Fx ARESx
At 31 December 2023 REBZZEFZAZT—H
Segment asscts AMEE 869,770 5,738,164 166,495 82,359 91,878 4,878,666
Unallocated corporate assets FORGEEE
Property, plant and equipment EN GYEL 6,355
Cash and cash equivalents Re kB EEEY 96,399
Others Hib 3,718
106,472
Total assets BEE 4,985,138
Segment assets including: AREERE
Tnvestments in associates REEAAZBE 60,912 9,552,669 = = - 9,617,581
Investments in joint ventures RAEEEZRE - 101,073 - - - 101,073
Additions to non-current assets FEFRBEE 113,057 1,497 - 2,054 - 116,808
At 31 December 2092 WZFZZE+ZA=+-H
Segment assets NHEE 824,538 8,725,220 157,646 125,013 98,065 4,835,482
Unallocated corporate assets FORGEEE
Property, plant and equipment EN GYEL il
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBe%EY 134,691
Others i 95,388
165,397
Total assets mEE 5,020,879
Segment assets including: R R L
Tnvestments in associates REEAIZRE 64,266 3,268,771 - - - 3,393,037
Investments in joint ventures REBLEIRE = 182,171 5 = = 182,171
Additions to non-current assets REFNBERE 38,355 - - 95,161 8 198,548

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 10. HEPE R (4)
Geographical information: b I8 R}
Revenue Non-current assets
B A I i By
2023 2022 2023 2022
—EC= TR CE DEBOESE —E-C

RMB’000 RMB’000 = RMB’000  RMB’000
ARWTE AR®TT ARWTRX AR®TT

PRC except Hong Kong O B 45 A i) 550,855 266,539 3,363,705 4,151,010
Hong Kong s 6,780 = = =
The United States B3z 8,740 9,635 15,699 17,411
566,375 276,174 3,379,404 4,168,421
In presenting the geographical information, revenue is based S Hh [ R > W A TR BEF T AT
on the locations of customers. H o
Revenue from each of the major customers, which amounted AH A EEREF (A4 FH it A10% 58
to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue is set out below: PLEE) Ml ARSI
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000

PN B AR T

Customer A* KFA* 187,516 69,276
Customer B (Note (i))* B (MEE(i)) * 115,304  N/A R#EH
Customer G (Note (ii))* FFC (BaE i) * N/A A 40,561
302,820 109,837
i Revenue from the customers were all derived by the segment & A EF RS AR RS
engaging in trading of metallic products. JEE i ) 207
(i) This customer did not contribute over 10% of the total (i) EEFRBE-_F___HF+_H
revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December = B kAR A AR [ A
2022. MEMAEEL0% -
(ii) This customer did not contribute over 10% of the total (i) ZEFREE_ZX_=/F+-H
revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December = — B R E S AR E AR A
2023. RERAE#10%
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11. FINANCE COSTS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak B B 5 e o Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

11. Bl&E A

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥T 5t ANR¥TT
Interest on bank and other loans SRAT B oA B ORI 56,978 47,663
Interest on lease liabilities HEARBZ AL 3,360 4,048
Total interest expense on financial A I AP FF AR 45 89
liabilities not at fair value through BB 8 AR 2 FILE B SRR
profit or loss 60,338 51,711
Less: Interest capitalised W E AR (5,317) (13,121)
55,021 38,590
Net foreign exchange gain 1t M 5, i 4 1 AR (1,164) (3,782)
53,857 34,808
12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 12. BifBii % (4 %)
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
N B AR¥T T
Current tax R 1
Provision for the year A A JEE 4 A
- PRC - 23,385 4,706
- USA - KB 2 2
Over-provision in prior year A AL A TR A A
- PRC - (10) (2,004)
23,377 2,704
Deferred tax (note 36) P& AEBLIA (K 5E36) (5,442) (4,716)
17,935 (2,012)

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 12.
(CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2023, Hong Kong Profits

Tax has not been provided as there is no estimated assessable

profits arising in Hong Kong (2022: Nil). I & L R
FoEE) -

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere has been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the country in
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,

interpretations, and practices in respect thereof.

Other subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC are
generally subject to income tax on their taxable income at a
tax rate of 25% (2022: 25%).

Pris BBl 3 (4 %) (4)

W E —F - EF T H =+ HIEF
BE > | R MR AE A v AR A R SRR R
iR (=

At 75 R SRR Ui ) 2 B TR T AR R A
RS S T TE B R 2 BiAT ik - iR
R AR % 0 2 BIAT B R A -

S 45 B o B ST 2 FA RS 2 ) 2
JE i B AR B AR B 25% (—F
0 25%) BT AR -
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2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ¥ T 7o AR T
Profit before income tax [ BT 75 A5 11 v ) 196,635 317,657
Tax at domestic income tax rate of 22 B N i 158 %225 %
25% (2022: 25%) (ZF 224 1 25%)
R 2B 49,159 79,415
Tax effect of share of results JRE A W v A T SE AR 2 BTS2
of associates (37,498) (44,590)
Tax effect of share of results of joint JEAL A8 A L2 2 BLTS 2
ventures 969 (4,706)
Tax effect of income that is not taxable A JE LB UL A 2 Bi %5 5 2 (4,104) (58,294)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses By 2 T R B S e 2 2
previously not recognised i 75 5 2B (91,384) -
Tax effect of expenses that are EEEIN SR P s 7
not deductible 88,684 11,205
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 7 i 58 Bi 5 s 15 2 Bl 1S 5 28 12,119 16,895
Over-provision in prior year R AF B AR A (10) (2,004)
Effect of different tax rate of A A ] 3 A I
subsidiaries operating in other B ) 2w A [
jurisdictions IR = 67
Income tax expense/ (credit) RETN A Eii ) 17,935 (2,012)

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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Ak B B 5 e o Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 13, A4 JE i Al
The Group’s profit for the year is stated after charging/ AR AR B AR AR B R R C 4Bk, (REA) BUR
(crediting) the following: KIH -
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000

PN B PN T

Amortisation of other intangible assets  Hfth 4 JE & 7 X i & %

and investments in film productions U (PS¢ 1 3,828 1,504
Auditors’ remuneration % B Bl M 4
— audit services — Bk B 2,021 2,514
— non-audit services — JE A% BUIR S 423 S
Cost of inventories sold BB ERA 441,995 209,855
Depreciation charge: PrEE sl
— Plant and equipment owned — WA Z W KA 23,290 15,605
- Right-of-use assets — i I HE A 7,408 7,893
— Investment properties — Gk 4,709 2,441
Gain from changes in fair value less costs 4= 4 & & 7~ 1~ (B 585 5 9ok &1 &5
to sell of biological assets BA Z W ik = (248)
Impairment on film production E 5 ]AEWE - 3,500
Impairment loss of goodwill R s 1R 34,847 =
Short-term leases charges A B ST 1,075 899
Cost of inventories sold includes staff costs and depreciation CEFREMNAEE B TARITEH N
of approximately RMB62,968,000 (2022: RMB39,065,000) K 62,968,0000C (& 4 0 AR
which are included in the amounts disclosed separately 39,065,0007T) > #%%F AT AR b SR
above. 45 % 2 A
14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 14. i B & F B 32
2023 2022
- S —EFE -
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ Tt AR¥T T

Salaries, bonuses and allowances B~ CAL KRG 67,525 B2l

Retirement benefit scheme B R AR A F 34
contributions 16,664 9,393
84,189 62,718

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR 148
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 14.

(CONTINUED)

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the
year the ended 31 December 2023 included three director
(2022: three) whose emolument is reflected in the analysis
presented above. The emoluments of the five highest paid

individuals are set out below:

1 B & A BA 52 (%)

RBE_F =+ _A=+—HI*¥
JE > ASE A B B NS =4
EH(CEF A =4) > K E RS
HR £ SCR I 2 50 o T4 s A
ANZMEmT :

2023 2022

TR =8 - S
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥T ANR¥ET T
Basic salaries and allowances FLA 4 M B RE 5,051 4,873

Retirement benefit scheme B ARAE A 5 3 AL 2

contributions 447 381
5,498 5,254

The emoluments fell within the following band:

MEREmT

Number of individuals

A ¥
2023 2022
e St SE
Less than HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to  “»ji*1,000,000%5 7t (F % it
RMB900,000) (2022: RMB859,000) ANE#900,00070) (—F = 4
N R #859,00070) 3 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7C 21,500,000 JC
(equivalent to RMB900,001 to (FH 5 % A R 900,001 7T %
RMB1,350,000) (2022: RMB859,001 to A E#1,350,0007C)
RMB1,246,000) (ZF =4 AR¥859,00100
& NR¥1,246,0007C) 1 3
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 % 7T 22,500,000 70
(equivalent to RMB1,800,001 to (FH & 7 N R ¥51,800,001 0 E
RMB2,251,000) (2022: RMB1,718,001 A R#2,951,0007C)
to RMB2,148,000) (ZF =4 ARH,718,001
L& AR H2,148,00000) 1 =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 A% e 2 Bit B

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

15. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 15. EHLEFME
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (a) EFREFME
The remuneration of every director and supervisor in HFHEBREFEHHIBLES (N
respect of a person’s services as a director, whether of AN\ B H B A R 2 B4 an
the Company or its subsidiary undertaking is set out T
below:
Retirement

Salaries and  Discretionary benefit scheme

Fees allowances bonus  contributions Total
B
e HEREM LA AN il 8 5k Hit
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB’000

i3 ARWFE  ARWTx  ARETFx  ARWTx  ARWTx

Name of directors HHEA
M. Ni Jinlei Rttt 800 1,080 = 33 1,913
Ms. Zheng Zhong BELL 220 523 - 129 872
Mt Wang Xingye ERERE 220 420 - 129 769
Ms. Guan Xueming RENLL 220 480 - 129 829
Mr. Liu Ziyi HrREE 80 - - . 80
Mr. Tang Xuan |5 g 80 - - - 80
Mr. Li Chonghua BRERE 80 - - - 80
Mr. Shen Wai WAL 80 - - - 80
1,780 2,503 - 420 4,703

Name of supervisors i 3
Mr. Fan Yimin —REE 50 - - - 50
Mr. Ouyang Zishi BRW T A Rk 50 - - - 50
Mr. Pan Yudong T RIEE 50 - - - 50
Ms. Cao Zhenzhen Egyut 50 - - - 50
Ms. Zhou Min Ll e 50 - - - 50
250 - - - 250
Total for 2023 CEROEERE 2,030 2,503 - 420 4,953
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

15. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 15. EHELEFEMNS (H)

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued) (a)

o % B S S (D)

Salaries and

Retirement

Discretionary  benefit scheme

Fees allowances bonus  contributions Total
B IREEA

e HEREW WAL BEL &t
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
i3 ARETE  ARETr  AR¥Tx  ARETE  ARWTR

Name of directors BREL
M. Ni Jinlei Regts 800 1,081 - 19 1,850
Ms. Zheng Zhong BELL 220 400 = 113 733
Mr. Wang Xingye ERERE 220 420 - 113 753
Ms. Guan Xueming FEL G 220 480 - 113 813
Mr. Liu Ziyi PRk i 47 - - - 47
Mr. Xiang Lei BEEE ii = = = = =
Mr. Tang Xuan g 80 - - = 80
M. Li Chonghua FRERL 80 - - - 80
M. Shen Wai i it 80 - - = 80
1,747 2,331 - 358 4,436

Name of supervisors B4
Mr. Fan Yimin T—RELE 50 - - - 50
Mr. Ouyang Zishi [l Ry 50 - - = 50
Mr. Pan Yudong BFREE 50 - - = 50
Ms. Cao Zhenzhen 373 ah 50 = = = 50
Ms. Zhou Min Rt 50 = = = 50
250 - - - 250
Total for 2022 “EOTERG 1,997 2831 = 358 4,686

Notes: (i) Appointed on 20 May 2022 MEE: ) MRZFZ_HFHHA-+H

(i) Resigned on 20 May 2022

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

15. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued)

Pursuant to the service contracts entered into
between the Company and its executive directors,
the Company’s executive directors are entitled to an
aggregate amount of discretionary bonuses of not more
than 5% of the consolidated profit after tax but before

the provision of such bonuses.

There was no arrangement under which a director or a
supervisor waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors or supervisors as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office during the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company and the director’s connected party had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during

the year.

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR

15. EHEAEHRME (M)

(a)

(b)

o % B (80

WA LN FBERITERT L
B & &) > Ay F AT HE S A HE
BB A BABIA (R R
AL 2 i) AR S M5 % 2 BTG AEAL

BE_F_ =K _F"—
ToA=t—HIREE S BRE
= B B g i 2 IR R S AT AT P
a3

BE_F_="FRKR_F__%F
+ZA=Z+—HIEEE AR4EEH
S A i) A o] 2 S al R o ST Al
B4 A B 5] A A 4 S
o SRR 2 % A 2 O A o

EHRRRY - RFEAHZER
A2 )RR A0 A A I S RT S AT
AR T AF R BCAF 1A AT BRF ] A7 A T
AN F H S BN R
WA E R G (A B R EUH
) WERZ S~ LK -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

16.

153

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s contributions to the
MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% of the salaries and wages
subject to a monthly maximum amount of HK$1,500 per
employee and vest fully with employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The Group’s PRC employees are members of a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The Group is required to contribute certain
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and wages to
the central pension scheme to fund the retirement benefits.
The local municipal government undertakes to assume the
retirement benefits obligations of all existing and future
retired employees of the Group. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the central pension scheme is to meet

the required contributions under the scheme.

The Group also operates other retirement benefits schemes
for all qualifying employees in elsewhere and required to
contribute certain percentage of the employee’s salaries

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

The Group’s contributions to retirement benefit schemes
vest fully and immediately with the employees. Accordingly,
there are no forfeited contributions under the retirement
benefit schemes which may be used by the Group to reduce
its existing level of contributions or contributions payable
in future years as at and during each of the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited

16.

B 1 A ST 3

7 £ [ AR5 7 s o ) 1 A R i Rk 491
T A G S R B — TE 5
ARSI (TEREFE ] - ALY
MBS H R TIREHF SR TE
5% wH > & B LA RE e AR
1,500 7T > 1 H A< 4 B A7 A 58 5 <
# 2R B R — MR BT o

AL 2 B B TS 2 B T BURN
AT 2 SR AR B ] o A SR B2 [
RBREFH RN ERA TSR TE
AT LA B B R ARAR A o Hb T B
IR B BUR S A SR I T A BLA e RIVHEAR
18 B 2B RARFI L PE o i b B IR
FEEIT & - AR H 2 BAEE AR Z A
BT AR AR -

AEMTNA B &I A G ERES
RS A AR ARAR R Gl > Sl ZH AR S 1
BEmER R ERRE B FEns T a
r A K

A A S R PR A M) B B 3t S 4l Sr
MEERER - Wit EBE_F =
ER-FZHFEFTZA=+T—HILEHE
JBE > AR RN 8 IE T M AT ] B IS i
Ak > AT B AR BT DL B A Y
PEFOKF- BUTE R A 4F BE B JE A 1k -
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18.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak B B 5 e o Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic and diluted earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2023 is based on the profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of RMB195,207,000 (2022:
RMB333,383,000) and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 1,514,464,000 (2022: 1,514,464,000) in
issue during the year. No adjustment has been made to the
basic earnings per share amounts presented for the year
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. There were no potential
ordinary shares outstanding during the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022, and hence the diluted earnings

per share is the same as basic earnings per share.

17.

5 15 2 R
15 Je i AR K% #  28 H
BE_Z_=FF+_H=+—HILF
FE o ARG A A ME AL SRR A Ty
43 P AR 5 AR 2N | AN R A A AT B U6
FIN R #195,207,00000 (% =
AR %333,383,00070) LA K 4F A £ 4547
W5 A 0 RE T2 #501,514,464,000 (%
TUTUAF 1 1,514,464,000) BEEEE o AT
MEE _F =R CFCF T A
= —H IR 2 R AR R 25 4
BEHHE REBE - =F R %
TS HZE P —HIEEE - MRS
TTAEAM VEAE G 48 B o WOt > 4 B
B R B A R L A g AR R -

DIVIDENDS 18. BB
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRW Tt NE¥F oo
Interim dividend of RMB6.7 cents AAE B B A A B R
(2022: Nil) per ordinary share paid T I A8 e N 6.7 03
during the year TR T AR R 101,469 -

On 8 August 2023, the directors had proposed interim
dividend of RMB6.7 cents (2022: Nil) per share totalling
RMB101,469,000 (2022: Nil).
shareholders of the Company in respect of the proposed

The approval of the

payment of the interim dividend was obtained at the special
general meeting of the Company on 13 October 2023. Part
of the interim dividend of RMB70,520,000 were paid while
the remaining amount of RMB30,949,000 was recognised as
other payables (note 32) in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

—R SRR

W oE=AENANE EHEEREIR
R R ARK6 7y (ZF
o IE) > A3 AR¥E101,469,0000T (—

T ) c ARNFEIRER = A
HT=H8#TMERFRRERG - > &40
AR O MR R IR AT F IR - O K
1350 43 vh A A BN R #570,520,000C
o i 4 %8 N R 530,949,000 7T 7 &5 A BF
5 MR U 2 e e R 2y JFC A B AN ST (B 5

32) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. P13 ~ W Rt

Leasehold
improvements,
furniture and

Frechold Machinery and office Motor ~ Construction  Right-of-use

land Buildings equipment equipment vehicles i progress assets Total

HEh%
KAEE EUA Y

1 By RBRRE WA Rl GRIR  fRERE fi
RMBOOO  RMBON  RMBOM  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBI0OOD
ARHTF  ARMTR  AREFR  ARMTx  ARWTx AR ARRFR  ARETR

Cost ik
At1 January 2092 RoEZZE-A-H 4160 65,099 93,550 8,796 74038 106,466 193,842 474851
Acquisition of a subsidiary B AR

(note 40(a)) (Kr3E40(a)) - - 9730 3,206 489 = 6,853 87,865
Additions RE = % 9,040 419 14616 17469 = 85471
Transfers it - 69,711 = = = (69,711) = =
Wiitten off fiis - - ! (7 - - - (14)
Disposals e - = = (33) (23,187) (28,329) = (51,543)
Exchange differences EizE 385 1,986 345 5 % - - 2,097

AtS1 December 2092and ~ REFZZE

1 January 2023 tZRET-Rk

“RoEE-A-1 4,545 185,029 54,15 12,433 65,978 25,895 200,695 498,721
Additions RE - - 2,59 313 15,443 20,844 - 36,995
Written off e - (4,565) = - = = - (4,365)
Lease termination &L = = = = = = (70,082) (70,032)
Disposals hE - - - (22) (2,440) - - (2,462)
Reclassification g = = = = = o = =
Exchange differences EnzR m 238 69 10 6 - - 420

At 81 December 2023 RZZZ=R
+oR=+-R @60 1B 56,616 19734 .87 619 1066 43008
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

19. Y3 - Wb Kok i ()

(CONTINUED)
Leasehold
improvements,
furniture and
Freehold Machinery and office Motor ~ Construction  Right-of-use
land Buildings ~ equipment  equipment vehicles i progress assets Total
e
R £ RIR
L By RARRE  BARE R ERIR  MREAER i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARBTE  ARETr  ARETx  ARMTx  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR
Accumulated depreciation Bt &
At 1 January 2022 RERZTE-A-H - 9491 7149 8,188 64,743 - 13978 103,544
Charged for the year C i = 3810 7943 806 3,046 - 7803 23498
Written off it = = 6) (6) = = = (19)
Disposals i - - - (32) (22,099) - - (22,061)
Exchange differences EizR = 296 309 5 i) - - 686
At31 December 2029and  REF-CE
1 January 2023 TZAZT-BR
ZRCZE-N-R - 13,597 15,395 9,008 45,789 - 21,366 105,655
Charged for the year i = 5,655 8,944 1,104 7,587 - 7,408 50,698
Lease termination fER L S = = S = = (18,463) (18,463)
Disposal itten off /s - (3,220) - @ (2,440) = = (5,690)
Exchange differences Efzs - 10 63 9 5 - - 147
- 16,093 24,402 10,100 50,941 - 10811 112,347
Carrying amount i
At 31 December 2023 Ko
+ZAZ1-H 4,62 114,629 32,214 2,634 26,046 46,739 119,852 346,736
At 31 December 2022 I
+ZHE4-H 4545 121,432 38,757 3,425 20,189 25,895 178,829 393,072

LR F RRFREBAARAT - % AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. W3k ~ WG Rt (4
(CONTINUED)
The analysis of the net carrying amount of right-of-use assets e AR B 2 I 4 A ) 0 R O E Y MR
by class of underlying asset is as follows: HFET
Leasehold Lease
land contracts Total
g MEGH At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T AR¥WTIT ARWTIE

As at 1 January 2022 WoE T —H—H 121,297 58,572 179,869
Acquisition of a subsidiary W B — ] R 8 2 )

(note 40(a)) (B 3E40(a)) - 6,853 6,853
Depreciation charged EC S (609) (7,284) (7,893)

As at 31 December 2022 and R _-Z - _#+_H=+—H

1 January 2023 E_Z_=4—H—H 120,688 58,141 178,829
Lease termination FHE# Ik = (51,569) (51,569)
Depreciation charged BRI (836) (6,572) (7,408)
As at 31 December 2023 BRoF=4FETFH=+—H 119,852 = 119,852

2023 2022
e S -
RMB’000 RMB’000

PN B AR T

Interest on lease liabilities HEABEZHE 3,360 4,048
Expense relating to short-term leases £ BH e WAL S 2 B S 1,075 899
Details of total cash outflow for leases, the maturity analysis BB 00 A A RE - AW
of lease liabilities and the future cash outflows arising from B 73 B DA B 1 oK B 4 2 AHL B AR B R
leases that are not yet commenced are set out in notes 35 ﬂifﬁﬁﬁL‘Hﬁﬁ”ﬁﬂﬁi\w‘?{gB&Md) °

and 6(d) respectively.

At 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of property, MNoE-=F+"HA=+—H W%
plant and equipment pledged as securities for the W5 e it 2 BRI (B L R AR
Group’s bank loans amounted to RMB248,694,000 (2022: BRITER KA FHEELS AR
RMB277,082,000) (note 34). #248,694,00070 (—F — T4« AR

277,082,0007C) (Kfiks4) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

The Group has carried out a review of the fair value
of its investment properties located in the PRC on an
annual basis with reference to the independent valuation
performed by a professionally qualified independent
external valuer, who had appropriate experience in the
relevant location and category of the properties being
valued. The valuation conforms to International Valuation
Standards and the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties as at 31 December 2023 was RMB269,774,000
(2022: RMB270,570,000) determined using market approach
with depreciated replacement cost approach which largely
used observable and unobservable inputs, including market
price per square, replacement cost, estimated useful life and

residual value under level 3 fair value measurement.

At 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of investment
properties pledged as securities for the Group’s bank loans
amounted to RMB199,121,000 (2022: RMB195,592,000)
(note 34).

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 20. REWE
2023 2022
S S ot - S
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥T ANBR¥ET T
Cost R A
At 1 January wh—HA—H 198,033 199,058
Additions WE 8,238 661
Other HoAty — (1,686)
At 31 December wt+—_A=+—H 206,271 198,033
Accumulated depreciation it g
At 1 January w—H—H 2,441 -
Charged for the year LENE4S 4,709 2,441
At 31 December wt+—_A=+—H 7,150 2,441
Carrying amount W T AL
At 31 December wt_H=+—H 199,121 195,592

7 B 6 AT T L S R B B 2
ANTE > W% — KA HEEHENE
S 4N A R 4 98 57 (E - HE R Bl A
) ZE 1) AR R b B K O T B A S R
A ACER o B R AL AT A B R R AN A E
T2 UM NG BES S -
AEBEBEYENR _—F_=F1+_H
=+ —HIATPEZ AR 269,774,000
JG (A AR ¥$270,570,000
JG) o Ji R A TSR Ko AR A
e o E B AT BLER KO W] I
AB > IS TN SERK - BE
AR ~ Al AT R A R R R B A >
R =B A T EEE -

MRoZBEZ=F+"A=+—H  Ef%x
£ [ ERAT B RRAE AR BOE W ZE R T S
AR #199,121,00000 (—F 4 : A
R %195,592,00000) (Bff5E34) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

21. GOODWILL 21. W&
2023 2022
TR =4 oE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T oo ANR¥T T

Cost BA

At 1 January w—H—H 39,812 204

Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 40(a)) U i — [ K& 2 & (K 3140(a)) = 39,608

At 31 December HtrtZA=1+—H 39,812 39,812

Accumulated impairment losses 25t WA s 18

At 1 January w—H—H - =

Impairment loss WAEE R (34,847) -

At 31 December wt+—-H=+—H (38,847) -

Carrying amount iR i AL

At 31 December wt+—_H=+—H 4,965 39,812
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at A ZETS 6 D A5 1) 2 I i B I i %2
acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from TR IR 2 267655 6 OF v 0 o PO B 4 A R
that business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill AL o 7 2 MR T AR S At D7 X0 B

had been allocated as follows:

2023 2022
RO —oE
RMB’000 RMB’000

PN B AR T

Sales and production of LED devices 858 &4 ELED g4 4,761 39,608
Investment & 204 204
4,965 39,812
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

21. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined
from value-in-use calculations. The key assumptions for the
value-in-use calculations are those regarding the discount
rates, growth rates and budgeted gross margin and turnover
during the period. The Group estimates discount rates using
pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The
growth rates are referred to past experience and current
market expectation and/or demand or based on long-term
average economic growth rate of the geographical area
in which the businesses of the CGUs operate whichever is
applicable. Budgeted gross margin and turnover are based

on past practices and expectations on market development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the
most recent financial budgets approved by the directors for

the next five (2022: five) years.

The pre-tax rate used to discount the forecast cash flows
from the Group’s operating segment of the investment
holding is 14.67% (2022: 12.81%).

For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying amounts
of goodwill of RMB39,608,000 and certain property, plant
and equipment of RMB28,739,000 as set out in note 19 to
the consolidated financial statements and certain intangible
assets of technical knowhow, computer software and
customer lists of RMB12,343,000 set out in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements and have been allocated
to the cash-generating unit of sales and production of LED
devices (“LED CGU”). An impairment loss of RMB34,847,000
was recognised in profit or loss which are mainly attributable
to expected decrease in sales in export market, the delay of
certain products in place for sale due to technical problem

and the substantial increase in raw materials costs.

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR

B 4 A R0 2 AT i JE]  BR AR R
BER AT IE R E - R EF A2 EE
BB TS B A B B R R R MR 2
BB B SR o AR S [ BR T AT S R B
IR 7 35 365 6 W6 ey ] 0 B B < 7 A B AL
25 JE B 2 A B BR BRI EE R DA R
IHELR o MR AR 2 25 1 K8 K H R T
DUTE I R, ol R AR 42 B e A A
K8 S5 P A L 8 2 -3 R I AR I I R
RKEtH BTEEA) c HETMNEE
S B AR R A0 o S B Tl 40 9 i L

2

7E °

A 4B [H R P 48 B S AL UE 2 R R HAR (L
TR AR T ) BOTE B
B & o

ST BIA L B RGBT 2 808
4330 T A5 TR B 4 O 2 BR B R LE 2R S
14.67% (& "4 1 12.81%) ©

FHAEAT W WAL PR IR I E A R
39,608,0007C K #7 T W) 2 ~ W5 T wk
0 1 (A S #528,739,00000 (8 45 &
P S S M 5 19) B A Al ik~ wH A A
WA RRF 28N T Y& & R
N R 12,343,00070 (3 7 47 & I 55
R E22) B 4 i & 8 8 KA ELED
TR Bl & E A AL (TLEDB & A4 B
f]) o W R 34,847,000 B
B T RERR - TR O
BHEEER N [~ A T b DR B )RR 4iE
B S DL FR R AS K b T
o
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21.

161

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Sales and production of LED devices (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the LED CGU was determined
based on the measurement of fair value less costs of disposal,
a level 3 fair value measurement. The valuation of the LED
CGU was carried out by an independent valuation firm who
held recognised and relevant professional qualifications and
had recent experience in the valuation of private unlisted
entities. The fair value less costs of disposal of the LED
CGU as at 31 December 2023 was measured using market
comparable approach. The variables and assumptions used
in computing the fair value less costs of disposal of the LED
CGU were based on the independent valuation firm’s best

estimate.

The significant unobservable inputs into the approach were
as follows:

Discount for lack of marketability 40%

Financial multiples of public companies 2.26 — 2.69

The higher the lack of marketability was, the lower the
fair value was. The higher the financial multiples of public

companies was, the higher the fair value was.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited

21.

w2 ()
88 K A A LED 2% A (#)

LED I 43 /3 A5 B0 1 ] i [m] 4 AR 5 2
SR B AR (55 =B A TEEHE)
FE o LEDBI 4 AR BAL AN E B — R
SEAG A A HEAT » 7% FIRRA A R A AR
B RS AR - MRS IR i B AT
fE R ARE - N X =412
H=+—H > LEDH & & £ B 1A F
E W B A PR T 45 AT L ik AT - 5
HLED I 4 72 A ¥ I 2 FE W B L
A T {55 P 1) 5 o T AR A R i 8 ST A
45 v B e R AL EE

IR L R IR BE WA T

iz T i A A R B 40%
DN RN T RS H R 2.26 — 2.69
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22. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak B B 5 e o Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

22. At i

B

Transport operation licence 2 30 1 i A% 8 R IR
Transport
operation Technical Computer Customer Operating
licence Knowhow softwares list concession Total
230 L
REMM ffmak R %FhE  RERHE At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFE  ARETT  AR®Tx  AR®TT  AR¥Tr  ARETx
Cost JA
At 1 January 2022 WoZ-_HF—H—H 30,000 - 2,021 7014 - 39,035
Acquisition of a subsidiary it — i it /8 /4 7]

(note 40(a)) (W 3E40(a)) - 6,035 466 8,442 - 14,943
Exchange differences B xR = - 27 648 - 675
At 31 December 2022 S

and 1 January 2023 ToAZT—HER

ZZZ=H-A-H 30,000 6,035 2,514 16,104 - 54,653
Additions NE - 38 145 - 71,392 71,575
Reclassification BHAM - - 47) - - 47
Written-off i g (30,000) - - - - (30,000)
Exchange differences e 50,7 5L - - 4 130 - 134
At 31 December 2023 REBZ=4

+=HA=Z+—H - 6,073 2,616 16,234 71,392 96,315
Accumulated amortisation E it g
At 1 January 2022 W-Z_-_4—H—H 30,000 - 1,224 7014 - 38,238
Amortisation charged ngﬁr At S

for the year - 4h3 418 633 - 1,504
Exchange differences xR - - 21 648 - 669
At 31 December 2022 S

and 1 January 2023 TFZA=t-0ER

“E-=HF—H—H 30,000 453 1,663 8,295 - 40,411
Amortisation charged AR RS

for the year - 604 397 844 1,983 3,828
Written-off i (30,000) - - - - (30,000)
Exchange differences e 507 5L - - 5 130 - 135
At 31 December 2023 REZT=4

TZAZt—H - 1,057 2,065 9,269 1,983 14,374
Carrying amount M 1
At 31 December 2023 REZBZ=H
FZAZF—H = 5,016 551 6,965 69,409 81,941
At 31 December 2022 Q-
+-H=+—H - 5,582 851 7,809 - 14,242
AL R BSBRFRRBARA R - 2 =R 162
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OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The Group’s intangible assets of technical knowhow arose
from acquisition of a subsidiary during the year ended
31 December 2022. These intangible assets represent the
registered patents applied to various LED products. The
remaining amortisation period of the technical knowhow is

10 years.

The Group’s transport operation license represents a public
transport monopoly operation in a designated national 5A
level tourist attraction in the PRC. This asset is used in the

Group’s Tourism development segment.

Customer list represents customer relationship acquired
through business combination. The remaining amortisation

period of the customer list is ten years.

Operating concession represents the rights to operate
shuttle bus service and is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over the
respective period of the operating concession granted to the
Group of 1-6 years. Details of this operating concession is as

follows:

The Group through its subsidiary engage in the
business of rendering shuttle bus services in the PRC
and has entered into a service concession arrangement
with the local government in the PRC on a Build-
Operate-Transfer (“BOT”) basis in respect of its
business. The service concession arrangement generally
involve the Group as operator to (i) construct vehicle
maintenance and logistic base, park and transportation
transfer station (collectively refer to “Infrastructure”)
on a BOT basis; (ii) operate and maintain the
infrastructures on behalf of the local government. The
Group will be paid for its services over the period of
the service concession arrangements at price stipulated
through pricing mechanism. The vehicle maintenance
and logistic base, park and transportation transfer
station will be transferred to the grantor at the end of

the service concession period for BOT.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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HE o BZIHEE )Y AR B 2 ik e S 9%
JE I ER o

EIREA Sy e SE VSRl
B HFZHE BT MM A104F -

AR R M A AR O R B RS RO
A > DLSCAS Bk 2 w8 AT (T 2t el (E
WSR2 5] o 5 $c A 42 I HE A2 A8 8 4
RER AR FE IR (1-6 4F) LA B AL RHE -
A E R RTRER RS T

A AR [ 37 o O 4 R AE b
PR RS 2 WA
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0 Ak ol L Bt R R o IR AR R E
PRI A 45 1 DA 1 4 T L
SE 1B S A IR S £ o B A
16 B iy T b ~ R [ S A iy o e
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22. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Transport operation licence (Continued)

(i)

(12)

Nature of arrangement (Continued)

The Group is generally entitled to operate all
infrastructures, however, the grantor controls and
regulates the scope of services that the Group
provides to the infrastructures and retain the
beneficial entitlement to any residual interest in the
infrastructures at the end of the service concession
period. The service concession arrangement is
governed by a contract entered into between the Group

and the local government in the PRC.

Provision for major overhauls

Pursuant to the service concession agreement, the
Group has contractual obligation to maintain the
infrastructures to a specified level of serviceability and
restore the infrastructures before they are handed over
to the grantor at the end of the service concession
period. The contractual obligation to maintain and
restore the infrastructures is recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 37, i.e., at the best estimate
of the expenditure that would be required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period.
The future expenditure on the maintenance and
restoration costs is collectively referred to as “major

overhauls”.

No provision for overhaul considered as necessary as
at 31 December 2023. The provision shall be reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to

reflect the current best estimate by the management.

Particulars of the impairment testing on intangible
assets of customer list and technical knowhow are
assessed together with the goodwill of LED CGU in
note 21.

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR

22. Hith I & B (4])

52 00 0 i

(1)

(ii)

G HEHET (4)

A G [ — A RERC S T A SRR
B MR L B AR R
T 5 i e e £ 3t A S P A I
TE R 5 e AR 300 2 SR Ty % B S S
T 7 A e o % M i ) 3% i B
I 5 A AR 22 P 2 A 4 T B eh )
b 75 BURT AT S B 5 A

K i 15 T

R4 M 5 4 MR B AR A
B K TAT AE B R A ORI
o LB Al B RS 2 T AR A
1% L A 2 S AT KPS AT
BAR - M BRI B &
A BEAE AR 9 A R HE QI SR 3T
AT HERE Rat & R HE BR
i 18 8 T T 0 S Y e
CHNCEE T VS LE SN
B TERE] -

MR-F_=+"_A=+—H>
M M 5 % A A B K AR B B
i o 454 S 45 o U A R IR
B o S A AT 3R R DL AR B
B AR o

% U Bk ) Y
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BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

The Group is engaged in the production and sales of wine
and related products. At 31 December 2023, the Group
owns 4 acres (2022: 7 acres) of vines. During the year, the
Group harvested approximately 15 tons (2022: 12 tons)
of grapes, which had a fair value less costs to sell of nil
(2022: RMB115,000) (determined at the time of harvest)
with reference to their market prices. The fair value of the
Group’s biological assets as at 31 December 2023 has been
determined based on income approach and taken into
account the adjustments to harvest profile, cost incurred,

cultivation area, and expected yield of the biological assets.

23.

A&

7 B2 [0 % 257 % 0 B AT R E 2 AR
BEER A _FE =+ H =+ —
Ho AEEBEAIANE (CF - F 7
INVE) A o SRR AR 42 (B R A R
BAIBME (T F — 4F  1920F) - HAP
EWEERABE(TE T AR
#115,0007C) GRAWOR IR T ) > &
SEE AR TE - AEEAYEER
FoEHET A= HZATERE
WA E > I EE A G E R
MG - B A 2 A - fl R b 3 % 75
B [l 4 > R o

Reconciliation of carrying amount of vines: fi 23 16} % I B 2 R -

2023 2022

S EV Y S
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ T e ANR¥ET T
At 1 January w—H—H 1,136 961

Gain from changes in 2N V(8 5 ) U B S AR

fair value less costs to sell Z Wi = 248
Decrease due to harvest WA T 9 D (988) (115)
Exchange differences [ifE 5, 7 %A (148) 42
At 31 December wt+—_H=+—H - 1,136

The Group is exposed to climate and other risks related to

its vines:

Climate and other risks

The Group’s vines are exposed to the risk of damage from
climatic changes, diseases, fires and other natural forces.
The Group has extensive processes in place aimed at
monitoring and mitigating those risks, including regular
vines health inspections and industry pest and disease

surveys.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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24. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

24. RBBEAFZHRE

2023 2022
—ECEE —E
RMB’000 RMB’000
N B AR ¥ET 7T
Unlisted investments: I EHHRE -
Share of net assets JREAG VR 2,613,581 3,333,037

Amounts due from/(to) associates are unsecured,

interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms.

Details of the Group’s principal associates at 31 December
2023 and 2022 are as follows:

FEW,” (HEAT) B 2 R 3R T SEHE A
G B % S 1 5 R o

AEER_F_=ZFRF D FA
A=t+t—RZEZEEEAH :

Place of Percentage of equity
Name incorporation Registered capital interest Principal activities
A AL 10 B kA A8 i ¢ 7 28 B FEEH
Direct Indirect
H# Il

Jade Bird Fire Co., Ltd. Hebei, the PRC RMB240,000,000 23.15% Sales and contract works of
(“Jade Bird Fire”) (2022: 31.88%) embedded system products

and related products

HR BB A R R B 240,000,000 23.15% ik ARG fh S BRE
([ 5B ) (Jnte St - ZHE R AR TR

31.88%)

Beijing Jade Bird Hengsheng Beijing, the PRC RMB1,000,000,000 = 1% Investment in unlisted PRC
Investment Fund (Limited (2022: 40%) enterprises or growing entities
Partnership) (“HS Fund”)

TRERERLEES R R R #1,000,000,0007 - BB LU

(HRE®) (EEEs] Ez== 1 Vi3
40%)

Chuanqi (Hunan) Cultural Hunan, the PRC RMB150,000,000 - 29%  Infrastructure construction
Development Co., Ltd. and supporting development
(“Chuangi Cultural buildings for the Tianzi
Development”) Mountain.

{5 (B UL B RA R Gl AR 150,000,000 KT IIMARR R R R
(=g RERGERT

AeRALRE BRF RS A RAT - % AR 166
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24. BB AFZH7E (M)

(CONTINUED)
Place of Percentage of equity

Name incorporation Registered capital interest Principal activities

an sk 3 it 1A A MK 1 B i i 2 B EERH
Direct Indirect
Hi% %

Beijing Xinzhongrui Venture Beijing, the PRC RMB250,000,000 = 25%  Investment in unlisted PRC
Capital Co., Ltd. enterprises or growing entities
(“Xinzhongrui VC”)

A5 R AR B A IR A GBS A RH250,000,0007 BB LR R
(T &b Al ) ERZBE

Eta Semiconductor Technology Shanghai, the PRC RMB104,295,272 22.86% - Sales and production of
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. semiconductor materials and
(Eta Shanghai) investment in unlisted PRC

enterprises or growing entities

HERERA (L) ARAR B LR AR H104,295,2727C S R PR AR B e B
(k% L) LSRRz B8R

Shanghai Shengjin Venture Shanghai, the PRC RMB200,000,000 25% 20%  Investment in unlisted PRC
Capital Investment Co., Ltd. enterprises or growing entities
(“Shanghai Shengjin VC”)

LiRAAREEARA Gl A 8200,000,0007 BB LT AR e
([ LigEA 8] ERZBR

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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24. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 24,
(CONTINUED)

The following tables show information on the associates that
are material to the Group. These associates are accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method. The summarised financial information presented is

based on the HKFRS financial statements of the associates.

B 2 ' (A

TRV B AR 5 i R A
Rl ZERE o W2 A AR AR B ik
FUAME 2R HE AR o BT 2250 I8 ORI 2
TR BRI o W) A s B i o E ) B
Bk -

Name Jade Bird Fire
A GRAGL]
2023 2022

% of ownership interests/voting rights held 7% 4 FEI#54 Z ¥ A HE

by the Group Rt RERE S 23.15% 31.88%

RMB’000 RMB’OOO
AR T e ANR¥ET T

At 31 December W+ _H=+—H
Non-current assets R B & E 1,799,801 1,352,473
Current assets it B 6,677,743 6,710,750
Non-current liabilities IF B B 1 (131,227) (155,021)
Current liabilities ) AR (1,864,200) (1,907,703)
Net assets attributable to owners HEA N AL T & = 6,482,117 6,000,499
Less: Share capital injected by W HA B R A 2 AR

other shareholders (134,140) (1,407,621)
Add: Dividend paid during the year s ARG B S AT 2 RS 169,661 145,961
Less: Other reserve W H At A (104,301) 229,621
Less: Exchange reserve Wk c BE SO fE A 6,992 9,434
Less: NCIs W IR R A (239,697) (193,688)
Net assets attributable to owners XN [CRE S - 6,180,632 4,784,206
Group’s share of net assets ALEEH G T E E 1,430,816 1,525,205
Fair value uplift 2NFAE BT 926,295 1,239,726
Dividend received B % B (40,494) (51,394)
Other adjustments At 57 (102,283) 107,759
Group’s share of carrying amount of A4 9 434 RE 25 R 1

interests 2,214,334 2,821,296
Year ended 31 December: BET_-HA=1—HIL4EE:
Revenue YA 4,863,967 4,442,080
Profit for the year AR B Y5 A 659,534 570,263
Other comprehensive income oAt 4 T Uk 35 (47,733) (50,404)
Total comprehensive income 2 THT AL 4 AR 611,801 519,859
Dividends received from associates B AT B A N T S 40,494 51,394

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR
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24. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
(CONTINUED)

169

#

On 21 November 2022, the Group entered into the sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to
dispose then 7.96% equity interest in Jade Bird Fire at a cash
consideration of RMBI1,101,846,000. On 3 May 2023, having
satisfying all the terms and conditions, the Group transferred
its ownership of then 7.96% equity interest in Jade Bird Fire
to the independent third party and the disposal transaction
was completed. This transaction constituted a very substantial
disposal according to GEM listing rules of Stock Exchange.
Further details on this are disclosed in the circular dated 9
March 2023.

The carrying amount of 7.96% equity interest of
Jade Bird Fire on the date the equity method was

discontinued are as below:

24. BB AFZH7E (M)

e s iy B S B BE Y  JHNE
o BEL A8 7 5% = 7 T o R Wbk o DA
S ACE AN R #1,101,846,00070 H: 15
ST BT7.96% 0 5 WO o A =% =
FEHAZH o EE IR R B A
1% A EAS KA E R 7.96%
SO R EE T LS =0 W5
B B 2SS o R R B 5C BTGEM b T
HUAI > 52 5 W IR ORI
He ARFHBERR -Z_=F=AI
H )4 BR o

5 55 1K B3 '7.96 %% FEARE 7 A i 1)
ik A AR (AR

RMB’000
PN

Carrying amount of 7.96% equity interests of

H 5 1H B1i7.96 % B RE i AS Pl

Jade Bird Fire on the equity method HE A 125 114 MR 1

was discontinued 736,311
Gain on partial disposal of Jade Bird Fire R 55 R T Bl Y W AR 365,535
Cash consideration B U 1,101,846
Partial cash consideration received B i 5B or Bl e A0 E 220,369
Net cash inflows arising from the disposal B T A A Y B B R A TR R 220,369

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited - Annual Report 2023
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24. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

24. BB AFZHRE (M)

an independent third party to disposed 40% of the equity
interest at cash consideration of RMB15,484,000. Having
satisfied all the terms and conditions of the agreement, HS
Fund ceased to be an associate of the Group and a loss of
disposal of the associate of RMB28,530,000 was recognised
in profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2023.
Accordingly, financial information of HS Fund is not disclosed
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

(CONTINUED)
Name HS Fund Xinzhongrui VC
41 o 5 & 15 v 3 A1
2022 2023 2022
- S - = -
% of ownership interests/voting A B 15 A 2 R
rights held by the Group R BEMEE T 41%/41%  25%/25% 25%/25%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARWTIE AR¥TT
At 31 December BR+_H=+—H
Non-current assets JE W B E 43,568 63,997 121,676
Current assets B 161,616 12,392 12,337
Non-current liabilities e E=E = = (809)
Current liabilities B R R (33,285) (120) (60)
Net assets T 171,899 76,269 183,144
Less: NCIs W IR R A (30,315) - =
Net assets attributable to owners BEAH N Ah & E 141,584 76,269 133,144
Group’s share of net assets A AE [ o AL TG E 58,049 19,067 33,286
Other adjustments At 3 2% (479) - =
Group’s share of carrying amount of 7 48 [8] 43 {5 4 I 1 (4
interests 57,570 19,067 33,286
Year ended 31 December: &2+ _H=1+—H
k4R B
Revenue PN - _ _
Loss for the year AN R 4R (17,248) (262) (549)
Other comprehensive income o Ath A T Wi a5 (16,230) (56,613) (21,039)
Total comprehensive income A TH i A5 AR A (33,478) (56,875) (21,588)
Dividends received from associates % WS 22 2\ &) ik &, — — -
z The Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement with & 7 42 (8] B N7 5 = O WD L oh ko

DL 4 A1 N R H515,484,0007C H B

40% 14 FECHE < T 2 AR o sk A9 BT A1 A K

S

After the disposal, the Group retained 1% equity interests in
HS Fund which was classified as a financial assets of FVTOCI.

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR

R 4% 1 B O 4 R PO AR 4R A
M E AR R E T =
+ZHA=+—HIEEE > REBEHF
R B — M BE A ER AR
#98.530,0007T ° K It » Ak & =&
CTEEF AT HIEEERARE
75 0E B A 0 B S R o

AR A G ] O B R R 1 %0 Y B
HE > S B AR DL Pl FE A A
BT A ik 2 B S o
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24. BB AFZH7E (M)

associates

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited

(CONTINUED)
Chuangqi Cultural
Name Shanghai Shengjin VC Development
% LS A {8 77 S0 Ak %
2023 2022 2023 2022

% of ownership interests/ REEFEE 2 A RE

voting rights held by the Wi,

Group [ER 4 45%/45%  45%/45%  49%/49%  49%/49%

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMEFE AR¥T T AR¥TE AR¥TT
At 31 December WH+H+A=+—8H
Non-current assets JE v Eh & 437,016 489,075 - =
Current assets mEEE 32,127 32,038 194,787 194,488
Non-current liabilities JE T Eh A fE (71,179) (77,188) - =
Current liabilities i B A (3,500) (1,500) (64,514) (64,214)
Net assets FEE 394,464 442,425 130,273 130,274
Add: share capital not e A BCR AR A
injected by other Z A
shareholders - - 3,000 3,000

Net assets attributable to WA NG FEE

owners 394,464 442,425 133,273 133,274
Group’s share of net assets IR AE B A G 177,509 199,091 65,304 65,304
Other adjustment FH Ath 57 = = (4,392) (1,038)
Group’s share of carrying 7 5 [ 43 A 2

amount of interests % T (E 177,509 199,091 60,912 64,266
Year ended 31 December: #=2+-H=+—8H

1EAE R

Revenue PN - - _ _
Loss for the year A4 T i 1R (1,911) (1,546) (1) (1)
Other comprehensive income H At 2 T e (46,050) 87,716 - =
Total comprehensive income 4 T I¥ %5 48 48 (47,961) 86,170 (1) (1)
Dividends received from B U s A S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak B B 5 e o Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

24. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 24. RBEA A ZHE ()

(CONTINUED)
Name Eta Shanghai
%W B0 i
2023 2022
% of ownership interests/ AL AT 2 A 22.86%/ 22.86%,/
voting rights held by the Group Mt BEMEA 22.86% 22.86%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARW Tt NR¥TF ot
At 31 December m+=H=1+—H
Non-current assets FREEE 231,612 273,165
Current assets B 82,066 100,960
Non-current liabilities FE I E A = -
Current liabilities e B=R (157,668) (181,334)
Net assets 5 156,010 192,791
Add: share capital not injected by s HAl R R TEA
other shareholders 2 BA — =
Net assets attributable to owners B NG T EE 156,010 192,791
Group’s share of net assets AL A R E 35,663 44,073
Goodwill [l 3 100,656 100,656
Group’s share of carrying A4 T 73 Ak R i B T
amount of interests 136,319 144,729
Year ended 31 December: BET-H=1—HIL4EE :
Revenue PN 7,575 1,289
Loss for the year AR 1R (36,781) (75,552)
Other comprehensive income JF At 22 TR WA i = =
Total comprehensive income 2 T i 4 AR (36,781) (75,552)
Dividends received from associates £ WO A W iR - =

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

24. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

173

(CONTINUED)
The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s share
of the amounts of all other immaterial associates that are

accounted for using equity method.

24. BB AFZH7E (M)

RSN H AL B A T A A A
B At A HE 2 i A MR 2 B O R 2 MO o

2023 2022
e =y =~
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T PN
At 31 December: mR+_H=4+—H:

Carrying amounts of interests HE 2 R T {H 5,440 12,799

Year ended 31 December: BETHAH=1T—HIL4E :
Profit/ (Loss) for the year AAEFEW A (5 18) 2,051 (1,203)
Other comprehensive income S At 4 1T AL A = -
Total comprehensive income ey 2,051 (1,203)

At 31 December 2023, the bank and cash balances of
the Group’s associates in the PRC denominated in RMB
amounted to RMB2,011,309,000 (2022: RMB2,375,949,000).
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign

Exchange Regulations.

The Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with an independent third party to dispose of 30% of
the equity interests of one immaterial associate at a cash
consideration of RMB300,000. Having satisfied all the terms
and conditions of the agreement, such immaterial associate
ceased to be an associate of the Group and a loss of disposal
of the associate of RMB965,000 was recognised in profit or
loss during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited

WoZE =+ _A=Z+—H K&
A AL LN W R E 2 A B 2
SRAT M SRR B AR 12,011,309,000
JG (R AR - AR HK2,875,949,000
IR YN K SR N G YN
FLAN B I B AR ) B (A5 E - B I
AR A 3R ) B

7 A ] B0 7 58 = T o0 U ok > DA
B4 AR N R H300,00070 H B — B Ik
RIS F130% 10 BERE o A 8 1 i ok
9 AR5 > 2 IEE RIS A
AAHEAREENE S AR HE_Z
CEFETFZAZ T HIEEE s BB
Wi % 5 /1 5 18N R 80965,00000 75 18
5 TR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak B B 5 e o Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

25. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

25. REBEXRZIRE

2023 2022
ZEEH —EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T oo ANR¥T T

Unlisted investments:

Share of net assets

FEEmRE :
JE A 1

Amounts due from/(to) joint ventures are unsecured,

interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms.

Details of the Group’s principal joint ventures at 31

December 2023 are as follows:

Capital contributions/

101,073 182,171

HERT,” (i) &84
B B J B 2 9 K

SEFIE T IRAEAT -

o

AEHDEGECER T =4+ _"H
=t —HZEBNT

Place of issued and paid up Percentage of
Name incorporation capital ownership interest  Principal activities
W/ TR HE 5 5z
an sk it R 32 30 26 BE A MHE AL EEEH
Beida Jade Bird Tongling Tongling, the PRC RMB350,000,000 49%  Investment in unlisted PRC
Semiconductor Industry enterprises or growing entities
Investment Fund (Limited
Partnership)) (“Tongling
Fund”)
TRFEEREFERER  PEME A B #350,000,0007C LR PG e o
BERE (HFREY) HE

(ML)

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

25. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 25. REEBAEZRE (H)

(CONTINUED)

The following table shows information on the joint venture TRIVHEALE T FEERZEER
KZEHR - ZaEhEREE WHRE
DARE 55 35 A MR © BT 251 I 5 B R 22 )G

AR 5 8 A 3 2 A o S i o A S B

that is material to the Group. This joint venture is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity

method. The summarised financial information presented

is based on the HKFRS financial statements of the joint ko
venture.
Name Tongling Fund
4 1 Sl I ik 4
2023 2022
% of ownership interests/voting rights AREEFFA 2 WA
held by the Group fsE BERMT 49%/49% 49%/49%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ¥ T 7o AR¥TT
At 31 December w+-_H=+—H
Non-current assets IE B A E 85,639 323,589
Current assets ) A 69,669 135,239
Current liabilities i) £ A (952) (126,231)
Net assets O E 154,356 332,597
Add: Dividend paid during the year s AER T AR E 170,935 -
Less: NCIs W IR IRRE £ — =
Net assets attributable to owners HEA NG5 G 325,291 332,597
Group’s share of net assets AL [ 445 T 159,393 162,973
Goodwill (RS 17,013 17,013
Dividend received B i B B (54,029) -
Other adjustment HoAth 5 B (23,030) -
Group’s share of carrying amount of A BE B A1k E 5 R T
interests 99,347 179,986
Cash and cash equivalents included R LB 2 B e K
in current assets REEEY 22,951 9,961
Current financial liabilities (excluding A B B B S
trade and other payables and provisions) A R E 5 K H A
included in current liabilities JRE A R T R H8EH) - =
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding  #F A 3F 3 8) & ff 2 JF i &)
trade and other payables and provisions) M AHR (AaEE S X
included in non-current liabilities b R A4S K T B B - -
175 Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited - Annual Report 2023
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

25. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 25. REBAEZRE (H)
(CONTINUED)
Name Tongling Fund
£ S e Ak 4
2023 2022
Year ended 31 December: BWET-H=1T—HIL4EE:
Revenue A = =
Depreciation and amortisation B I B B _ -
Interest income FE WA 1,726 296
Interest expense F B B % _ =
Income tax expense BT A5 50 BH ¢ _ -
(Loss) /Profit for the year AAEFE (518) i A (7,306) 39,311
Other comprehensive income o Ath 4> T Uk S _ -
Total comprehensive income 20 U %% A % (7,306) 39,311
Dividends received from a joint venture i &% 2 & B 54,029 -
The following table shows the Group’s share of the amounts RS AL B 2344 ] S B K fik
of the immaterial joint venture that is accounted for using AR EARZ ABEMEZ AR -
equity method.
2023 2022
ZEOEH xR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T oo AR T
At 31 December: BRT+=_H=4+—H:
Carrying amounts of interests RE 15 H T {EL 1,726 2,185

Year ended 31 December:

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR

BETF-H=1"HIL4X:

A 48 (612) (825)
oAt 2 T i 3 (515) 1,213
2 T i 4 A AE (1,124) 388
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

25.

26.

177

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2023, the bank and cash balances of the
Group’s joint ventures in the PRC denominated in RMB
amounted to RMB23,237,000 (2022: RMB10,316,000).
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign

Exchange Regulations.

Note:
The amount of share of unrecognised loss in the immaterial joint

venture during the year ended 31 December 2023 was RMB704,000
(2022: RMB633,000).

INVESTMENTS IN FILM PRODUCTIONS

25. REBEXEZERE (M)

MoFE AT A= —H > REH
R 2 A ZE N R ESRAT
B4 &5 5 25 N RH23,287,00000 (%
TR NR¥10,316,0000C) © AR
W 50, A1 s 7 Crp i N R R RN (B A0
IR ) B CH5E ~ B o ASH B4 S
FE ) KR -

BFRE -

WBE -Z =t A=+ —H I EERE
IHEAEE Y a2y RifEREE 2 &5
BANRW704,00000 (& = 4 0 AR
633,0007%)

26. NEBREZBRE

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Fx ANBRH#T 0
Cost B A
At 1 January and 31 December W—HA—HE+_-H=1+—H - 3,500
Accumulated amortisation and T B 8 K U (B
impairment
At 1 January h—H—H - =
Impairment VERIER — (3,500)
At 31 December wt+—_HA=+—H = (3,500)
Carrying amount WG T i
At 31 December wt+=—H=+—H _ _

Investments in film productions are stated as cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment. The amount
represents investments in co-production of films in China.
The investments are governed by the relevant agreements
whereby the Group is entitled to benefits generated from the
distribution of these films based on the percentage of capital

contributed in the film production projects.

T T R U 2 BB A AR T
BUESI IR 5% 3K EAE L H B S RAE
BB g - LA MR BERE - Bt
AEBAHE N ELRIFHAER L
WSO % 5 TR 5 B AT 0 2 AR 2 M4
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

27. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI/FINANCIAL 27. VA PAEEF A ot 2 i W 42 =2 BA
ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT B E VA s AL (TR
OR LOSS (“FVTPL”) AFFEAEHSE ) 2 W% & E
2023 2022
T T =R - S
RMB’000 RMB’000

PN B NS T

Financial assets at FVTOCI N R WA= R LT T
W %5
Equity securities, at fair value listed BARTES N TELE
in Hong Kong (note (i)) Fis Bl (M sEaE)) 11,759 35,096
Market value of listed securities A E 11,759 35,096

Equity securities, at fair value unlisted AT I3 > H AN TEAE

outside Hong Kong (note (ii)) FWHANE LT (B 55 i) 244,280 204,054
256,039 239,150
Financial assets at FVTPL LA PR AR Z
WK E
Equity securities, at fair value unlisted JEARE S o AT EAE
in Hong Kong (note (iii)) BTN IE B (B 5E (1id)) 28,998 -
Financial assets at FVTOCI are denominated in the following DL B R E A A4 T U 6 2 B 755 4
currencies: PLR 3 & A
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000

PN B NS

RMB N 244,280 204,054
HK$ T 11,759 35,096
256,039 239,150

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR 178



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak B BV 5 e o M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

927. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI,/FINANCIAL
ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
OR LOSS (“FVTPL”) (CONTINUED)

27. DA PR ah A th 2 i Wi £5 2 B
B E VA EEEAE R (T
ACPEE A B ) 2 W8 E R

(%)
Financial assets at FVTPL are denominated in the following LA PR AR i 2 BB DL T 5
currencies: et
2023 2022
RO =~
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥Tou NS T
HK$ T 28,998 -
Notes: B 5
(i)  The fair values of listed equity securities are based on closing (i) b RAS R IR 2 AP (B DA T AR £ A
prices. ¥ o
(ii)  The fair value of the unlisted equity securities was reference to (i) FEMBRAFERZAFEIIZHE ML

the valuation performed by Greater China Appraisal Limited
and Brilliant Appraisal Limited, independent professional
qualified valuers, derived from estimations of the equity value
by using market approach which makes reference to market

THOSE A (6 0 T SE T (A PR R S i e
FEA AT R FEAT 2 Al (E - BTSSR
o T 35 345 ) S A (AL BT -
T 228 A B AT 26 B 35 9 T EL R

multiples of comparable companies in relevant industries and ] T 35 A
markets.
(iii) The fair value of the unlisted equity securities was estimated (iti) ¢ b T AR R 2 B A 1 ol RS
by the directors by using net asset value approach. FE VR E AN AT
28. INVENTORIES 28. &

2023 2022
S S S 2
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Tou ARBETIT
Raw materials S 3,373 5,979
Work in progress TE R 1,213 2,640
Finished goods BT 11,352 12,130
15,938 20,749
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29. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak B B 5 e o Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

29. B 5 B 3 fib FE WOk JH

2023 2022
R =4 - S
RMB’000 RMB’000
A R¥F e ANBR¥ET T
Trade and bills receivables JRE WS & ) H R S S 157,703 100,095
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B R HE R (717) (837)
156,986 99,258
Advances to staff TEAT B T 3KIE 3,486 4,236
Deposits ¥4 906 2,520
Due from associates R AT A W) B IE
(note 24 and 43(a)) (Fff 5E24 S 43 (a)) 120 26,060
Due from a joint venture JRE W &8 A 2R IE
(note 25 and 43(a)) ([t 5E25 M43 (a)) = 30,714
Due from shareholders JFRE AT FSE R K IR
(note 33 and 43(a)) (P 5£33 243 (a)) 273 248
Due from a related party JE Wi — 44 I ek 7 A
(note 33 and 43(a)) (Kt 5533 M43 (a)) 2,527 27
Loans and interest receivables JRE Wi 5 R e ] 49,629 51,990
Other receivables oAt JE i K A 1,117,907 224,832
Less: allowance for doubtful debts R IR A (297,739) (103,328)
877,109 237,299
Advances to suppliers TE AT 1L 7 2k JE 86,237 16,525
Prepayments FE AT 2 TH 2,410 1,304
1,122,742 354,386

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

e

181

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance
is sometimes required. The credit period was generally
3 months, starting from the date on which the goods are
delivered or services are rendered as this is the point in time
that the consideration is unconditional. Each customer has
a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit
control department to minimise the credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In
view of the aforesaid and the fact that the Group’s trade
receivables relate to a number of diversified customers,
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. Trade

receivables are non-interest-bearing.

The aging analysis of the trade receivables, based on the
date on which the goods are delivered or services are
rendered as this is the point in time that the consideration is

unconditional, was as follows:

29.

B 5 B At I W sk JH (%)

WRIEALE B 2 5 o sk > BRB & 5 A By

AR FON > AEEEF KL =A R
Wl o BRERII— MR =MA > &

A BRI BS  HOREHE - R A5 R
5 S R R RE R B - B R B P
B R R o AS SR B BT A 1 ) HOR
R B WORKIH - S B A (5 BEHE D - B
k#%ﬁi%ﬂl&zﬁ%wﬁ EAE B

E JAR A K o B BRI
bﬂtﬁ%@ﬁﬂ&é’%ﬂ% KA H 2 AR
HE > BE B BRI A ) S o R
B 5 IR AT E

JE WK B2 T B < SR 0 A (ARL4EE ey 52 £+t
B BRI B 2 B> R BT AUE
Jo A B By ) B A

2023 2022

—® =4 -2
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T 55 AR T
Less than 3 months ik s A 156,986 57,494
3 to 6 months 3£ 61 A - 41,726
6 to 12 months 621218 H = -
1 to 2 years 12 24F = 18
2 to 3 years 2 34F - 20
156,986 99,258

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are all
denominated in RMB as at 31 December 2023.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited

RoB-=#t—H=+—H &%H
HE 150 52 57 BB 35 T 0 2 96 LA A I Mt
18 -
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30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak B B 5 e o Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

2023 2022

Contract liabilities RMB’000 RMB’000

HRAE AR T oo ANR¥ET I
Billings in advance of performance obligation J& #) & T 2 F A HR 3K

— Rendering of travel and leisure services — PR AL R A S A [ A s 680 1,019

— Sales of goods contracts —HELREH 338 362

1,018 1,381

There were no significant changes in the contract liabilities

BT ST+ 5 40 2 A B 0 K

balances during the reporting period. 6 o
Movements in contract liabilities: %) £ 18 5 )
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥T ot AR®ET
Balance at 1 January h—H—HZ &% 1,381 -
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of  [K ¥ {3t e %% S A [ IR B5
billing in rendering of travel and leisure VAR 8 8 & dh 2 LAY
service and sales of goods IR FCE A 4 & E 1 hn 1,018 1,381
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of 4 A MEFRIL A B L L
recognising revenue during the year A 15 D> (1,381) =
Balance at 31 December W+ H=+—H2Z4%f% 1,018 1,381

The amount of billings in advance of performance received
that is expected to be recognised as income after more than
one year is RMB1,018,000 (2022: RMB1,381,000).

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR

TE A 1 7 — 4F 4% T BR B U 45 1 B IR
AR TE AT R A A AR A AR ¥1,018,00070
(&= 74 0 NR¥1,381,00000) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

31.

183

DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH 31. TR ABERBEEEY
EQUIVALENTS

2023 2022
—E2-= S Sy
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥T ot ANRHEF
Cash and bank balances B4 R AT &5 B 157,838 228,934
Less: Pledged bank deposits W CHEHRATAE K (1,344) (1,244)
Cash and cash equivalents He RRELEEY 156,494 227,690

The carrying amounts of the Group’s deposits and cash

AWMU KRBl KRB EFHEY 2

and cash equivalents are denominated in the following R TH B T LA R 51 & w1
currencies:
2023 2022
R e S
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T oo ANRBT T
RMB NG 150,674 219,131
HK$ oo 5,310 5,536
USD B 1,854 4,267
157,838 228,934

The pledged bank deposit of RMBI1,344,000 (2022:
RMB1,244,000) to secure a bank loan granted to the Group

are as set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited

B H 4R 17 77 2N W5 1,344,0000T (—
F 0 NR1,244,00000) 25 4K
> B T AR B 2 SRATER K > wF
17 R A7 G BB R M 5184 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

32. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 32. H© 5 o H b FE £k 3E

receipt of goods, is as follows: wai
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt AR ¥ET T
0 to 90 days 0Z290H 60,719 27,476
91 to 180 days 912 180H 89 1,119
181 to 360 days 181%F 360 H 573 367
Over 1 years R4 31,254 41,221
92,635 70,183
33. DUE FROM/(TO) SHAREHOLDERS /RELATED 33. MEWL () IR R N 4 3%

2023 2022
e Y —E
RMB’000 RMB’000
N B AR ¥ET 7T
Trade payables TEATE 5 IR 3K 92,635 70,183
Contract liabilities (note 30) A 4B fE (M EE30) 1,018 1,381
Accruals and other payables JRE =t P e At B A5k SKTE 100,895 92,969
Dividend payables (note 18) JE A S (B RE18) 30,949 -
Salaries and staff welfare payables JREASH 38 40 I B A F 16,554 16,953
Due to associates (note 24 and 43(a)) JREASH W 2% > R IR
(B 5124 5243 (a)) 3,796 6,019
Due to joint venture (note 25 and 43(a)) JEAT £ 8 A 2 IH
(it 5E25 %43 (a)) - 31,339
Due to related parties (note 33 and 43(a)) JRE AT B 2N+ A
(K 5E33 /243 (a)) 6,327 15,827
252,174 234,671

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the date of

MRIFUCE H 08 E 2 B B 5 B e

PARTIES

The amounts due from/(to) shareholders/related parties

are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment

terms.

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR

=i

4

e

o~

S () BRI N 3RS S
ENSYIE 3 T
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

34. BANK AND OTHER LOANS 34. SRAT o H i 83
2023 2022
- e oE
RMB’000 RMB’000

A RW T oo ANR¥T T

Current liabilities B A

— Secured bank and other loans — A AR AT B HoAth K 664,692 711,799
— Unsecured bank and other loans — JEHC A SR AT S At Bk 24,450 51,779
689,142 763,578

Non-current liabilities IF Ui B A 6]
— Secured bank and other loans — A5 HE TSR A7 B oAt 3K 191,450 179,950
The bank and other loans are repayable as follows (note): SRAT S H A RS2 RN (B RE) -
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AN R¥F ot ANR¥ET T
Within one year 4N 689,142 763,578

Portion of bank and other loans that are due #&ZIHFE —4F & H A #H

for repayment more than one year, but not W 4E 2 SR AT S Hofth B 3k

exceeding two years F A 21,450 13,000
Portion of bank and other loans that are due #2 Z 7E Wi 4F 1% {H A 8 41

for repayment more than two year, but not  L4F 2 #8417 I HAth & 3K

exceeding five years S0 114,500 74,450
Portion of bank and other loans that are due #& FHATE T 4FE 48 2 $R17 &
for repayment more than five years At A FCHB A7 55,500 92,500
880,592 943,528
Note: The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates B S o R R 2 B AR R K T T 51 2 T
set out in the respective loan agreements. IR H IR .
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

34. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank and other loans

are denominated in RMB.

The Group’s bank and other loans of RMB691,142,000
(2022: RMB716,978,000) are arranged at fixed interest rates
ranging from Nil to 5.6% (2022: Nil to 6%) per annum
and expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The
Group’s bank and other loans of RMB189,450,000 (2022:
RMB226,550,000) are arranged at floating interest rates
ranging from 4.00% to 5.00% per annum, thus exposing the

Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, secured bank and other
loans were secured by (i) the pledge of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment and investment properties;
(ii) the corporate guarantee given by the Company and a
non-controlling interest of a subsidiary; (iii) pledged bank

deposits; and (iv) certain equity interests of an associate.

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, unsecured other loans were

interest free and repayable on demand.

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR

34.

SRLAT e i B K (A1)
A3 B2 BT T A B 2 M (DA
R R -

A GE B Z BRAT M H A RN R
691,142,000 (& = —4F : AR¥
716,978,00070) &/ 7 E 25,68 (%
TR R FGME) LB AEFRGE
B AR 4R B AR 2 AT (B R SRR B - A%
] 2 GRAT B HAth B 3N B9 189,450,000
JC(CE AR ARH#226,550,00070)
24,008 £ 5.008 2 77 8 F F F 5 &
PR ULt fof A 4 91 7 32 B 4 i o ) S R B o

W oFE=ZFER F D FT A
= —H o AIEHERAT R H A S A
NEIEER  OAREBZYE - BE R
MR EYEZEM ) AA A K
— BB A 7 22 FE R R s 432 th 1 A 3B
WEOR 5 Qi) ORI ERAT 3K 5 B (iv) ik —
B A B 2 T R o

R EER E T EL A

=t H o AR AL SO R S KA
e ZOR MR -
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35.
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LEASE LIABILITIES 35. Ml f i
The Group leases various offices and plant. Rental contracts AEBMEZ MM L= RME - HES
are typically made for fixed periods. Lease terms are HO3 A T BT o AHLE M AR 1 1]
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range WETERS » 3 & N R ek B e - A1
of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do A T N7 it ) A A B2 M RH
not impose any covenants, but leased assets may not be used AN AT AR S SR HR A A o
as security for borrowing purposes.
The present value of future lease payments of the Group’s AL B 2 R AR A R BUE 4
leases are analysed as: i
2023 2022
—_F_=F -
RMB’000 RMB’000
A RW T oo ANR¥T T
Current i) 1,705 3,294
Non-current I Ui B 3,279 73,428
4,984 76,722
Movement of the Group’s leases liabilities is analysed as AEMBERBZ BB IIFWT
follows:
2023 2022
RO =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMETFE  ARMTT
As at 1 January w—H—H 76,722 66,518
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 40(a)) WA Bl — ] o6 a8 2 )
(Fft 540 (a)) - 7,423
Interest expenses FIEBH 32 3,360 4,048
Lease payments FH B 3K (16,338) (1,267)
Lease termination AL &% 1k (58,760) -
As at 31 December Wt _A=+—H 4,984 76,722
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

35. LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 35. M A fE (4
The future lease payments of the Group’s leases (excluding AL E (N HEHE) 2 ARHE
short-term leases) were scheduled to repay as follows: BN R BRI HRIT
Minimum
lease
payments Interest Present value
K
LB A 3% iD=\ BlE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTXT  ARWTRIT AR¥TI

As at 31 December 2023 W_FZ_=H£F_H=1+—H
Not later than one year B — 4 1,957 (252) 1,705
Later than one year but not — — A& {H AN it T 4F
later than five years 3,458 (179) 3,279
5,415 (431) 4,984
As at 31 December 2022 WoEz - —HFEt+_H=+—H
Not later than one year AR — 4 8,505 (5,211) 3,294
Later than one year but not  — 4 A AN B A F4F
later than five years 27,672 (14,673) 12,999
Later than five years HAFERE 77,633 (17,204) 60,429
113,810 (37,088) 76,722
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36.

DEFERRED TAX

36. EAEBLIH

The followings are the deferred tax (assets) and liabilities DU B A SR [ 2 W s i IR IE Bl I ()
recognised by the Group. KEfE -
Allowance for Fair value
doubtful trade Accelerated  adjustment on Financial
and other Allowance tax  acquisition of assetsat  Unused tax
receivables for inventories  depreciation  a subsidiary FVTOCI losses Total
B Bt SRR AT A
B2 mE WEARZ RZERE WABHZ
REBG  FREBH O AKWE  ATERE  ZMEEE  AKESR At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARHT  ARMTT  ARMTT  ARETX ARRTx  ARETE  AR¥Tx
At1 January 2022 RZZ-_F-H-H (6,059) (392) 10,652 - 5,466 - 9,667
Acquisition of a subsidiary 4t — ¥ & /2 7
(note 40(a)) (40 () ) - - - 6,587 - - 6,587
Credit to profit or loss for 57 AZZE B i Fl 56
the year (note 12) (3t12) (1,23) = (730) (980) = (1,723) (4,716)
Charge to other B A E Mk
comprehensive income = - - - 12,011 - 12,011
At 31 December 2022and R -F - "F+_AZ—HR
1 January 2023 ZEZ=E-R-H (7,342) (392) 9,922 5,607 17471 (1,723) 23,549
Credit to profit or loss for 5 AZZE i Fl 6 B
the year (note 12) (HzE12) (8,398) 1,208 2,718 (965) - - (5,442)
Charge to other B A2 ERE R
comprehensive income - - - - 9,933 - 9,933
At31 December 2023 RZZZHFZAZ4-R (15,740) 811 12,640 4,642 27,410 (1,723) 98,040

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances

(after offset) for consolidated statement of financial position

purpose:

The followings are the deferred tax (assets) and liabilities

recognised by the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

36. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances

(after offset) for consolidated statement of financial position

purpose:

0% SE B 9H (%)
WA & B IR DL 3R 2 1 S B A Bk (4K
BAR) AT AN

2023 2022
—2—= —®E——
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥T ANE¥T T
Deferred tax liabilities R A ol JH A A 52,219 32,788
Deferred tax assets A SIE B JE (24,179) (9,239)
28,040 23,549

At the end of the reporting period the Group has unused tax
losses of RMB188,153,000 (2022: RMB107,632,000) available

for offsetting against future profits. No deferred tax asset

has been recognised due to the unpredictability of future

profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses
of total RMB187,814,000 (2022: RMB72,050,000) that will
expire within 2028 (2022: 2027). Other tax losses may be

carried forward indefinitely.

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR

A IR - AN 4R B i R B 2 B
kR B N R H188,153,00000 (% —
£ AR ¥107,632,00000) - A AR
i N | I £ A N iz B [ N
R A > ST A AT ] A0 A o T o
FEARTERBG B A B R AR
#:187,814,0007C (& — —4F : N
72,050,00070) > HRih =T E (2
T R L) 2B - B
by B8 T 48 T 06 FR ) 4 o o
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37. SHARE CAPITAL 37. AR
2023 2022
3k i S
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
it ] ¥ 3]
Promoters Promoters Promoters Promoters
Shares  H shares Total shares  H shares Total shares H shares Total shares H shares Total
REARR il #it BRARR Hi it SRARR Hk & BEARG Hi 4
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMB'0O0  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMB'0O0  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMB'0O0  RMBOOO  RMB000  RMB'000
ARBTE  ARMFE  ARETL ARWFR ARETL ARMFG ARETZ ARMFx ARETR ARNFr ARRTR ARNTR
Regisered, issuedand ~ 27H > EEFRAE :
fully paid:
Shares of RMBOI0 BREEARH0LT
(2022: RMB0.10) (ZFoCf:
each AEE010m) 2 R
At January and R=R-1k
31 December tZR=t-H 00000 814464 1,514,464 70,000 151446 700000 814464 1514464 70,000 81,446 151446
Note: [ff 5%

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise the

return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and

equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment

of dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts,

redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt
is calculated as total debts less cash and cash equivalents. Total

equity comprises all components of equity (i.e. share capital, share

premium, NClIs, retained profits and other reserves).

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s strategy,
which was unchanged from the year ended 31 December 2020, was

to maintain the debt-to-equity ratio at the lower end of the range 0.1

to 0.4, in order to secure access to finance at a reasonable cost.
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AR B 2 A T O i R A AR B A 4+
MR - LA s il 4 AL U R AR LU ) 3 ik
SRR AR e (B i o

A e SRR B AR R o AS SR A

B 2 B T DL o B AR S
ARG A S T o SRR I B S A e B
AT ~ 1o Ry - AR A - R B AT
OB B DA AR AR

ASE T DA A R AR HE R R R AR o AT B
L A 4 R AR5 1 A R AR SR O o RS TR
LIRS A Bl R B &S Y -
AR SR 65 BT A RE R TR (RIBEAS ~ IOy dad
B JRHE MR - B AF U A S HAB A -

RBEE-Z-_=F+_H=+—HILF
E AEMBFIENERE_Z-ZF+ A
=t —HILFEEZ RN B A SRR
e 2R A 0.122.0. 45 B 14 2 BAK K P > #EfR DA
£ B A A B -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

37. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

The debt-to-equity ratio is calculated as below:

37.

A (%)
AR LR ET
2023 2022
—®=4E CECT
RMB’000 RMB’000

ANR¥Tou ARBETIT

Bank and other loans SRAT I HoAth B 3Kk
Lease liabilities HE A
Total debts UL K]

Equity attributable to the Company’s owners A<\ &l A A MEAS RE 25

Total debt to equity ratio A AT

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for
the Company to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it
has to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares. The
Company receives a report from the share registrars monthly
on substantial share interests showing the non-public float
and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25%
limit throughout the year. As at 31 December 2023, 54%
(2022: 54%) of the total promoters and H shares were in
public hands.

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR

880,592 943,528
4,984 76,722
885,576 1,020,250
3,627,237 3,557,568
24% 29%

AN T B HEHE IR W 2E BT B m ZE T
ST ME— BE A1 AR e 0 SR A
FE RN AR A DI BAR 2.25% ° A0
AR ARG E F SRR BT A PR
SRR R AR 2 AR 2 R
WA FRAANTIRERN—HMFE25%Z
THRBE - R _F =+ ZH =+ —
H o & AR KAk 254% (=
TR 54%) A RIFE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company

(a)

A 2 W] 22 PR Dl R

38. AR W) Z WK D e K ik i 52 )

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ Tt ANR¥#ET T
Non-current assets ;W 'iﬁ ?fl 'ﬁ’ ﬁ‘
Property, plant and equipment LUEN: SN & ] 6,355 5,318
Investments in subsidiaries, net of T B A F 2 E
accumulated impairment losses s B w5t i E s 1R 295,539 295,539
Investments in film productions WEEZUEZIHRE - =
Financial assets at FVTOCI N I (- WA= R
it 2 B 243,893 203,125
Investments in associates /NI & <y 217,925 653,055
Investments in joint ventures A AN IRE 160,724 127,616
Deposit for potential investments BERE ML & 30,000 =
954,436 1,284,653
Current assets i B
Due from shareholders JHE Wit % B3 I 273 247
Due from subsidiaries JRE Wiz ) 2 7 K IH 607,465 412,512
Due from a related company JRE Wit — 5K IR e 2 ) K 27 27
Prepayments, deposits and other AT RIE - & K
receivables At R i 2k T 809,889 138,537
Cash and cash equivalents Iﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁ—@ﬁ% 74,723 128,585
1,492,377 679,908
Current liabilities i B A K
Trade and other payables B2 5 B HoAh R A 2k TE 81,488 81,825
Bank and other loans SRAT S HAh 27 3K 608,192 660,000
Due to related parties AT B O\t 3K E 4,117 3,672
Due to subsidiaries JRE AT A i 2 ) 3 JH 166,918 167,508
860,715 913,005
Non-current liabilities Ik U B &
Deferred tax liabilities 5% JE A TH A £ 35,973 25,782
NET ASSETS R 1,550,125 1,025,774
Share capital A% A 151,446 151,446
Reserves (note b) it (FfF5ED) 1,398,679 874,328
EQUITY BE £ 1,550,125 1,025,774
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 38. AAH] 22 WSR3 B it i 52 )
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (#)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Reserve movements of the Company (b) A2 H) Z fifi i 52 B

Financial
assets at
Capital Reserve FVTOCI Retained Other

reserve funds reserve profits reserve Total

WA

R A

Hfb 2 T

Wi i 2 B
GARM e BEME  BRERN LLHE Ll
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTL ARBTT ARWTT AR®TT AR®TT ARMTE

At1 January 2022 woZ-—F—H—H 605,810 86,716 26,590 132,769 - 851,885
Total comprehensive income for A4 2 1 it &5 A%

the year = = 50,754 (4,476) - 46,278
Repurchase right arrangement Wt i —ff it 2 /] B 1)

upon acquisition of a subsidiary 1 ff % 4

(note 40(a)) (H7E40(a)) - = - - (23,835) (23,835)
At 81 December 2022 and 1 S5

1 January 2023 FZAZt-HR

“F-ZF—H—H 605,810 86,716 77,344 128,293 (23,835) 874,328

Total comprehensive income AEE 2R A5
for the year - - 30,578 493,773

524,351

At 31 December 2023 RoZE-=F+"H
== 605,810 86,716 107,922 622,066 (23,835) 1,398,679
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39. RESERVES 39.
3

4 B 2 e T A R S
B A T B A R
5B % 251 -

(a) Group (a)

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income

and consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (b)  fifi 5 kB B ) i
(i)  Capital reserve (Z) B it
The capital reserve of the Company and the AN T B AR BB A 1R
Group represents the aggregate of: TS IHZ BB

195

share premium totalled RMB602,729,000

arising from issue of new shares;

the waiver of an amount of RMB1,654,000
recorded as part of issuance expenses for
the listing of the Company’s H shares on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange in July 2000
(the “Listing”) payable to an unrelated party
who had provided services to the Company
during the Listing pursuant to prevailing
accounting principles and regulations in the
PRC; and

BEATH R AR AR AR
#602,729,0007C 2 B
RTRI=S

MR o B AT 2 &5
Q) AR > BN
RIHB A BT EEL
A TE ¥ 28 T GEM k1
(M )) W3k A AR 2
AR 2 I B

HE A A B HE1,654,000
TLEB M EEAT ST 5 K

the net gain of RMB1,427,000 resulting IR BT 2 Erat i
from debt restructuring of Jade Bird HIJ B i B C A ]
Fire, a former subsidiary of the Company, il P 2 W) 75 s T B 1
transferred in accordance with prevailing W5 AL A 2 s A

accounting principles and regulations in the
PRC.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited

[ #1,427,0007T ©

* Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak B B 5 e o Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

39. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(i)

(212)

Reserve funds

Reserve funds comprise statutory surplus reserve
and discretionary surplus reserve. In accordance
with the laws and regulations in the PRC and
articles of association of the Company and its
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC (collectively
referred to the “PRC entities”), the PRC entities
are required to appropriate 10% of their profit
after tax, after offsetting any prior years’ losses, to
the statutory surplus reserve. When the balance of
the statutory surplus reserve reaches 50% of the
PRC entities’ registered share capital, any further
appropriation is optional. The statutory surplus
reserve can be used to offset prior years’ losses, if
any, and may be converted into share capital by
issuing new shares to shareholders in proportion
to their existing shareholding or by increasing
the par value of the shares currently held by
them, provided that the remaining balance of the
statutory surplus reserve after such issue is not
less than 25% of share capital. The PRC entities
may transfer an amount from their profit after
tax to the discretionary surplus reserve approved
by the shareholders. The discretionary surplus
reserve can be utilised to offset prior years’
losses of the PRC entities and to distribute to

shareholders in the form of bonus issue.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve
comprises all foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in

note 4(f) to the consolidated financial statements.

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR

39. fifi fhi (#8)
(b) 1l PR RL % PR (f)

(i)

(ii1)

w22

it 446 4 L V5 E TR S
SREBRBAES - R
R B I R SR A R AR N ]
e Hp B ST 2 B
] (RATT A [ o 20 B A )
ZH AR P
B 2 e OB A% T B (4K 85 1
ol DAAE 48 i AR - 4RI
10%1E 1% B R it il o "%0%
E T BR A A B P B R Rk
{1 B 4S50 % RE > AT AT 3 — 25
PEBUE B o R B AR
A5 AT A K B DA AE 4F A 1R
(FEA) > I8 A R
IR R JBE LU 48] 1) i B A7 5
A R 1 SR T A
By 2 T B W BB AR > A
B B AT 0% 1 0 T £ A B AR
DI Z225% © HIE
B AT B 4 A B BRI
g &SSO AT =
BORGEA  AT 3 B AR Gl A5 T
T HE 65 o ) B 2 o A AR
£ s 18 - S DL AT Iy =X ) i
TR 5§ o

FEE 52 1

FEE 0. foth #5620 455 TR B 1 90 26 05
B S % 7 A B T A T B 2=
B oo MR A M R
B T4 (F) T i S BUR BEHE -
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39. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

197

(b)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iv)

Financial assets at FVTOCI reserve

The financial assets at FVTOCI comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of
financial assets at FVTOCI held at the end of the
reporting period and is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy in note 4(I) to the

consolidated financial statements.

Other reserve

The other reserve of the Group represents the

aggregate of:

The equity-settled share-based payments of
RMB10,969,000 recognised upon transfer
of equity interests in a subsidiary of the
Company from certain of its original
shareholders to a director and certain
employees of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2012.

The difference of RMB1,583,000 arose from
the decrease in NCIs of RMB4,617,000
(being the proportionate share of the
carrying amount of the net assets of
PWC Winery, LLC) and RMB3,034,000
(equivalent to approximately USD475,000),
which arose on the acquisition of additional
25% equity interests in PWC Winery, LLC in

prior years.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited

39. fifi fhi (#8)
il 86 1k BT % P 98 ()

(b)

(iv)

(v)

L2 TE 7 A BAl 22 i a8
Z BB E

DL SPE 51 Ho At 2 1 i 25
2 PAHS B ol A S R
WAFFE 2 A FEFFAH
il 2 T i 25 2 B A5 EE AT
R G B > L RRE
A5G W SR B RE4 (1) BT
ZEFIBUOR R o

H At 1 7

AR [ H At R A T 51 2
e

- UMEHAHEREZKBG
B B AE ON R W
10,969,0007C > & #
e s S N £
= HAEF R AR
A B A FIAE A L
T 5 SR e 5 A A
—ZE SR TR B
TEwg o

- AR %1,583,0000C 2
O TR I
25 A\ R 154,617,000
gt (BIPWC Winery,
LLCH & E R M EH 2
Lo 43 3 WA AR
3,034,0007C (A & 7
#1475,0003 J0) 2 %
B M A
— 2 IUHPWC Winery,
LLC 25% M 4 IR E A=
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39. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b)

AR T HRT R A RAF -

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(v)  Other reserve (Continued)

= The reserve includes RMB3,256,000 (2022:
RMB3,736,000) is the safety production
fund, which is for future enhancement of
safety environment and improvement of

facilities.

- The reserve includes RMB23,835,000
(2022: RMB23,835,000) arising from the
repurchase right arrangement entered with
the NCIs of Guangdong Lumen Pioneer
Opto., Limited at acquisition date during

the year ended 31 December 2022 (note

40(a)).

- The reserve includes RMB17,014,000 arising
from the acquisition of additional 30%
interests in a subsidiary, Ningbo Jade Bird
Venture Capital Co., Ltd. without change in
control during the year ended 31 December
2023 (note 40(c)).

Profit appropriations

Under the PRC Company Law and the PRC entities’
articles of association, the net profit after tax as
reported in the PRC statutory financial statements,
prepared in accordance with PRC accounting
principles and regulations, can only be distributed
as dividends after allowance has been made for the

following:

(i)  Make-up of prior years’ cumulative losses, if any.

(ii) Allocations to the reserve funds as stated in (b) (ii)

above.

—R SRR

39. it (#)

(b)

(c)

i 4 1 R D3R (4
(v) HAbGEH (4E)

- R EREE R
& N R %3,256,00070
(28 AR
3,7%6,00070) - FI{E &K
AR T AR BREE K
BTt o

— EMHaREREE —F
A+ ZA=1—
H ik 4F J3 B B o 86
i 806 T A R 4 F Y
IF 2 I A 45 WD oL 1Y
] HE 22 P T EE AR AN
K #23,835,0007C (—
o ANRE
23,835,00070) (Mt 5%
40(a))

- wRhaEEzE—
“=#+-A=+—H
1k 45 BE T 2 1) HE ok %
A 5 B 1 15 LT Ui i
Bt 2 \ 2 R Al
F WG A R A A &
30% M £5 T EE £ AR
#17,014,0007C (B4 55
40(c))

i Al 43 i

REHEAREEHRER A
IR v e S g
Lo 13151 i B 2 v B3 R B S R
P 2 Rk B BUAR AR A > A% 7] A R
51125 ATt MEA AR AT 5 i B0 U

(i) WHBEFEZAGEBR
(mA)

(ii)  $EAE L SC(b) (i) BTt A 5
4z o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 40. % fr B BRI T
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Acquisition of a subsidiary (a) Wz bk — 1] Bk ) 2 )
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the B+ -_A=+—H
Company acquired a 80% equity interest in Guangdong BI5GB N/ A
Lumen Pioneer Opto Co., Ltd. (“Guangdong Lumen”) =7 WS TR SR B U 8 O T A TR
at a cash consideration of RMB84,486,160 from an 2 ) (TR SR 8% 1) 80% Y I HE -
independent third party of the Company. Guangdong Bl A0 25 A\ R 84,486,160 7T °
Lumen became a direct non-wholly owned subsidiary of 2 A BRI ) A R AR A
the Company after satisfying the terms and conditions 1% o JBE SRV 88 RS AR N B EL R
of the related sales and purchase agreement. This I 2 BT > 7 o AR IR s RS
acquisition constituted a business combination under A HE RSB 5Y - U IS R L T
HKFRS 3. Guangdong Lumen is principally engaged EBEH - RS L ERES
in the development, manufacture and sale of high-end Ui ) 5 K B FRLED & 1 B LA 1Y
ceramic high-power LED devices and modules, and BH B~ A E S E > DL R OE
the research and development and manufacturing of A B 5 0 AR E o
special light sources.
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities T WS H O s A B R R U 88 2 AT
of Guangdong Lumen acquired as at the date of Al B KB A T EIT
acquisition were as follows:
RMB’000
ANRBETIT
Net assets acquired: e W5 v E
Property, plant and equipment (note 19) Y RE R (i EE19) 37,865
Other intangible assets (note 22) Hph 4 T0 & i (f5E22) 14,943
Inventories Vs 19,682
Trade and other receivables 54 5 B HAth IR i 3K A 16,413
Cash and cash equivalents Bl e Bl S EHY 1,300
Trade and other payables ¥ 5y B FAbRE A 3RIH (20,095)
Lease liabilities L85 £ R (7,423)
Deferred tax liabilities IR S B T A A (6,587)
56,098
NCIs I 2 FBHE i (11,220)
Goodwill Gk 39,608
Total consideration — satisfied by cash ARG — AT 4 AT 84,486
Net cash outflows arising on acquisition: HC A E A 2 B 4 AL e R
Cash and cash equivalents acquired WAS 4 M &2 1EY 1,300
Cash consideration paid BB E (84,486)
(83,186)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak B B 5 e o Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(a)

Acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued)

The goodwill of RMB39,608,000, which was not
deductible for tax purposes, comprises the value of
the acquired management team and the future market

development of LED business.

The NCIs of RMB11,220,000 was measured at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s fair value of
Guangdong Lumen net identifiable liabilities as at

acquisition date.

The fair value of trade receivables of Guangdong
Lumen as at acquisition date amounted to
RMB16,413,000.

The Group incurred transaction costs of RMB378,000
for this acquisition. These transaction costs have been
expensed off and were included in the administrative

expenses in profit or loss.

During the period from the acquisition date to 31
December 2022, Guangdong Lumen contributed
RMB32,712,000 to the Group’s revenue and net loss of
RMB12,266,000 to the Group’s profit or loss.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2022, the
consolidated revenue and net loss of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2022 would have been
RMB40,916,000 and RMB14,824,000 respectively. The
proforma financial information was for illustrative
purpose only and did not necessarily reflect the
Group’s revenue and operating results if the
acquisition had been completed 1 January 2021 and
could not serve as a basis for the forecast of future

operation result.

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR

40. %34 Bl 4 U B K PN Rk (4

(

a)

W Nk — I i 2> w1 (4)

A R #39,608,0007C (A ]
OBL) o BLEE B i A I B A
{H S LEDSERS ) R AT 5 88 2 -

IF ¥ R RE 45 25 N R 111,220,000
JC > F B T A i A R A
JEE R 88 Tk P AR (E AT
[EER =

JBE SR S 7 W H 3 IR 5
WA B N R 16,413,000
j‘T:o

AR T 1 5% 0N B AR T 38 B AR
£y N H:378,00000 © 7% % 38 5 i
AP FIBR > 306 5 AR & AT
BB o

Bt EE -2 - —F+ A
o el = I R NS
9 Ui A B RR A B 82,712,0000T
BB A 4L 48 55 B RO R AR
#12,266,0007C °

R —F = —F—H— H %
A AIARSEHRERE —F 4
T+ A=+ —HLEEEZHESE
WA B e 18t 2 N R
40,916,0007C M A R 14,824,000
JC © i B B E RHE it 2 % A
o R — AR R &
T—AFE—H — H M AE LR A&
LY s B R A AR
AR T ) o ol 408 4 S 4 2 BEE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

201

(a)

Acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued)

Apart from the aforesaid sales and purchase agreement,
the Group also entered into a repurchase agreement
with the NCIs of Guangdong Lumen (the “Repurchase
Agreement”) which may require the Group to
repurchase the remaining 20% equity interests in
Guangdong Lumen (“Repurchase Right”) at an
agreed option price as stipulated in the Repurchase
Agreement. Pursuant to the Repurchase Agreement,
the last date for the exercise of the Repurchase
Right shall be 31 October 2027. As at the acquisition
date, the Group did not have the present ownership
interests in the 20% equity interests held by the NCIs
of Guangdong Lumen. Accordingly, the financial
liabilities of the Repurchase Right of RMB23,835,000
is recognised at the acquisition date and the
corresponding amount is recognised under other
reserve in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. As at 31 December 2022, the aforesaid financial
liabilities are accounted for RMB24,900,000 and a loss
on repurchase right arrangement of RMB1,065,000
was charged to profit or loss during the year ended 31
December 2022.

Further details on this are disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 10 March 2022.

Disposal of a subsidiary

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
an independent third party to dispose 100% of a
wholly-owned subsidiary, Beijing Bedia Information
Technology Company Limited, a company incorporated
in the PRC at a cash consideration of RMBI. Having
satisfied the terms and conditions of the agreement,

the Group ceased control in this subsidiary.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited

40.

Rt

(a)

(b)

B 4 vt 1 7 P Rk (A9)

e s — 0 S 4 ) ()

B b ol B R g Ak > A 4R 1 R B
JEE R 68 1Y I P R RE 55 w1 7 I [
Wk (THE ek ) > nf BR AL
VB U T b KL A ) T A A
6 W [ J5% RO 66 19 B 1 209 % RE
(1] B HE 1) o AR 10 [ 7k > A7
RN RE A
EHA=Z+—H - RUER S
A% B2 9] 37 4 SR T 66 I 4 R ME R
JIT R 1920 % B HE (14 B IR HiE A R
HE £ o PRUG > 7 i I HOHA TE R
[u] FRE 1) A N R 623,835,000
JC > MEG R IR AR )R
B A foti Al R RE R o A F
E+-H=+—H > Ll
B EC AR S AR H24,900,000
G - T W 1] HE 22 HE 2 s 4E N R
1,065,0007C & A i 2 =% — T 4F
T A=+ HIEERER P
Fx -

gl g5 TH 2 — A R R R AR
NEIHM A - F 4 =H+H
M e

& — [ FE 8 2 W)

REE-F=F+_H=1+—
B kAR A 46 18 B N 5 = 0
AT EE R UHEREAR
WichE2EMBARILRES
15 BB BRA A (— B B
B SE B2 B ) 19100% B B o 1%
T R R 0 R K B AR A A% > AR 4
] 1 3 A > A 2 o o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak B B 5 e o Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 40. %44 Bl B LWk ()
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(b) Disposal of a subsidiary (Continued) (b) i — B2 W (4)
The details of the calculation of the gain on disposal of A R B A WD R A wT O RE G
the subsidiary is as below: mr
RMB’000
AR¥TT
Net assets disposed of: Ol & R
Financial assets at FVTOCI DL SPAE w1 A A 4 T Ui £ 2
W B 571
Cash and cash equivalents B K Bl EY 2:2)
593
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary A — [ B A R P R 1R (593)
Total consideration HEARAE =
Net cash outflows arising on acquisition: WA o I AR Y B U o TR AR
Cash consideration received i & ARE B
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of Ol B8 KB EEY (22)
(22)
(c) Acquisition of additional interests in a subsidiary (c) Wl — ] B B 4 W] Ay A0 HE 4 T
without change in control P A A
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group BE-_Z_=4F+-A=+—H
increased 30% equity interests of a Ningbo Jade Bird WL > AL BB SAEAR
Venture Capital Co., Ltd., 70% owned subsidiary of #18,000,0007C H 57 55 = J7 1
the Group, from an independent third party at a cash 5 A% B2 1B B 670 % HE 45 11 B A
consideration of RMB18,000,000. FERE HAERERARAFN
30% B HE -

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR 202



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

40. %56 Bl & U B R W aE ()

(d) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (d) R B E A 2 AR EIR
activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s TR EMEALE B MERD
liabilities arising from financing activities, including EEZAMZEY  GfFHE X
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising HREEH MEFHEAZA
from financing activities are those for which cash flows B 2 Hol R 3 & 0 & 2R BUR 2R
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the BHeEnesdn AL G 5HE2R
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash BROBAME ST 2B &R
flows from financing activities. & e
Due to
Bank and related Lease
other loans parties liabilities
AT R JE 5 [ Wi
o 8% At M iR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
NS AR¥TT AT T
At 1 January 2022 WoEZZ4H—H—H 701,875 5,882 66,518
Interest expense FER 34,544 - 4,048
Non-cash movements FHEET - - 7,423
Cash flows Hene 207,109 9,945 (1,267)
At 31 December 2022 and g
1 January 2023 +ZA=+—HE
—Z_=%#—-f—H 943,528 15,827 76,722
Interest expense BB 5 51,661 - 3,360
Non-cash movements FHEED - - (58,760)
Cash flows Hehs (114,597) (9,500) (16,338)
At 31 December 2023 REBRD=4
T+ZH=+—H 880,592 6,327 4,984
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak B B 5 e o Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE 41. MBHER
As at 31 December 2023, the Group issued two (2022: three) o E CEAFEF A=+ —H > AEHE
guarantees to several banks in respect of banking facilities AL — [ Wk 7 > WM B SRATT Rl 1) o T
granted to an associate. WATEH MG (ZF 4 =6) ¥
(o
At the end of the reporting period, the directors do not P S RIS N N S ] e
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the TR QR BB SR B o AR R -
Group under the guarantee. The maximum liability of AEEPMEHETIERT 2 ABERAR
the Group at the end of the reporting period under the T 2 g A\ R #100,000,0007C (—
guarantee issued is the facility granted by bank amounted T4 AR300,000,0007T) R
RMB100,000,000 (2022: RMB300,000,000). At the end s R > B A R SR B S AR
of reporting period, facility drawn down by the associate #100,000,0007C (& — "4« AR
amounted RMB100,000,000 (2022: RMB200,000,000). The 200,000,0007T) A5 [ 3f7 45 5 S 5 465
Group has not recognised any deferred income in respect PRHERRATATARIE WA - [R5 FL A S
of the financial guarantee as its fair value was considered LB DO L8 o
insignificant.
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 42. BARERM
The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the AL [E A R B R &5 H 2 B ARYE
reporting period are as follows: I
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ¥ T oo ANR¥T T
Contracted but not provided for: E AT 40k R 4
Property, plant and equipment LE B & ] 33,170 58,042
Committed capital contribution to Il B8 8 T BB A
associates and joint ventures ZIRHEEE 97,797 115,425

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR
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Ak B BV 5 e o M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 43. BEAN LR
(a) In addition to those related party balances disclosed (a) BRERG M H R AL AR P o5 2
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the % 5 BH O ON &5 Bk b o A 4R R
Group had the following balances with related parties: AAEEEEA BDL P BN L2 &
fif :
2023 2022
R =& —Ez
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Fx PNJERL o
Due from associates JRE WA B 7 A ) A 120 26,060
Due from joint venture e G 8 A 2 RIH = 30,714
Due from shareholders JHRE Wiz 5 R K I 273 248
Due from related parties AR Wi [ e 7 A 2,527 27
Due to associates JRE AT B 45 ) 3k A 3,796 6,019
Due to joint ventures JEAT A 8 A 2EIH - 31,339
Due to related companies controlled JEAT B dbmt R B4 2
by Peking University R FAEIE @ 5,882 5,882
Due to a related company controlled JRE AR Fhy — ] Bf Jo 2 1 FF
by a non-controlling interest of a P2 JBOHE i 725 7 2 B
subsidiary N E A 445 9,945
(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the (b) AEBHFEEFHAEHE :
Group:
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ T e YN e
Short term employee benefits LA R B AR A 4,533 4,328
Post-employment benefits BfE T A A 420 358
4,953 4,686

Further details of directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments

are included in note 15 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak B B 5 e o Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2023 are as follows:

Place of incorporation/
registration and
operation and

44, FEMIB A W

REFZZFFZA=+—H ARA
B J0) VAU RN

Percentage of

Name kind of legal entity Paid up capital ownership interest Principal activities
ik M3/
GAVES SRV
s EEREY AR MR BHERERAL  REREE
Direct  Indirect
Ef %
Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech (Cayman) ~ Cayman Islands/the PRC, 100,000 ordinary shares of 100% - - Investment holding
Development Company Limited limited liability company ~ USDI each
EAFRRFRI (HE) MBS,/ HH 100,000/ 5 i ~BEER
BRARAA AR 1% TeZ B
Chuanqi Tourism Investment (Hunan) Hunan, the PRC, limited RMB30,000,000 60% - - Exploration and development of travel
Co., Ltd. (“Chuanqi Tourism (Hunan)”) liability company and leisure business
[ ikE B E (W) HRA A PR HRAF ARYES0,000,0007 — MRl B R 2 B
([ 837 it (1) J)
Beijing Hengsheng Investment Management ~ Beijing, the PRC, limited ~ RMBZ2,000,000 55% - - Provision of investment management
Company Limited liability company and advisory services
At B £ B AT R R PRI HRAT ARY2,000,000% — VR T A
Ningbo Jade Bird Venture Capital Investment Co., Ningbo, the PRC, limited ~ RMB60,000,000 - 0% - Investment holding
Ltd. liability company
ERHRARREARL HEEY  ARAT ARE60,0000007 — SRR
PWC Winery, LLC The State of Virginia, the ~ Members’ contributed capital = 0% - Production and sales of wine and
United States, limited of USD4,200,000 related products
liability company
PWC Winery, LLC EBHEREN BRI #4,200,000% 70 — WA AR R R
AIRA A
Xiamen Hanyu Bulk Supply Chain Management  Xiamen, the PRC, limited  RMB50,000,000 = 100% - Sales and purchases of metal products
Co., Ltd liability company
BLFT TR R T R A HREM FRAF ARS50,000,0007 — S AR
Guangdong Lumen Pioneer Opto Co., Ltd. Guangdong, the PRC, limited RMB30,000,000 80% - - development, manufacture and sale

RRAARELEARAA

liability company

HRRA ARAR

B 50,000,000

The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries which

principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the

Group.

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR

of high-end ceramic high-power
LED devices and modules, and
the research and development
and manufacturing of special light
sources

— PSR B KD LED B B AL R 5
VEEMEE  DRARL RS
L.

EREIIGE AL KR BERA
R B T B BN A A A R B R o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 44.

The following tables show information on the subsidiaries
that have NCIs material to the Group. The summarised
financial information represents amounts before

inter-company eliminations.

F B & 2w (AF)

AR A G P A EOR T A
Z W~ R o BAHS BRI 4G 2 W I K
THSH B AT A S -

Name Chuanqi Tourism (Hunan)
4 {807 il 3¢ (391 1)
2023 2022
% of ownership interests/voting IE 125 BEWE 25 I B 2 A HE
rights held by NCIs fEts R REE 4 L 40% /40 % 40%/40%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRH T PN
At 31 December mr-_H=4+—H
Non-current assets I Vi B 651,431 621,864
Current assets I B 240,529 186,667
Current liabilities i B A E (330,934) (191,933)
Non-current liabilities I B & (202,228) (255,022)
Net assets E A 358,798 361,576
Accumulated NCIs BEFIF P R #5 143,519 144,630
Year ended 31 December: BET_H=1—"HIL4EE :
Revenue A 187,376 85,608
Profit/ (Loss) for the year AR B O 48) 16,920 (9,193)
Total comprehensive income AR %5 AR HE 16,920 (9,193)
Profit/ (Loss) allocated to NCIs A3 T T IF A 2 2 Yk
(i 18) 6,768 (3,677)
Dividends paid to NCIs EENER LY £ P I, - -
Net cash generated from ELEAREEE B FHE
operating activities 46,436 53,888
Net cash used in investing activities FH A & S B 2 B4 VR A (109,549) (27,668)
Net cash used in financing activities FH A Tl T ) 2 3R 4 T 79,568 (23,705)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and 4 K &L E W m,~
cash equivalents (WD) A 16,455 2,515

207 Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited

 Annual Report 2023



44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak B B 5 e o Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

The following tables show information on the subsidiaries

that have NCIs material to the Group. The summarised

financial information represents amounts before

inter-company eliminations.

AR T BT A RAT - 2 AR

44.

F & 2w (BF)

AR A G P A EOR T A
Z W~ R o BB BRI 4G 2 W I K
THSH B AT A B -

Name Guangdong Lumen
%4 JE o VR #6
2023 2022
% of ownership interests/ IE 125 BEHE 25 I 5 2 A HE
voting rights held by NCIs s, BERET I 20% /20% 20%/20%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ T ANR¥F It
At 31 December wht+—_H=4+—H
Non-current assets IF I B & 24,143 48,301
Current assets it B A 34,887 37,104
Current liabilities PN =R (45,925) (32,923)
Non-current liabilities W E B & (3,279) (10,590)
Net assets R 9,826 41,892
Accumulated NCIs BT IE IR RE 45 1,965 8,378
Year ended 31 December: BET-H=1T—HIL#HFE :
Revenue A 49,619 32,712
Loss for the year A 4 T s 15 (15,245) (14,206)
Total comprehensive income EATE e E (15,245) (14,206)
Loss allocated to NCIs Vil e XY a ) 7Eic (3,049) (2,841)
Dividends paid to NCIs B A R IR i 2 IR S - =
Net cash generated from/ (used in) EAE (AR K& 582
operating activities 4 4,662 (2,009)
Net cash used in investing activities JH A & s B 2 B4 VR A (2,216) (2,092)
Net cash generated from financing FELE B REE B 2 B AR
activities - 2,000
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and 4 K &L EW 1 m,~
cash equivalents (W) HH 2,446 (2,101)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % “F =4+ A =+ —H IL4E

45.

46.

209

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

On 9 January 2024, the Group made a successful bid for the
Sale Equity in the public auction held through the Online
Auction Platform operated and managed by the Shanghai
Equity Exchange at a consideration of RMB106,690,000.
Upon completion, the aggregate shareholdings of Shanghai
Shengjin Venture Capital Co., Ltd. (“Target Company”)
held by the Group will increase from 45% to 70%. This
acquisition is not yet completed at the date of authorisation
The details of this

transaction have been set out in the announcement of the

of the consolidated financial statements.

Company dated 9 January 2024.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and

authorised for issue by the directors on 28 March 2024.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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46.

Hed H W12 HIH

A FENE—HAILE > AREEBE G
RS L S KBRS L
T BRI 2N B A 5 T AR B
BE > RE A AR H106,690,0007C © 5E M
% REERAE LGRS EREH R
A E] ([ B AEEAF] D) i S HEAS B 45 % 1
MET0% o B2 574 B R RS
H > ab T S 6 = T 1 R 52 AR © 5% 58 5 Y
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Particulars of Investment Properties

BRI

Group’s Approximately
percentage  Approximately Gross Floor Category of
Location interest Site Area Area  Usage Lease
AL MRY
Hb 26 eSS e BEAMGME R MEAEEEE W i
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)
CFJ k) CFJ k)
Phase I, Legend Town Cultural 30.6% 39,847.47 27,057.03  Cultural and Medium-term

and Art District,

No. 3 Guangji Road,

Nanyue District, Hengyang

City, Hunan Province, the PRC
o I A e A i R (R 3 B

ST Ar S0 AL 21l 7 [ — )

LR F RRFREBAARAT - % AR

recreational lease

pg(a s A
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Financial Summary

$ 755 4 2

For the year ended 31 December
BET-A=1+—HILEE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
B RO EF - FE ZFECFRE FE—NE
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
AR#ETHE AR¥Tx AR¥®TT AR®Tx AR¥T
Results B
Revenue A 566,375 276,174 394,627 468,414 1,266,678
Profit before tax I 1 il v 196,635 317,657 157,929 80,244 1,575,955
Income tax (expense)/  FrEHi (B %)
credit K% (17,935) 2,012 (6,513) (10,351) (73,782)
Profit for the year A AE B i 178,700 319,669 151,416 69,893 1,502,173
Profit attributable to: JREAL %5 )
Owners of the Company A2 A #EAH A 195,207 333,383 158,972 64,165 1,402,389
Non-controlling interests {4 it i 25 (16,507) (18,714) (7,556) 5,728 99,784
178,700 319,669 151,416 69,893 1,502,173
As at 31 December
Wt HA=1+—H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E = - S TR R CORE FEJUF
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
AR#ETH AR¥Ti AR¥®TT AR®Txo AR¥T
Assets and Liabilities & M AR
Total assets R 4,985,138 5,020,879 4,276,863 3,662,512 3,470,502
Total liabilities AR (1,209,169) (1,292,415)  (928,320)  (557,676)  (395,131)
Total assets less total AL AR A
liabilities 3,775,969 3,728,464 3,348,543 3,104,836 3,075,371
Non-controlling interests I 4 i Hf &5 (148,732)  (170,896)  (173,596)  (149,142)  (197,150)
Equity attributable to NN N
owners of the Company JE L FE 25 3,627,237 3,557,568 3,174,947 2,955,694 2,878,221
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